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Greetings

The Board of Directors of Taufika Foods and Lovello Ice Cream PLC is pleased to
present the Annual Report for the year 2024. This report offers an in-depth
view of the company’s financial and operational achievements, supported by
the Independent Auditors’ Report and the audited Financial Statements. We
have adhered to all relevant statutory requirements and international best
practices to ensure comprehensive transparency and accountability.

In 2024, Taufika Foods and Lovello Ice Cream PLC made substantial progress in
advancing our key strategic priorities, marking a pivotal year for the company.
Our commitment to innovation, quality, and sustainable growth served as the
driving force behind these achievements, enabling us to solidify our position as
a leading player in the food and ice cream industry.

We prioritized operational excellence across all areas of our business,
enhancing efficiency, streamlining processes, and fostering a culture of
continuous improvement. These efforts were coupled with an aggressive focus
on expanding our market reach, which allowed us to tap into new customer
segments and increase brand recognition. By doing so, we not only
strengthened our competitive position but also created new avenues for
sustainable, long-term growth.

This year’s Annual Report reflects our adherence to the International
Integrated Reporting Framework (lIRF), a globally recognized standard for
presenting both financial and non-financial information. By following the IIRF
guidelines, we have been able to offer a comprehensive, multi-dimensional
view of our company’s performance. This includes not only financial outcomes
but also how we create value for our stakeholders across various fronts—be it
environmental, social, or governance (ESG) factors. The framework allows us to
present a well-rounded, transparent perspective on how we are generating
sustainable value, ensuring that all aspects of our business are clearly
communicated to our investors, partners, and other stakeholders.

Through this approach, we are better equipped to demonstrate how our
long-term strategies align with broader societal goals, while continuing to
deliver exceptional products and services that meet the evolving needs of our
consumers.

As we navigate the challenges and opportunities ahead, sustainability remains
at the core of our business philosophy. We are proud of the progress we’ve
made in enhancing our environmental stewardship, optimizing our resource
usage, and championing responsible practices across our value chain. From
reducing our carbon footprint to implementing innovative packaging solutions,
we are constantly evolving to meet the needs of a changing world.

In crafting this report, we have followed a set of core principles to ensure both
the quality of its content and the effectiveness of its presentation:
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INCLUSIVENESS

We have captured all relevant
aspects of our business,
incorporating material issues,
external factors, and our
sustainability initiatives, to

In crafting this report, we have followed a set of core principles to ensure both the
quality of its content and the effectiveness of its presentation:

COMPARABILITY

The report presents our
performance not only for the
current year but also in relation
to previous periods, offering a
clear narrative on how our

CONSISTENCY

The information provided aligns
with our internal controls and
processes, ensuring coherence
and easy verification, which
upholds the integrity of the

provide a holistic view of the strategy fosters long-term value data.
company’s impact. creation.
TRANSPARENCY ASSURANCE

Both the text and visual
elements are designed to
enhance the report’s readability
and accessibility, allowing
stakeholders to easily
understand key insights and
performance metrics without
ambiguity.

All financial and governance
data has been reviewed and
validated by recognized external
assurance providers, reinforcing
the reliability of the disclosed
information.

Our annual review of critical issues allows us to continuously identify factors that
could influence our ability to generate value in the short, medium, and long term.
These include both financial performance drivers and Environmental, Social, and
Governance (ESG) priorities. This report reflects on all material issues that could
impact value creation at Taufika Foods and Lovello Ice Cream PLC, ensuring that we
remain well-positioned for sustainable growth and responsible business practices.

The year 2024 marks another footfall in our journey toward delivering long-term
value for our shareholders, employees, and customers. Our strategic initiatives focus
on fostering sustainable growth, driving operational efficiency, and ensuring that we
continue to exceed customer expectations with our high-quality products.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to express our gratitude to all those
who have contributed to the continued success of Taufika Foods and Lovello Ice
Cream PLC. With your support, we are confident in our ability to navigate the
evolving landscape and create a positive impact in the years to come.

Md. Moheuddin Sarder
Company Secretary
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Welcome

Note From Our
Chairman

The year 2024 has been a remarkable testament to our resilience, bold
innovation, and steadfast dedication to quality and sustainability. In the
face of challenges, we not only persevered but thrived, emerged
stronger and more focused than ever. Our commitment to pushing
boundaries allowed us to expand our reach, enter new markets, and
strengthen our presence in the market, while staying true to our core
values.

Through it all, we have continued to craft products that not only meet
but exceed customer expectations, sparking joy and building deeper
connections with those we serve.

Sustainability is not just a goal but the lifeblood of our business. From
slashing our environmental footprint to embracing ethical practices, we
are determined to create a lasting positive impact. This report is a clear
reflection of our journey, providing an honest and vivid snapshot of
both our financial and non-financial milestones. It showcases the
strides we have made and the path we are forging toward sustainable,
long-term value creation.

As we venture into the future, | am filled with confidence that our
momentum will only continue to escalate. The dedication of our
exceptional employees, the trust of our valued partners, and the
steadfast support of our loyal stakeholders has been the driving forces
behind our success, for which | offer my deepest gratitude to all of
them. Together, we are not just ready for the future but set to soar to
even greater heights, with bold ambitions and illimitable possibilities
ahead.

Datin' Shamima Nargis Haque
Chairman

LOVELLO
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NOTICE OF THE
13" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given for the 13th Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of TAUFIKA FOODS AND LOVELLO ICE CREAM PLC
which will be held on Monday the 30th December, 2024 at 11:30 A.M. through Hybrid System in combination of Physical Presence
(Venue: Amari Dhaka, 47, Road No 41, Gulshan-2, Dhaka1212) and using Digital Platform (Link: https://lovello.bdvirtualagm.com)
to transact the following business:

Agenda:

1. To received, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement for the year ended June 30, 2024.

2. To approve dividend for the year ended June 30, 2024.

3. To elect/re-elect Directors in terms of the relevant provision of Articles of Association.

4. To appoint/ re-appoint statutory auditors for the financial year ended on June 30, 2025 and to fix their remuneration.
5. To appoint/ re-appoint Compliance Auditors for the financial year 2024-2025 and to fix their remuneration.

6. To approve the proposal to purchase shares equal to 50% of the paid up capital of Sharika Foods & Amandala Limited..

By order of the Board

Md. Moheuddin Sarder
Company Secretary 08 December, 2024

Notes: The proxy form must be affixed with requisite revenue stamp and be deposited at the Registered Office of the
Company not less than 48 hours before the time fixed for the meeting.

1. Members whose names appeared on the Depository Register as on the “Record Date” i.e. November 10, 2024, are
eligible to attend the Annual General Meeting (AGM) and receive the dividend.

. A Member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM may appoint a Proxy to attend and vote in his/her stead. A copy
of the “Proxy Form”, duly filled and stamped requires emailing at secretary@Iovello.club not later than 48 hours
before the AGM.

. According to the Bangladesh Securities & Exchange Commission’s Notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2016-158/
208/Admin/81 dated June 20, 2018 the Company will send the Annual Report 2023-24 in soft-copy format to the
e-mail of the shareholders available in their Beneficial Owners (BO) accounts maintained with the CDBL.

In case of non-receipt of Annual Report 2023-24 of the Company that will be sent through email, Members may
download the same from the ‘Investors Information’ section of the Company’s website: www.lovello.club. Login
process along with the joining link of the 13th AGM will be available at the ‘Investors Information’ section of the
Company’s website; members are requested to check the login details. Members may also send an email at
secretary@Ilovello.club for queries or assistance to join the AGM.

In compliance with the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission’s Circular No.: SEC/CMRRCD/2009-193/
154; dated: 24 October 2013, No Gift/Gift Coupon/Food Box shall be distributed at the upcoming AGM of the
Company.
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LETTER OF
TRANSMITTAL

To

All Shareholders

Bangladesh Bank

Registrar of Joint Stock Companies & Firms
Bangladesh Securities & Exchange Commission
Dhaka Stock Exchange Ltd.

Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited PLC.

Annual Report for the year ended June 30, 2024

Dear Sir(s)

We are pleased to enclose a copy of the Annual Report containing the Directors’ Report and
Auditors’ Report along with Audited Financial Statements including the Statement of Financial
Position as at June 30, 2024, Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income,
Changes in Equity and Cash Flows for the year ended June 30, 2024 along with notes thereon for
your record and necessary measures.

Thank you.

Sincerely yours,

Md. Moheuddin Sarder
Company Secretary

/
/
/
/
/
¢

\\\\\\

V0004

TAUFIKA FOODS AND LOVELLO ICE-CREAM PLC

09



Annual Report-2023-24

TOGETHER WE ARE
STRONGER

Board of Directors

Dato’ Engr. Md. Ekramul Haque Managing Director

Ruhul Ameen M.Com, FCMA Independent Director
Barrister Sajed Ahammad Sami Independent Director

Operational Management Team

Audit Committee

Ruhul Ameen M.Com, FCMA, Independent Director, Chairman of the Committee

Muhsinina Taufika Ekram Director, Member of the Committee

Muhsinina Sharika Ekram., Member of the Committee
Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Barrister Sajed Ahammad Sami, Independent Director, Chairman of the Committee
Muhsinina Taufika Ekram, Director, Member of the Committee

Mubhsinina Sharika Ekram. Member of the Committee

* The company secretary shall act as the secretary of the Committee.
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Kazi Zahir Khan & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Home Town Apartments (Level-15),
87 New Eskaton Road, Dhaka- 1000.

Compliance Auditors

Mujibur Rahman & Co.

Cost and Management Accountant
Saj Bhaban Suite C-30 (15TH floor)
27, Bijoy Nagar, Dhaka-1000

Legal Adviser

Md. Iftabul Kamal Ayan
Advocate, Bangladesh Supreme Court

Md. Humayun Kabir
Advocate, Bangladesh Supreme Court

Bankers

Trust Bank PLC
Millennium Corporate Branch
Shaheed Jahangir Gate, Dhaka Cantonment, Dhaka-1206

Pubali Bank PLC
Delta Life Tower ,(2nd floor), Plot #37, Road # 45 North &
90 South, Gulshan Circle-2, Dhaka-1212

Premier Bank PLC
Igbal Centre (2nd Floor), 42 Kemal Ataturk Avenue,
Banani, Dhaka -1213

Prime Bank PLC
62 Block - E, Kemal Ataturk Avenue, Banani, Dhaka 1213

BRAC Bank PLC
Borak Mehnur, 51/B Kamal Ataturk Avenue 4th and 5th
Floor, Dhaka 1213

Islami Bank Bangladesh PLC
Gulshan Branch, Gulshan Circle-2, Dhaka

Dutch Bangla Bank PLC
Borak Mehnur 51/B Kamal Ataturk Avenue 1st and 2nd
Floor, Dhaka 1213

Union Bank PLC
Banani Branch, Assurance Nazir Tower, Plot-65, Block: B,
Kamal Ataturk Avenue, Banani, Dhaka

\_

Mercantile Bank PLC

Mohakhali Branch

51-52, Green Delta Aims Tower, Mohakhali C/A,
Dhaka 1212

United Commercial Bank PLC

Gulshan Branch

Concord I.K. Tower (1st floor), Plot No.CEN (A) -2, North
Avenue, Gulshan-2, Dhaka 1212

City Bank PLC

Gulshan Branch, City Bank Center, 136 Gulshan Avenue,
Gulshan 2,

Dhaka 1212

AB Bank PLC
Banani Branch, House No0.88, Road No.11, House 50,
Block C, (1st-2nd Floor, 54 Rd No. 11, Dhaka-1213

National Bank Limited

Banani Branch

Sikder Center, Holding No.67/B, Road No.13/B (Front
Road No.11), Block-E, Ward No.19, Dhaka, Bangladesh

Dutch Bangla Bank PLC
Seed Store Bazar Branch,
Mymensingh

NRB Bank PLC
Classic Tower (1st Floor)
House No. : 1, Road: 11, Block: F, Banani, Dhaka-1213.

Shimanto Bank PLC

Shimanto Shamvar
(Level-7),Bir Uttam M. A.

Rob Sarak (Road No. 2),
Shimanto Square, Dhanmondi,
Dhaka 1205

Standard Bank PLC
Plot-98, Road-11,Block-C, Banani
Dhaka-1213

Shahjalal Islami Bank PLC
Ataturk Tower (1st floor ) 22 Kamal Ataturk Avenue,
Banani Dhaka-1213

Karnaphuli Insurance Company Limited
Eastern Insurance Company Limited
Met Life Insurance
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CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE

Dear Shareholders, Partners, and
Stakeholders,

Assalamu Alaikum,

| am honored to present the Annual Report of
Taufika Foods and Lovello Ice Cream PLC for
the year 2024. Reflecting on this past year, | am
filled with pride for what we have
accomplished together. This year has been a
vibrant tapestry of growth, innovation, and a
steadfast commitment to sustainability and
values that define our company.

The year 2024 has challenged us in many ways
while also opening doors to remarkable
opportunities. Our adaptability has
empowered us to rise above obstacles,
expanding our market presence and
continually enhancing the quality of our
products. With an unwavering focus on
excellence and creativity, we have solidified
our position in the food and ice cream industry,
delighting our customers with exceptional
products.

Central to our achievements is a steadfast
commitment to sustainable growth. We
recognize that true success goes beyond mere
financial performance; it encompasses our
profound responsibility to the environment
and society as a whole. This year, we made
bold strides to significantly reduce our
environmental impact, seamlessly integrating
sustainability into our operations and
championing ethical practices at every level.
These transformative efforts not only enhance
our brand’s reputation but also establish a
robust foundation for a future where
economic and environmental objectives are
not just aligned but thrive in synergy.

In this Annual Report, we present a clear and
comprehensive view of our financial and
non-financial performance, framed through
the International Integrated Reporting
Framework (lIRF). This rigorous approach
underscores our dedication to creating lasting
value for all our stakeholders, ensuring that we
remain accountable and responsive to your
evolving needs.

As we gaze into the future, | am filled with
optimism about the pathways that await us.
Our talented team, supportive partners, and
loyal stakeholders are the cornerstones of our
success, and | am confident that, together, we
will seize new opportunities and proficiently
navigate the challenges that lie ahead.

| extend my heartfelt gratitude to each of you
for your ongoing trust, support, and belief in
our vision. Together, we are poised to reach
new heights and create a lasting impact.

Warm Regards,

Datin' Shamima Nargis Haque
Chairman
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’S
MESSAGE

Dear Shareholders,
Assalamu Alaikum,

As we bring this year to a close, | am delighted to
reproduce on the remarkable journey Taufika Foods and
Lovello Ice Cream PLC has made in 2024. It has been a
year of transformation, not only in terms of growth but
also in harmonizing our vision with the ever-evolving
needs of the food industry. With each step forward, we
have embraced change and innovation, allowing us to
stay at the forefront of this dynamic landscape.

This year we concentrated on innovations that align with
today’s evolving lifestyles. Modern consumers are more
aware and discerning, looking for products that not only
deliver great taste but also support their health and
environmental well-being. In response to this shift, we
introduced a range of new products emphasizing natural
ingredients, lower sugar content, and options tailored to
specific dietary preferences. These efforts have
reinforced our position as a leader in delivering
indulgence with responsibility.

Operational resilience has also been a priority. In the face
of global economic uncertainties, we have streamlined
our supply chains, ensuring efficiency and minimizing
disruptions. Investments in advanced manufacturing
technologies have helped us enhance productivity,
improve product consistency, and maintain cost control
without compromising in quality.

Environmental sustainability is deeply embedded in our
operational ethos. This year, we have made meaningful
progress in reducing our carbon footprint by optimizing
energy use and introducing environmentally friendly
packaging. Our commitment to minimizing waste and
promoting a circular economy is stronger than ever, and
we will continue to explore ways to push these
boundaries in the years to come.

unwavering. We will further advance our sustainability efforts,
harness cutting-edge technologies, and seek growth opportunities
both domestically and internationally. Our path forward is defined
by ambition and a relentless drive for improvement, and | am
confident that, together, we will achieve even greater success.

None of these achievements would be possible without
the support of our dedicated team and partners. Their
passion and dedication fuel our continued success, and |
extend my deepest appreciation to everyone who

contributed to our milestones this year. Thank you for your continued trust and partnership as we look

forward to a bright and prosperous future.

As we set our sights on 2025 and beyond, our
commitment to providing innovative, premium products
that connect with our consumers will remain

Dato’ Engr. Md. Ekramul Haque
Managing Director
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PRESENCE IN
BANGLADESH
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OUR
VALUES

VISION

Our commitment is to be the
gentle melody of love in every
Bangladeshi’s heart and the
name 'Lovello' flows as softly
as the soothing flakes of snow
in all sphere.

MISSION

Taufika Foods and Lovello Ice
Cream PLC is dedicated to
producing and delivering best
quality products by fostering
continuous innovation in our
SKUs, operations,
communication, and
management ensuring that
the rich flavors and high
standards our customers
adore are always maintained.

CORE VALUES

At Lovello, we put passion into
every scoop as its foundation
is built on creativity,
authenticity, and excellence,
with a commitment to crafting
memorable experiences for
our customers. We believe in
bold innovation, ethical
practices, and bringing joy
through every bite of LOVELLO
ice cream.

—
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PRIMARY FOCUS AND
STRATEGIC OUTLOOK

Lovello, incisively attuned to the discerning tastes and demands of its customers, has embarked on a pioneering journey within
the ice-cream industry. Central to our ethos is the unwavering commitment to Total Quality Management (TQM) across all facets
of our operations. In this quest, we have unveiled an expansive array of ice-cream offerings, distinguishing itself from competitors
in the market. To date, we have introduced an impressive 58 distinct ice-cream creations, positioning us as a frontrunner in the
ice cream sales industry.

Our preeminent objectives revolve around stringent quality control and the maintenance of impeccable standards in our produc-
tion processes. Hygiene and product quality remain paramount priorities for Lovello. Furthermore, we remain resolute in our
dedication to delivering products that offer exceptional value for money, thereby ensuring 100% customer satisfaction through
the right products, precisely placed in the right market, at the right time.

Market segmentation through the provision of customized products exemplifies Lovello's unique policy. Simultaneously, we are
unwavering in our pursuit of sustained business growth. The principles of good corporate governance, lucidity, and accountability
guide our every action. Maintaining regulatory compliance is not a mere obligation; it is a testament to our commitment to
operating at the highest standards. Our pledge extends to the continuous enhancement of our product portfolio, fostering expan-
sion that aligns with market dynamics.

In strategically charting Lovello's trajectory for the introduction of new ice cream products, a meticulous and all-encompassing
market analysis becomes an imperative prerequisite. This involves an exhaustive scrutiny encompassing an array of facets, includ-
ing an in-depth evaluation of consumer behavior, a comprehensive assessment of competitors' strategies, and a penetrating
analysis of market penetration within the ice cream sector.

While our immediate concentration remains centered on the formulation of Lovello's ice cream distribution strategy, we
maintain a dogged cognizance of the myriad challenges, barriers, and intricate competitive dynamics inherent within the overar-
ching landscape of the industry.

TAUFIKA FOODS AND LOVELLO ICE-CREAM PLC




COMPANY’S
MILESTONES

2024

Lovello Declared
Record 20%
Dividend for the
shareholders

2023

Distributed BDT
100.20 Million as
12% Cash
Dividend

A

2015

Lovello
Ice-cream set up
a factory at
Valuka,
Mymensingh
and was
inaugurated on
December 19.

2022

Placed in “A”
category from
“N” distributing
11% cash
dividend

2016

Lovello officially
started its
journey on
February 14 on
the occasion of
Valentine’s Day.

2021

Date of Listing in
DSE & CSE on
February 2.

2017

Celebrated first
anniversary in a
befitting manner
on February 14.

TAUFIKA FOODS AND LOVELLO ICE-CREAM PLC

ice

2020

Date of Listing in
DSE & CSE on
February 2.

2019

First Business
Meet on
February 15.

2018

First Title sponsor
of Lovello
ki-Anondo in
October.

23
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LOVELLO
AT A GLANCE

Company Name

Taufika Foods and Lovello Ice-cream PLC

Incorporation Legal Status

August 07, 2011 Public Limited Company

Converted into Public Limited Company Incorporation & Reg. No.

July 08, 2019 C-94700/11

Date of Listing Authorized Capital

Tk. 1,000,000,000 divided by 100,000,000
ordinary shares of Tk. 10.00 each

February 02, 2021

Paid up Capital Registered office

Tk. 850,000,000 divided by 85,000,000 Bashile, Kathali, 6 No. Valuka Union
ordinary shares of Tk. 10.00 each Parishad Valuka, Mymensingh.

Registered Office Telephone & FAX Corporate Office

Telephone: 02-222261286 Plot-80, Road-2, Banani (Chairman Bari),
Fax: 02-222264289 Dhaka-1213.

Corporate Office Telephone & FAX Factory Address

Telephone: 02-222261286 Bashile, Kathali, 6 No. Valuka Union
Fax: 02-222264289 Parishad Valuka, Mymensingh.

Factory/Project Telephone & FAX Website

Telephone: 01841102530
Fax: 02-9841289

www.lovello.club

Email

lovello@lovello.club
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BUSINESS
PRINCIPLES

Though not stringent but genuine principles are the maiden priority for Taufika Foods and Lovello Ice-cream PLC and the company
is the connoisseur of maintaining unique principles strictly. The corporate business principles being at the focal point of its
company reflect the basic ideas of justice, sincerity and a concern for folks and families, communities including quality, innovation,
commitment, health and safety, delectability. LOVELLO’s internal rules run on strict compliance with the law and guide the actions
even if the law is more indulgent or where there is no applicable law at all. Upholding compliance goes beyond keeping checklists.
It requires steadfast principles that apply across the whole company and provide clear guidance for all employees.

The company believes the key to its success is Lovello’s Six Principles of Quality, Liability, Mutuality, Modernization, Commitment

and Freedom.

Quality

The consumers are the boss of our
company and we will not
compromise on our standards.
Lovello’s Quality Policy creates a
shared platform for quality standards
in both the Pharmaceutical and
Diagnostics businesses. Consumers
recognize and appreciate our
commitment to quality. Quality is a
common interest and an important
factor in our success — one that
guarantees satisfied customers.
Lovello’s quality policy is a
commitment to our customers and
other interest groups.

Modernization

Growth of ice-cream production for
different weather is no longer urged
nowadays. So modernization and
innovation are the brotherly facts
inscribed at the heart of Lovello. To
keep the markets stocked, Lovello is
stepping up and able to expand sales
of its ice cream across the country.
LOVELLO becoming the most
demanding ice cream in the market,
it has taken initiatives in increasing
its distribution and logistics
capabilities in line with its strategies
through sincere innovation. We do
not mislead our customers about
our products and the customers, we
do believe, have no complaints
against our delectable products.

Liability

All our coworkers take liability for
results and exercise scheme and
verdict while making decisions. As
part of our commitment to the
industry, our management team in
the meantime met with
congressional leaders to discuss our
responsibility in leading important
industry issues as part of the Annual
General Meeting.

Commitment

Stern commitment is making Lovello
successful over time. We never
deviate to earn the trust of our
employees, consumers, customers,
suppliers, shareholders and wider
society. This depends on us acting
with integrity at all times and
upholding our commitments. Trust in
our company, products, services and
brands can only be built consistently
step by step. This is why we take
decisions with a long-term view,
while ensuring we meet our
commitments today. Our
commitment is to never compromise
on the safety of any product.

TAUFIKA FOODS AND LOVELLO ICE-CREAM PLC

Mutuality

We believe the standard by which
our business relationships should be
measured is the degree to which
mutual benefits are created. We
assemble strong partnerships with
our suppliers, customers, consumers
and acquaintances. Persistently we
look for ways to improve
effectiveness and efficiency, and to
reduce waste. We are proud to say
that our manufacturing facility is
now 100% pure and fresh. We use
problem solving as a way to identify
opportunities for improvement and
focus resources where needed.

Freedom

To shape our future, Lovello believes
in freedom and as one of the world’s
largest family-owned corporations,
this independence enables our
company to achieve growth and
prosperity. Lovello is dreaming of
building a business based on the
philosophy of a “mutual benefits”
for all stakeholders and this vision
helps us continuously improve our
management systems to guarantee
product quality and safety aiming for
zero defects. Lovello teams put the
principles in action every day,
making a difference for people and
the planet through our performance.
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ETHICAL
PRINCIPLES

In an era where ethical considerations have transcended being merely desirable to becoming a fundamental pillar of business
operations, Lovello Ice Cream reaffirms its stanch commitment to uphold and promote ethical philosophy. At Lovello, we proudly
adhere to the highest standards of corporate conduct, unwaveringly complying with all relevant antitrust, competition, and fair
dealing laws. We persistently reject any engagement in anticompetitive practices and work systematically to ensure that our
business practices are aligned with the principles of fair competition. As we endeavor to craft our annual report, we take this
opportunity to shed light on the ethical foundations that guide our actions and define our corporate character.

Our Core Ethical Philosophy

c INTEGRITY AND TRANSPARENCY

9 CUSTOMER-CENTRIC APPROACH

Integrity forms the bedrock of our ethical framework. We are At Lovello, we view ethical
business practices as
synonymous with a
customer-centric approach. We
prioritize the satisfaction and
well-being of our customers,
ensuring that our products meet
the highest standards of quality
and safety. This commitment
extends to providing transparent
and accurate product
information.

committed to conducting our business with the utmost honesty,
fairness, and transparency. Our stakeholders can trust us to
always adhere to the highest ethical standards in every facet of
our operations. Integrity is the cornerstone of our business
conduct. We demand absolute honesty and ethical behavior
from all employees. We believe that integrity is not merely an
option; it is an essential component of our character. In a
landscape where shortcuts may beckon and compromise may
seem tempting, Lovello remains resolute in its unwavering
dedication to the principles of integrity. We hold ourselves to
the highest ethical standard, not because it is convenient, but
because it is the right thing to do. In this commitment, we find

our strength, our identity, and the assurance that our every
\action is rooted in the bedrock of integrity.

ENVIRONMENTAL

9 STEWARDSHIP

Our environmental
responsibility is not just a
corporate obligation; it's a
moral imperative. We take
proactive measures to
minimize our ecological
footprint, from sustainable
sourcing of ingredients to
energy-efficient production
processes. Lovello is
dedicated to contributing
positively to the
\environment we all share.

206 ‘ TAUFIKA FOODS AND LOVELLO ICE-CREAM PLC

e SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY

At Lovello, we view ethical
business practices as
synonymous with a
customer-centric approach.
We prioritize the satisfaction
and well-being of our
customers, ensuring that our
products meet the highest
standards of quality and
safety. This commitment
extends to providing

\product information.

transparent and accurate j

N J

FAIR LABOR
PRACTICES

©

Our workforce is the
heartbeat of our
organization, and we pledge
to treat all employees with
dignity and respect. Fair
compensation, equal
opportunities, and safe
working conditions are
non-negotiable elements of
our ethical labor practices.

N J




Code of Business Conduct

At Lovello, our Code of Business Conduct stands as an unequivocal testament to our unwavering commitment to excellence in
every facet of our operations. This code delineates non-negotiable minimum standards governing key areas of employee behavior,

encompassing:

1. Compliance with Laws: 2. Conflicts of Interests: 3. Bribery and Corruption:

Lovello holds steadfast to its duty
of upholding the law. We insist
upon strict compliance with all
applicable laws and regulations,
ensuring that our operations
remain well within the bounds of
legal and ethical standards.

N

We are acutely aware of the
potential pitfalls of conflicts of
interest. Lovello takes proactive
measures to identify, disclose,
and meticulously resolve any
conflicts of interest, fostering an
environment of fairness and
transparency.

Lovello unequivocally prohibits
all forms of bribery and
corruption. We extend this
prohibition not only to our
employees but also to our service
providers and agents, leaving no
room for any conduct that could
even remotely suggest or appear
to be associated with such illicit
activities.

J

Our Code of Business Conduct is not merely a document; it is a living testament to our dedication to building trust and credibility
within our organization. We are committed to cultivating a culture of open and honest communication, both internally among our
employees and externally with our valued clients. This code reflects our unwavering resolve to uphold the highest standards of

ethics and integrity, setting the gold standard for how we conduct business at Lovello.

As we reflect on the past year, Lovello Ice Cream takes pride in the ethical foundation upon which our success is built. We remain
dedicated to fostering a corporate culture that not only embraces these ethical principles but also seeks to continually improve
upon them. Our commitment to ethics is not a static declaration; it is a dynamic, ongoing journey towards excellence and

responsible corporate citizenship.

TAUFIKA FOODS AND LOVELLO ICE-CREAM PLC ' 27



Annual Report-2023-24

28

Particulars

(A) Sales

(B) Cost of Goods Sold
(C) Gross Profit (A-B)

(D) Operating Expenses
Administrative Expenses
Marketing Expenses

(E) Operating Income (C-D)

(F) Financial Expenses

(G) Profit Before Other

Income (E-F)

(H) Other Income
(1) Net Profit Before WPPF

(J) Provision for WPPF

(K) Net Profit Before Tax (I-J)

(L) Income Tax Expense
Current Tax
Deferred Tax

(M) Net Profit After Tax (K-L)

FIVE YEARS
FINANCIAL SUMMARY

June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022 June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020
992,132,243 943,667,285 960,385,039 850,801,390 942,869,150
577,935,197 558,930,279 557,319,210 494,909,633 552,392,597
414,197,046 384,737,006 403,065,829 355,891,757 390,476,553
141,034,522 143,284,585 141,143,960 139,688,077 149,280,037

15,378,844 16,687,750 17,101,509 16,231,797 18,701,781
125,655,678 126,596,834 124,042,451 123,456,281 130,578,256
273,162,525 241,452,422 261,921,869 216,203,680 241,196,516
128,225,191 116,877,787 120,022,392 118,035,700 155,147,618
144,937,334 124,574,634 141,899,478 98,167,980 86,048,898

14,887,562 13,590,518 12,051,004 3,598,895 3,455,781
159,824,896 138,165,152 153,950,482 101,766,874 89,504,679

7,610,709 6,579,293 7,330,975 4,846,042 4,262,128
152,214,186 131,585,859 146,619,507 96,920,833 85,242,551

30,442,837 26,321,934 25,024,497 1,912,957 23,189,490

37,752,395 11,639,189 13,362,639 18,794,777 21,733,994

(7,309,558) 14,682,745 11,661,858 -16,881,820 1,455,496
121,771,349 105,263,926 121,595,010 95,007,875 62,053,062
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Financial Graph: Financial graph will show our Revenue,
GP & NPAT five years.
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Our Performance:
Revenue Growth Show of Last five years.
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In the realm of business, embracing risk is an inherent aspect of progression. However, it is imperative to strike a delicate
equilibrium between pursuing our objectives and meticulously preparing to navigate the risks we willingly encounter. At Lovello,
our basic commitment lies in conducting our business operations in a manner that is both socially responsible and sustainable. In

this context, risk management assumes paramount importance, encompassing the meticulous processes of identification,
analysis, and either acceptance or mitigation of uncertainty inherent in our investment decisions.

Effective risk management stands as the linchpin that enables us to attain our objectives with unwavering efficiency and efficacy.
It serves as the linchpin for ensuring the consistency of our financial reporting and our unwavering compliance with the manifold
laws and regulations governing our industry.

Board Oversight and Risk Appetite

The oversight of our risk management endeavors is entrusted to our esteemed Board of Directors. Annually, or in response to
unforeseen shifts in the risk landscape, the Board evaluates our risk appetite and conducts a comprehensive assessment of key
risks. This rigorous scrutiny ensures that our risk exposure remains harmonious with Lovello's overarching strategy, business
environment, regulatory framework, and the expectations of our valued stakeholders.

Risk Categories and Mitigation Strategies

Within the domain of ice cream production, several risk categories warrant our vigilant attention, ranging from operational and
liquidity risks to price fluctuations, credit risks, market dynamics, and sustainability and environmental impact.

e Operational Risk: We acknowledge the potential ramifications of operational disruptions, such as labor disputes or wage
demands. To mitigate this risk, we are unwavering in our commitment to fostering a harmonious work environment and
offering attractive remuneration packages, thereby minimizing the potential for employee unrest.

e Liquidity Risk: The risk stemming from illiquid assets or liabilities is something we mitigate through vigilant cash flow
management, optimization of working capital, and the maintenance of unused financing facilities. These measures provide us
with the flexibility to meet future contingencies seamlessly.

e Price Fluctuation Risk: We actively manage this risk through diligent risk management procedures, where costs and benefits
of hedging are carefully evaluated to ensure efficient resource allocation in our ice cream production.

e Credit Risk: To mitigate credit risk, we diligently assess the creditworthiness of our clients and maintain personal security
agreements with dealers, thus ensuring control and risk mitigation. In summary, our approach to mitigating credit risk is
characterized by a combination of rigorous creditworthiness assessments, the implementation of personal security
agreements, and a vigilant approach to control and risk mitigation. These multifaceted measures collectively bolster our
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31



Annual Report-2023-24

financial stability and underscore our commitment to responsible and sustainable business practices.

e Risk in Second Hand or Reconditioned Machinery: Recognizing the potential impact on profitability, we have procured
primary capital machinery from reputable sources, thereby minimizing the risk of obsolescence and maintenance issues.

e Adverse Effect on Future Cash Flow: We anticipate future cash flow requirements by planning for loan interest obligations and
thereby ensure a continuous and uninterrupted flow of funds. We adopt a forward-thinking approach by meticulously
forecasting and preparing for future cash flow needs, especially in terms of meeting our loan interest obligations. This prudent
financial strategy not only guarantees the unimpeded flow of funds but also reinforces our financial resilience, ensuring we
navigate potential challenges with confidence and stability.

¢ Financial Weakness Risk: Our consistent sales growth and profitability bolster our resilience against financial weakness risk,
ensuring our ability to meet loan obligations and sustain future growth.

¢ Investment Risk: The upward course of our profit margins over the years positions us as an attractive investment option,
offering a compelling alternative to other investment avenues. Our resilience, sustained profitability, and firm dedication to
delivering quality make Lovello an appealing investment choice. We stand as a testament to our industry, offering an
investment opportunity that is not only profitable but also synonymous with enduring excellence and value creation.

¢ Interest Rate Risk: Interest rate risk, an external factor of concern, arises from the prospect of unfavorable fluctuations in
interest rates. These fluctuations can be triggered by shifts in government monetary policies and heightened demand for loans
and investments, often resulting in elevated interest rates. Typically, companies with floating rate loans are most susceptible to

the impact of such rate hikes. However, it's noteworthy that our company has astutely opted for fixed interest rate loans from
banks. This strategic choice has enabled us to maintain a consistent track record of timely loan repayment. By adhering to this
prudent financial approach, we have effectively mitigated the potential adverse effects of interest rate fluctuations, thereby
safeguarding our financial stability.

¢ Industry Risk: With growing market demand for ice cream in Bangladesh, competitive forces remain harmonious, eliminating
any undue threat of price wars or drastic price reductions.

The ice cream industry in Bangladesh is thriving with an established market size of Tk. 2000.00 crore. However, this market is
primarily dominated by five existing companies, accounting for Tk. 1200.00 crore of this industry. This leaves a substantial gap of
approximately Tk. 800.00 crore in the market, signaling significant untapped potential.

Furthermore, the demand for ice cream in Bangladesh is on a steady rise, with a growth rate of 20% annually. Remarkably, the
current industry landscape is characterized by healthy competition, both from local and foreign entities. Despite this, no
organization is inclined to engage in aggressive price reductions; as such a strategy could jeopardize their survival.

Several factors contribute to the gradual growth of the ice cream industry in Bangladesh:

Favorable Weather: The climatic conditions in Bangladesh are conducive to year-round ice cream consumption.

Skilled Workforce: The availability of skilled human resources within the ice cream industry ensures high-quality production.
Increasing Popularity: Ice cream continues to gain popularity across all age groups, further fueling the industry's growth.

In essence, the ice cream market in Bangladesh presents a promising landscape with untapped potential, driven by increasing
demand and favorable market dynamics.

e Tech Risk: We proactively adapt to technological advancements within the ice cream industry, regularly maintaining and
upgrading equipment to ensure operational efficiency.

e Market Risk: The burgeoning popularity of ice cream in our country and our expansive product range minimize market risk,
while prudent brand management fortifies our customer base.

Lovello remains fanatical to preserve and augment its brand value, cultivating resilience, fostering emotional connections with
stakeholders, and upholding industry, regulatory, and general standards of significance. Our commitment to excellence is untiring,
ensuring that we navigate the complex terrain of risks with unwavering poise and purpose.
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VALUE GENERATION
AND SUSTAINABLE
ONGEVITY

oo

‘

Our unwavering dedication to generate value is deeply rooted in our ability to seize opportunities emerging from ever-changing
environmental and social dynamics. We are resolute in our commitment to harness the resources of our company to both shore
up profitability and, in parallel, contribute meaningfully to society, all while championing sustainability as a foundational principle.
In today's fiercely competitive market, neglecting to provide substantial value to our customers can lead to a precarious decline.
Therefore, it is imperative that businesses reimagine their strategies for value creation, expanding their horizons and innovating
to flourish in the unpredictable and ever-evolving landscape of tomorrow. In this realm where sustainability and profitability
seamlessly intertwine, it is not only a matter of prudence but also a fiduciary obligation for enterprises to address the impending
challenges posed by climate change.

Our three elementary pillars for enduring value creation are Focus and Brand Perception, Environment, and High-Quality
Employment Practices.

FOCUS AND BRAND PERCEPTION

Consumers exhibit an inclination to patronize brands that align with their own values and principles. Hence, our concerted focus
rests on brands that actively contribute to the community or champion noteworthy causes, thereby forging a profound
connection with our target audience. Our ultimate goal is to cultivate brand value and brand equity. Brand equity encompasses
the extra value a company garners from products bearing a recognizable name, as opposed to their generic counterparts. Our
aspiration is to nurture a robust brand equity, wherein our customers, when confronted with purchasing choices, feel emboldened
and gratified in selecting the LOVELLO brand. Consequently, we posit that customers influenced by products boasting elevated
brand equity are more inclined to opt for them, even if they command a premium over generic alternatives.

ENVIRONMENT

Within the purview of our business operations, value creation intrinsically melds with sustainability. In this context, the
environment plays a pivotal role in our value proposition by responding proactively to energy challenges and imperatives.

Water and Chemical Management:
By reframing water investments as catalysts for business growth, we aim to galvanize greater private sector engagement in
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addressing water-related challenges. Notably, LOVELLO boasts an efficient Effluent Treatment Plant (ETP), operating under the
auspices of Vietnam Technology. This bio-chemical marvel, with a capacity of 10,000 liters per hour, is purposefully designed to
uphold ecological equilibrium and foster overall environmental amelioration. It merits mention that the Department of
Environment (DOE) of the Bangladesh Government conducts thrice-annual visits to our ETP. Following rigorous assessments of
processes and discharged water quality, DOE bestows an Environmental Clearance Certificate (ECC) upon us. Our commitment to
chemical management transcends regulatory compliance and potential fines; it embodies our solemn duty to safeguard our
planet and its finite resources from both immediate and long-term chemical hazards. It underscores the imperative of prudent
control and management of risks associated with chemical usage, storage, and disposal.

Energy Preservation:

Energy efficiency constitutes a paramount concern for our company, given the energy-intensive nature of our ice cream
production process. While ice cream is inherently invigorating, the blending of ingredients like milk, dairy chocolate, sugar, and
vanilla beans necessitates substantial energy input. Electricity and compressed air serve as linchpins in the thermal and kinetic
processes spanning mixing, extrusion, deep-freezing, dipping in various chocolate coatings, and final packaging. Thus, energy
efficiency assumes paramount importance within LOVELLO. In this context, the Energy Savings Scheme (ESS) assumes pivotal
significance. ESS extends financial incentives to New South Wales businesses that invest in energy reduction projects, either
through new equipment installations or system modifications.

Water Management Actions

Waste management encompasses a spectrum of activities and measures indispensable for responsible waste handling, from
inception to ultimate disposal. This holistic approach encompasses waste collection, transportation, treatment, and disposal,
alongside robust monitoring and regulatory oversight. Its overarching objective is to deliver hygienic, efficient, and cost-effective
solid waste management without sullying the atmosphere, soil, or water systems. Within the scope of this review, waste sources
are categorized into three primary segments: municipal solid waste, industrial waste, and agricultural waste.

Municipal Solid Waste:

This category encompasses a wide array of materials varying in environmental toxicity, including paper, packaging materials, food
processing waste, oils, solvents, resins, paints, sludge, glass, ceramics, metals, plastics, rubber, wood, cloth, straw, and abrasives,
among others. The absence of a regularly updated and systematic database on industrial solid waste precludes precise
quantification of generation rates.

Agricultural Waste:

The expansion of agricultural production has yielded increased quantities of livestock waste, agricultural crop residues, and
agro-industrial byproducts. Prudent waste management in the agricultural sector can significantly augment farm operations by
promoting a healthy environment for livestock and reducing reliance on commercial fertilizers while enriching crop nutrient
profiles.

HIGH-QUALITY EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES

Taufika Foods and Lovello Ice-cream PLC has garnered acclaim for upholding superlative employment practices. Our recruitment
methodology exemplifies meritocracy, ensuring equal opportunities for all recruited employees, regardless of their background.
Our remuneration policy is designed with astute discernment, encompassing salary reviews, festival bonuses, performance
incentives, and the punctual disbursement of salaries. In essence, we espouse a fair and equitable wage framework. Our
workplace environment stands out as unbeatable within the industry, providing a platform for our highly talented cohorts to
showcase their abilities. We foster a culture of positivity, encapsulated in our constructive working environment. Moreover, we
conduct comprehensive internal training programs on a departmental basis, firmly believing that trained employees surpass
meritorious students in suitability.

In conclusion, LOVELLO extends gratitude to our collaborative partners for affording us the invaluable opportunity to glean
insights from their strategic deliberations. These encounters have enriched our understanding of navigating the dynamic interplay
between disruption and linear thinking, balancing societal demands against shareholder expectations, and discerning the
determinants of success and failure.
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MARKET VALUE ADDED
STATEMENT

The Market Value Added (MVA) provides a measurement of a company’s external performance in relation to its equity. It
compares the market value of shares and their book value. A positive MVA indicates that the company could add to the value to
the shareholders’ wealth.

Market Value of Shares Outstanding Note A 7,463,000,000 3,221,500,000
Book Value of Shares Outstanding Note B 1,221,424,360 1,099,653,011
Market Value Added 6,241,575,64 2,121,846,989

Market Value Added per Share (with regard to Share Capital as existing
Note A - Market Price per Share (as quoted in the stock exchanges):

13.43

Dhaka Stock Exchange Ltd 86.60 37.90
Chittagong Stock Exchange Ltd 89.00 37.90
Average Rate 87.80 37.90

No. of Shares Outstanding 85,000,000 85,000,000
Market Value of Shares Outstanding 7,463,000,000 3,221,500,000
Note B - No. of Shares Outstanding at June 30, 2024 85,000,000 85,000,000
Book Value of Shares (Tk. 10 per value) 850,000,000 850,000,000
Retained Earnings at June 30, 2024 286,424,360 249,653,011
Book Value of Shares Outstanding 1,221,424,360 1,099,653,011
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CORPORATE SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY

(CSR)

As its core business Lovello has been taking different
steps in mainstreaming CSR. We are passionate enough
to create meanigful societal changes using our values.
As a key priority, we use the concept of Social
Responsibility in an analytic structure and so we start
implementing actions that meet a tremendous range
of vital requirements by improving overall
contributions to the society. We have accepted CSR
practices in a structured manner through our
administrative vision so that our poor population
cannot become helpless.
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BOARD &
COMMITTEES

Board of Directors

Sl. No. Designation
1 Datin” Shamima Nargis Haque Chairman
2 Dato’ Engr. Md. Ekramul Haque Managing Director
3 Muhsinina Taufika Ekram Director
4 Muhsinina Sharika Ekram Director
5 Ruhul Ameen M.Com. FCMA Independent Director
6 Barrister Sajed Ahammad Sami Independent Director

Operational Management Team

Sl. No. Name Designation
1 Dato’ Engr. Md. Ekramul Haque Managing Director
2 Mustaque Ahmad Chief Financial Officer
3 Muhammad Razib Hasan Chief Strategic Officer
4 Md. Moheuddin Sarder Company Secretary
5 Engr. Md. Emdadul Kabir General Manager
6 Hamid Ullah ACMA Head of Accounts
7 Md. Mahfuzur Rahman Head of Internal Audit & Compliance|

Audit Committee

Sl. No. Name & Position
1 Ruhul Ameen M.Com. FCMA, Independent Director, Chairman of the Committee
2 Muhsinina Taufika Ekram, Director, Member of the Committee
3 Muhsinina Sharika Ekram, Director, Member of the Committee

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Name & Position

1 Barrister Sajed Ahammad Sami, Independent Director, Chairman of the Committee
2 Mubhsinina Taufika Ekram, Director, Member of the Committee
3 Mubhsinina Sharika Ekram, Director, Member of the Committee

* The company secretary shall act as the secretary of the Committee.
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PROFILE OF THE BOARD
OF DIRECTORS

Datin’ Shamima Nargis Haque
Chairman

Datin’ Shamima Nargis Haque is a multitalented business personality
and also an entrepreneur. She holds an academic degree in Econom-
ics. She has more than 25 years’ experience in business sector. She
has been involved with Taufika Foods and Lovello Ice-cream PLC as its
Chairman. She is also the Managing Director of Taufika Engineering
Ltd. a sister concern of Taufika Foods and Lovello Ice-cream PLC. She
plays a vital role for the advancement of the company as a Chairman.
She contributes significantly, in formulation of company’s operational
policies and implementation process. As part of her fiduciary respon-
sibility to represent and protect the investor’s interests in the compa-
ny, she is profoundly involved to ensure that, assets as well as the
human resources of the company are in good order. She always plays
a vital role in taking crucial decision for the interest of the company
on operational or managerial issues.
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Dato’ Engr. Md. Ekramul Haque

Managing Director

Dato’ Engr. Md. Ekramul Haque, aged 57, is a Civil Engineer,
MBA possesses more than 33 years’ experience in different
business sector of Bangladesh and Malaysia, where he moved
in early 90’s as a Director of BEL Construction Sdn Bhd, a
company incorporated in Malaysia. The company has great
contribution to the development of telecommunication and
energy sector in Malaysia. More than 2000 km of High Tension
Transmission Line and few hundreds of Telecommunication
Base Station projects were successfully implemented in Malay-
sia as well as in Bangladesh under the dynamic leadership of
Dato’ Engr. Md. Ekramul Haque. The in depth knowledge and
expertise in the management of large turnkey construction
project, development of telecommunication infrastructure,
power Generation plant etc. have made Dato’ Haque a
successful entrepreneur.

Dato’ Haque is now, the Managing Director of Taufika Group
consisting of Taufika Engineering Limited, Taufika Energy Co.
Ltd, Taufika Foods and Lovello Ice-cream PLC, Deltamarge Sdn
Bhd. Dato’ Haque has introduced the brand “LOVELLO” is the
new brand in the ice cream industry in Bangladesh and LOVEL-
LO is being produced and marketed by Taufika Foods and
Lovello Ice-cream PLC. “LOVELLO” has earned good name and
reputation within a very short period of time after its penetra-
tion in the market.

Taufika Group has an annual turnover of BDT 700 crore having
2000 staff in various departments under the leadership of
Dato’ Haque.

Dato’ Engr. Md. Ekramul Haque is also involved in several
community development and social welfare activities. He is
the founder of a few educational institutions, which offer free
education to under privileged children of the Bangladesh. He
was bestowed with the Gold Medal for two consecutive years
in 2009 and 2010 by Ishwar Chandra Bidya Shagore and Lalon
Academy for his outstanding achievement in the area of
commerce and industry. He has received a title “Dato”
conferred to him by the Sultan of Pahang state of Malaysia as
recognition to his contribution society and to the development
of Malaysia in telecommunication & transmission industry.

Dato’ Haque was one of the Sponsor Directors and shareholder
of NRB Bank Limited, a well reputed fourth generation sched-
ule bank in Bangladesh and served as the Chairman of the
Executive committee of the bank.

Dato’ Engr. Md. Ekramul Haque is a genuine businessman
having vast experience in the line of businesses he is engaged
in. He possesses excellent business acumen and the capability
to run any business ventures; he intends to get involve in, with
much efficiency and the capacity towards accomplishment.
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PROFILE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Muhsinina Taufika Ekram
Director

Muhsinina Taufika Ekram, having dual citizenship of Canada and
Bangladesh is the eldest daughter of Dato’ Engr. Md. Ekramul Haque and
Datin’ Shamima Nargis Haque, the Managing Director and Chairman of
Taufika Foods and Lovello Ice-cream PLC, respectively.

Muhsinina Taufika Ekram is now, pursuing her degrees in the field of Life
Science at the University of Toronto (UoFT), Canada. Before she got
admitted herself in UoFT, she completed her grade 11 and 12 from The
York School, Toronto under IB (International Baccalaureate) curriculum
where she scored distinction mark and been achieved “The York School
Award” commonly known as the student of the year.

Mubhsinina Taufika Ekram is closely involved in the company’s strategic
policies and regulations. She along with other members of the board
reviews and evaluates the executive decisions and coordinates the
activities related to environmental factors, like natural resources, human
resources, forms of economic system, economic policies, technological
development, capital formation and investment, monetary and fiscal
policies and situations of the market, where the company is in operation.

She oversees the process to obtain information from external
environmental factors and redirect the same to the key individuals of the
company in order to surmount possible hurdles and unwanted mistakes in
the process of achieving organizational goals. She is willing to engage
herself more effectively in the company’s affair after completion of higher
study.
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Muhsinina Sharika Ekram
Director

Ms. Muhsinina Sharika Ekram, having dual citizenship of Canada and
Bangladesh, is the younger daughter of Dato’ Engr. Md. Ekramul Haque
and Datin’ Shamima Nargis Haque, the Managing Director and Chairman
of Taufika Foods and Lovello Ice Cream PLC, respectively. Ms. Sharika has
been appointed as Director of the board recently upon getting her interest
to be involved into it. Prior to her appointment in the Board her elder
sister, Muhsinina Taufika Ekram also became a Director of Taufika Foods
and Lovello Ice cream PLC, a concern of under Taufika Group which is
named under her name “Taufika”.

Ms. Sharika is now, pursuing her graduation degree in the field of
Biomedical Science at the McGill University, Montreal, Canada. Before she
got admitted herself at McGill University, she completed her schooling
from The York School, Toronto under IB (International Baccalaureate)
curriculum where she scored distinction mark and was a top scorer.

Ms. Sharika is willing to be engaged herself more effectively in the
company after completion of her higher degree and desires to introduce
her thoughts for the growth of the business.
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Ruhul Ameen
M.Com, FCMA
Independent Director

Ruhul Ameen, M.Com, FCMA an experienced professional marketing
accountant and business manager in the manufacturing and export sector
with expertise in strategic planning, business development strategy
formulation and implementation. He received his Master of Commerce in
1981 from the University of Chittagong, Qualified as a Cost and Manage-
ment Accountant in 1983 from The Institute of Cost and Management
Accountants of Bangladesh. He has gathered vast knowledge in Financial
Management, supply chain, sales, marketing, distribution, customer
service, internal control and risk management.

Mr. Ameen has over 46 years of extensive experience of which four years
as Sr. Cost & Budget Accountant of Beximco Foods Ltd. Chittagong, three
years in Siam'’s Superior (HK) Ltd. Chittagong, as Chief Accountant & Head
of Commercial, three years in PMP International Company as General
Manager. He worked in Excelsior Shoes Ltd from Feb-1990 to May 2015 as
Marketing manager, Vice President and Dy. Managing Director. Presently
he is working in Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd as Managing Director.

He believes that, there is no end of self-improvement, which he always
focuses on. He aspires to contribute significantly, to the growth of the
company with his proficiency in the days to come.
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Barrister Sajed Ahammad Sami
Independent Director

Barrister Sajed is one of the most aspiring and well-regarded young lawyers in
Bangladesh having broad international experience in both contentious and
non-contentious matters. Coming from a family rich in legal heritage, Sajed is a
third-generation lawyer, having his father Mr. Justice A F M Ali Asgar, a Justice of the
Supreme Court of Bangladesh, as his idol. Sajed is qualified and trained in the US, the
UK, and Bangladesh, and has practiced law in multiple jurisdictions. Sajed is the only
US tri-qualified legal counsel with audience before the Appellate Division of Supreme
Court of Bangladesh. He moved to Bangladesh in 2008 after completing his clerkship
at the ICC’s International Court of Arbitration in Paris, France. Prior to moving to
Bangladesh, Sajed has had some excellent international arbitration experience
obtained in Washington DC. He has been involved in high profile cases, providing
legal advice in both a strategic and analytic capacity. He was hand-picked for a
particular role by his law professor, Co-chair of the Arbitration Group at Crowell and
Moring LLP. He was also a member of Litigation Practice Group of King & Spalding
LLP’s Washington, DC Office. Sajed writes for Oxford Press and has contributed in the
publication of a Practitioners’ Guidebook on International Arbitration. He has also
carried out research project funded by International Finance Corporation (IFC) and
DFID where he has explored the impact of international arbitration proceedings on
the investment climate of Bangladesh. Besides his legal practice, for his exceptional
spectrum of experience in fields of corporate governance and financial structuring,
the Government of Bangladesh appointed him as an Independent Director to the
board of directors of Power Grid Company of Bangladesh Ltd. (“PGCB”), a state
owned and the sole power transmission company in Bangladesh. Sajed has also been
appointed as an independent director of Desh Garments Limited, the first ever
garments manufacturing Company in Bangladesh and publicly listed company. Sajed
is also the Chairman and shareholder of Entrust Global Ltd. a leading provider of IT
and Infrastructure related services in Bangladesh.
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Dato’ Engr. Md. Ekramul Haque, aged 57, is a Civil
Engineer, MBA possesses more than 33 years’ experience
in different business sector of Bangladesh and Malaysia,
where he moved in early 90’s as a Director of BEL
Construction Sdn Bhd, a company incorporated in Malay-
sia. The company has great contribution to the develop-
ment of telecommunication and energy sector in Malay-
sia. More than 2000 km of High Tension Transmission Line
and few hundreds of Telecommunication Base Station
projects were successfully implemented in Malaysia as
well as in Bangladesh under the dynamic leadership of
Dato’ Engr. Md. Ekramul Haque. The in depth knowledge
and expertise in the management of large turnkey
construction project, development of telecommunication
infrastructure, power Generation plant etc. have made
Dato’ Haque a successful entrepreneur.

Dato’ Haque is now, the Managing Director of Taufika
Group consisting of Taufika Engineering Limited, Taufika
Energy Co. Ltd, Taufika Foods and Lovello Ice-Cream PLC,
Deltamarge Sdn Bhd, Dato’ Haque has introduced the
brand “LOVELLO” is the new brand in the ice cream
industry in Bangladesh and LOVELLO is being produced
and marketed by Taufika Foods and Lovello Ice-Cream
PLC. “LOVELLO” has earned good name and reputation
within a very short period of time after its penetration in
the market.

Taufika Group has an annual turnover of BDT 700 crore
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Managing Director

having 2000 staff in various departments under the
leadership of Dato’ Haque.

Dato’ Engr. Md. Ekramul Haque is also involved in several
community development and social welfare activities. He
is the founder of a few educational institutions, which
offer free education to under privileged children of the
Bangladesh. He was bestowed with the Gold Medal for
two consecutive years in 2009 and 2010 by Ishwar
Chandra Bidya Shagore and Lalon Academy for his
outstanding achievement in the area of commerce and
industry. He has received a title “Dato” conferred to him
by the Sultan of Pahang state of Malaysia as recognition
to his contribution society and to the development of
Malaysia in telecommunication & transmission industry.

Dato’ Haque was one of the Sponsor Directors and
shareholder of NRB Bank Limited, a well reputed fourth
generation schedule bank in Bangladesh and served as
the Chairman of the Executive committee of the bank.

Dato’ Engr. Md. Ekramul Haque is a genuine businessman
having vast experience in the line of businesses he is
engaged in. He possesses excellent business acumen and
the capability to run any business ventures; he intends to
get involve in, with much efficiency and the capacity
towards accomplishment.
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Mustaque Ahmad
Chief Financial Officer

Mustaque Ahmad is the Chief Financial Officer of Taufika Foods and Lovello
Ice-cream PLC. He has become a part of the Taufika family since January 2012. He
is overseeing the Group’s financial activities and operations as Group CFO.

Mr. Ahmad obtained his BSS (Honors) and MSS in International Relations from the
University of Dhaka. He started his career in banking with the first private commer-
cial bank in Bangladesh in June, 1994 as Probationary Officer. He has gathered vast
knowledge in banking operation in all respects during his thirteen and half years’
banking career.

Mr. Ahmad has over 28 years of extensive experience in finance & accounts as a
result of working in different renowned commercial Banks and business conglom-
erates.

His key responsibilities as CFO, include looking after all relevant aspects of the
Group’s financing, financial performance, stakeholder reporting, internal audit, tax
matters, strategic development of the company, liaison with the external auditor
and other corporate functions.

He believes that, there is no end of self improvement, which he always focuses on.
He aspires to contribute significantly, to the growth of the company with his
proficiency in the days to come.
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Muhammad Razib Hasan
Chief Strategic Officer

Muhammad Razib Hasan is the Chief Strategic Officer (CSO) at Taufika Foods and
Lovello Ice-cream PLC. He has an impressive track record of business development
in his credentials. He joined Taufika Foods and Lovello Ice-cream PLC on November
2017. His skills and experience have facilitated him to generate significant sales
numbers through analyzing the market trends, setting strategies for product-mix
and distribution network development, short-term tactics for penetrating into
different market-segments etc.

Mr. Hasan, an MBA along with a specialization in information system, business
analysis and decision-making process, has a progressive and dynamic corporate
career with 23+ years of experience in the field of Marketing and Sales. Prior to
joining LOVELLO, he worked in Taufika Energy Company Limited as Chief Operating
Officer (COO). In his long corporate journey he was a part of distribution business
of Nokia Mobile in Grameen Telecom and business development of Maximus
Mobile in Union Group.

He has extensive and diversified training in the sales of Mobile Phone devices and
team-building process. With his innate experience in relationship building, he
leads the LOVELLO sales team to provide excellent channel services for
enhancement of value propositions. His in-depth knowledge, experience and skills
have contributed to the advancement of the company.
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Md. Moheuddin Sarder

Company Secretary

Md. Moheuddin Sarder is a young and energetic professional guy. He received his
Master of Business Administration (MBA) from the University of Dhaka in 2018. He
completed his Chartered Accountancy Course in 2019 from The Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh. He Conducted and finalized audit of
financial statements/reporting of various Company’s, Autonomous bodies/corpo-
ration, non-profiteering organizations. Led audit discussions with various clients in
order to finalize audit. Carried out consultancy relating to tax, designing account-
ing and control system. He also carried out cost, management and self-audit for
various organizations like Rancon Motors Ltd, Rupali Bank Ltd, Aftab Feed Products
Ltd, Meghna Cement Mills Ltd, Brac International, Somatec Pharmaceuticals Ltd,
SKS LPG Mongla, Bangladesh Paper Mills Ltd, Coral Reef Properties Ltd. During his
6 years with the Lovello, Mr. Moheuddin worked to grow the company’s value and
directly supervised Initial Public Offerings. Mr. Moheuddin working skills and
expertise have played a significant role in the growth of the company.

He believes that there is no end of self-improvement, which he always focuses on.
He aspires to contribute significantly, to the growth of the company with his
proficiency in the days to come
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Engr. Md. Emdadul Kabir

General Manager

Engr. Md. Emdadul Kabir joined Taufika Foods and Lovello Ice-Cream PLC as
General Manager - Factory in March 2024, bringing over 19 vyears of
comprehensive experience in engineering, project management, and plant
operations within the ice cream and food manufacturing industries. Before joining
Taufika Foods and Lovello Ice-Cream PLC, he served as Chief Engineer at Dhaka Ice
Cream Industries Ltd. (Polar Ice Cream), overseeing the engineering department
with a focus on operational efficiency and technical excellence.

Throughout his career, Mr. Kabir has held critical roles in various notable
organizations, including Kazi Food Industries Ltd., Perfetti Van Melle Bangladesh
Pvt. Ltd., and Abdul Monem Limited. His expertise extends across ice cream
project development, refrigeration systems, and large-scale plant management.
With a Bachelor’s degree in Mechanical Engineering from KUET, he has a strong
technical foundation and has successfully led complex engineering projects,
implemented innovative solutions, and driven continuous improvements in
high-performance environments."
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Hamid Ullah ACMA

Head of Accounts

Hamid Ullah ACMA was born at Manikgonj in the year 1982 in a respected Muslim
family. He obtained Masters of Commerce degree (M.Com) from Jagannath
University (Under NU). He qualified as a CMA in the year 2023 (ACMA) of the
Institute of Cost & Management Accountants of Bangladesh (ICMAB). Mr. Hamid
Ullah ACMA has vast experience in the field of Accounting, finance; Costing,
Project Financing, Financial Reporting, Taxation, Corporate affair and Auditing. He
started his career as Officer-Corporate Finance of Ascent Group (Former SCHOLAS-
TICA Group), Dhaka in the year 2007.

Mr. Hamid Ullah ACMA joined Taufika Foods and Lovello Ice-Cream PLC as AGM
(Head of Accounts) in the year 2024. In his long career of services, he served as
Head of Finance in Ujala Paint Industry, Deputy General Manager-Finance &
Accounts of Saif Powertec-PLC (Listed Company in DSE & CSE) and also served in
different renowned company in different senior management positions in the F &
A department. Leading the Finance team, he has contributed significantly to
delivering excellent services to stakeholders. His impact on the growth trajectory
of Taufika Foods and Lovello Ice-Cream PLC is evident through his handwork and
experience. His unwavering commitment to excellence echoes through his leader-
ship, encouragement a culture of quality services. Mr. Hamid Ullah ACMA's strate-
gic vision aligns with the Finance team's continuous efforts to provide outstanding
services to stakeholders. He stands as a pillar of financial acumen, contributing
significantly to the growth and success of Taufika Foods and Lovello Ice-Cream PLC.
His leadership and expertise continue to be vital assets in circumnavigating the
intricacies of the financial landscape.
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Md. Mahfuzur Rahman

Head of Internal Audit and Compliance

Md. Mahfuzur Rahman has joined as Head of Internal Audit and Compliance in
Taufika Foods and Lovello Ice-Cream PLC in June 2024. He has served different
national and multinational companies as Head of Audit and Compliance since
2007. Before joining in Taufika Foods and Lovello Ice-Cream PLC. Mr mahfuzur
served as a Senior Consultant for PricewaterhouseCoopers Bangladesh Pvt. Ltd. He
is a Business Graduate with Master in Commerce. He’s highly experienced in Audit,
Compliance and Risk Management Capacities with 16 years of comprehensive
expertise in both corporate and development sectors. He has proven track record
of delivering strategic guidance and operational excellence to diverse organiza-
tions, ensuring compliance, mitigating risks, and optimizing performance. He’s
proficient in developing and implementing robust Audit frameworks, Risk manage-
ment strategies, and internal control systems to safeguard assets and enhance
governance standards.
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Dear Esteemed Shareholders,

| extend my heartfelt greetings to each one of you, brimming with enthusiasm and gratitude, as |, in the distinguished capacity of
the representative of the Board of Directors and Management, present before you the meticulously crafted Directors’ Report. This
comprehensive document, scrupulously curated with the utmost care and dedication, stands testament to our unwavering
commitment to transparency, integrity, and excellence. In the hallowed halls of our revered organization, a momentous event
unfolded on June 30, 2024, a pivotal juncture where the Board of Directors, embodying wisdom and foresight, convened and
endorsed the contents of this report. Within these pages lie not just words, but a narrative of our collective journey, a tapestry
woven with dedication, perseverance, and relentless pursuit of excellence.

Bangladesh Economic Landscape

In the backdrop of an ever-evolving global economy, Bangladesh stands tall as a beacon of economic resilience and growth.
Bangladesh, with its vibrant economy, has consistently showcased impressive growth rates, underpinned by a thriving industrial
sector, robust export activities, and a burgeoning middle class. The country's GDP growth remains steadfast, bolstered by diverse
sectors including textiles, manufacturing, and services. One of the key drivers of Bangladesh's economic success is its significant
investment in infrastructure development. The nation has embarked on ambitious projects, including the expansion of
transportation networks, modernization of ports, and the establishment of industrial zones. These initiatives not only enhance
domestic connectivity but also amplify our global competitiveness.

Bangladesh is increasingly recognized as an emerging market with vast potential. Its large consumer base, coupled with a growing
disposable income, presents a plethora of opportunities for businesses. Bangladesh's strategic geographical location and its active
participation in global trade make it a hub for commerce. The country's export-oriented approach has resulted in the expansion
of international trade relationships. The nation's economic landscape has undergone a remarkable transformation, positioning
itself as a significant player in the international market.

A Glimpse of Fast Moving Consumer Goods Industry

In the ever-changing tapestry of consumer habits, the Fast Moving Consumer Goods (FMCG) industry, especially within the realm
of packaged foods, is undergoing a profound transformation. This metamorphosis is intricately woven into the fabric of urban,
semi-urban, and rural life. A paradigm shift in lifestyle choices has propelled a surge in the demand for packaged and processed
foods, a trend that resonates across all segments of society. Bangladesh, with its vibrant and consumption-driven economy,
mirrors this change remarkably. The FMCG industry, acting as a barometer of economic progress, stands as a testament to the
nation's resilience and adaptability. The industrial landscape, once marred by a decline in manufacturing output, is now
witnessing resurgence, indicating a robust revival.

Within this bustling economic milieu, the ice cream industry in Bangladesh emerges as a true standout. Unparalleled in its growth
trajectory, this sector has defied norms and exceeded expectations. In 2024, the market for ice cream experienced an
extraordinary upswing which marked a phenomenal 95 percent increase compared to the previous year.

The surge in demand for ice cream can be attributed to various factors. The gradual return to normalcy, following the uncertainties
of the pandemic, played a pivotal role. People, reassured of ice cream's safety, embraced it with open arms. Beyond this, the
market's expansion mirrors the evolving lifestyles of the populace, bolstered by increased spending capacity, urbanization, and
improved access to essential amenities, including power grids, even in rural areas. In essence, the FMCG industry, with ice cream
at its forefront, symbolizes Bangladesh's unstoppable spirit. It encapsulates not only economic growth but also the spirit of
resilience, adaptability, and the unwavering determination of the Bangladeshi people. As we move forward, this dynamic
landscape promises boundless opportunities, where innovation and consumer preferences converge to shape a future that is as
promising as it is exciting.

Embracing change, driving progress, and savoring the sweet taste of success, Bangladesh's FMCG journey continues, illuminating
the path toward a thriving future.
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A Sweet Success Story of Lovello Ice-cream

In the heart of Taufika Foods and Lovello Ice-cream PLC. blossomed the much-loved brand 'LOVELLO'. Swiftly captivating hearts, it
soared to prominence, becoming a cherished ice cream choice nationwide. With battling fierce competition, LOVELLO's tenacity
prevailed, propelling it to new heights. This was possible due to the company introducing a large product line consisting of
premium and regular segment of stick, cone, cup, tub, and mini-series of ice cream, the latter of which has generated sales both
from urban areas as well as rural areas. LOVELLO's journey is not more than just frozen delights; it's a tale of sweet triumph and
solid dedication.

Commitment to Quality and Responsibility

At Lovello Ice-cream, our dedication to our customers transcends beyond frozen treats; it embodies a promise of quality,
convenience, and untiring commitment to your well-being. We understand the modern consumer's desire for products that align
with their values, and Lovello stands tall, meeting these expectations with every delightful scoop.

Our stringent adherence to international standards and ISO certifications ensures that each Lovello creation embodies the
essence of purity and safety. From the very essence of our ingredients to the innovative processes we employ, our pursuit of
excellence is ceaseless.

This commitment is ingrained in the very fabric of our team, reflected in every aspect of our operations - from sourcing to
manufacturing, marketing, and beyond. Behind the scenes, our Board of Directors diligently oversees the integrity of our internal
control systems, ensuring robustness in design and implementation. With care and meticulousness, our internal audit department
upholds the policies that guide us, providing a foundation of trust and reliability to our stakeholders.

Corporate responsibility, to us, means more than just business ethics; it embodies integrity, sustainability, and a deep respect for
all stakeholders. Our shareholders are our partners in this journey, and we pledge to uphold their rights, delivering unparalleled
performance and transparency. We, at the company, recognize that we have certain responsibilities to our clients, shareholders,
employees and to the communities in general. But the biggest contribution of the Company has to make the long-term
sustainability of its business. We value our shareholders and their rights. We are always committed towards our shareholders to
preserve their rights and to enhance their return as much as possible. We are not just employers; we are nurturers of talent,
advocates for diversity, and believers in a working environment grounded in equality, respect, and meritocracy.

Our journey wouldn't be complete without acknowledging our valued clients, shareholders, and supporters. Your confidence in us
fuels our passion, driving us to continuously innovate and excel. To the regulatory bodies, auditors, and every member of our
Lovello family, your dedication forms the cornerstone of our success. As we sign off on this report, we extend our deepest

gratitude for your trust and support. Here’s to a future filled with delectable moments, shared values, and enduring partnerships.

( 4 )

AUDITOR'S CERTIFICATE REGARDING MONTHLY
STATUS REPORT OF UTILIZATION OF FUND AGAINST
INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING (IPO) OF TAUFIKA FOODS
AND LOVELLO ICE-CREAM PLC FOR THE MONTH OF
JUNE, 2024

. J/

This is to certify that Taufika Foods and Lovello Ice-Cream PLC has received Taka. 300,000,000 (Taka Thirty Crore) only as Initial
Public Offering (IPO) proceeds through subscription from January 03, 2021 to January 07, 2021 in the separate Bank Account with
Trust Bank Ltd. Millennium Branch, Jahangir Gate, Dhaka Cantonment, Dhaka. Bank Account number is 0022-0320000775. In line
with the condition number 4, Part C of the consent letter number BSEC/CI/IPO-301/2019/278 dated on November 30, 2020 of
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC), fund utilization status as on June 30, 2024 is as follows:
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Purpose of Utilization

Allotment
as per
IPO (Tk.)

Total Utilization
of Fund up to
May 31, 2024

Fund utilized for
the month
of June 30, 2024

Total Utilization
of Fund up to
June 30, 2024

Unspent
Balance
(Taka)

1 | Acquisition of plant & machinery 90,365,003 65,134,138 10,337,854 75,471,992 14,893,011
2 Freezer purchase 57,849,847 46,836,567 12,452,024 59,288,591 (1,438,744)
3 | Vehicles purchase 20,564,250 27,005,948 - 27,005,948 (6,441,698)
4 Investment in depot to increase 13,220,900 - 6,660,002 6,660,002 6,560,898
5 | To meet up IPO expenses 28,000,000 27,764,472 - 27,764,472 235,528
6 | Bank loan repayment 90,000,000 90,000,000 - 90,000,000 -
Total IPO proceeds 300,000,000 | 256,741,125 29,449,880 286,191,005 13,808,995
7 Interest income - 1,826,745 501,167 2,327,912 2,327,912
8 | Source Tax - (393,593) (150,350) (543,943) (543,943)
9 | Foreign exchance loss & Bank charges - (192,817) 575 (192,242) (192,242)
Total IPO Proceeds & Interest 300,000,000 | 257,981,460 29,801,272 287,782,732 15,400,722
Income/ (Bank Charges)

Total unutilized fund excluding Interest Income/(Bank Charges) Taka 13,808,995/- (One Crore Thirty Eight Lakh Eight Thousand
Nine Hundred Ninety Five Tk.) only and including foreign exchange loss & Bank charges and Interest income Taka 15,400,722/- as
on June 30, 2024 is lying with Trust Bank Ltd. Millennium Branch, Jahangir Gate, Dhaka Cantonment, Dhaka (Account number
0022-0320000775). We have collected relevant information and required documents for all disbursements and we have also
checked all the relevant document related with the mentioned disbursements, Enclosed herewith the Status Report as
Annexure-A for utilization of fund which has been prepared by the management.

During the course of our certification, we have found that:

a)

b)

c)

The management of Taufika Foods and Lovello Ice-Cream PLC has transferred total amount of Taka 65,134,138/- for
Acquisition of Plant & Machinery in which Taka 53,294,735/- has transferred to Shimanto Bank Ltd. in Account No:
1001244000258 for opening L/C. All L/C has been settled the amount of taka 53,294,735/- and paid amount of taka
11,839,403/- to Naj Associates as Duty Expenses up to the month of June 30, 2024 from the allotment as per IPO.

During the month of June 2024, the management of Taufika Foods and Lovello Ice-Cream PLC opened L/C (Ref.
No.-236124010055) equivalent to Taka 10,337,854/- to import Brand New Capital Machinery: Packint Chocolate Refiner
Machine from the allocated fund for the Acquisition of Plant & Machinery from the IPO Bank Account which does not fully
match with the description of items, as stated in with prospectus for Acquisition of Plant & Machinery.

The management of Taufika Foods and Lovello Ice-Cream PLC has spent total amount of Taka 46,836,567 for Freezer
purchase in which the amount of Taka 37,018,500 has been spent for Local purchase from different parties and the amount
of Taka 4,020,200 has transferred for opening L/C to Shimanto Bank Ltd. in Account No: 1001244000258 for 470 Pcs Freezer
purchase thereafter Duty, Shipping Charge, Port charge and Others has paid total amounting Taka 5,797,867 to NAJ
Associates against the L/C upto the month of June 30, 2024.

During the month of June 2024, the management of Taufika Foods and Lovello Ice-Cream PLC has opened L/C (Ref.
No0.-236124010053) equivalent to Taka 12,509,000.00 (EURO 95,240.00) to import Brand New Capital Machinery:
Continuous Ice-Cream Freezers (Model: TEKNOFREEZE 1800 EL LP) from an lItalian company “Teknoice S.R.L” from the
allocated fund for Freezers from IPO Accounts. However, the company can utilize Tk. 57,849,847 for freezer purchase
according to prospectus. But actual expenses are Tk. 59,345,567 where the management need approval from BSEC for
exceeding the expense by Taka 1,438,744.

The management of Taufika Foods and Lovello Ice-Cream PLC has transferred Taka 9,146,752 for opening L/C to purchase
Vehicles from Shimanto Bank Ltd. in Account No- 1001244000258 and Taka 3,895,000 has been spent for Local Vehicles
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purchase from different parties and also paid Taka 13,964,196 to NAJ Associates against the L/C and Exise duty up to the
month of June 30, 2024 but according to prospectus approved amount for Vehicles purchase was Taka 20,564,250
management couldn't provide any approval letter from BSEC for exceed expenditure of Taka 6,441,698.

d) The management of Taufika Foods and Lovello Ice-Cream PLC has transferred Taka 6,660,002 for opening L/C ((Ref.
No0.-236124010054) to import Brand New capital Machinery: Storage Box for Ice Cream and In process Ice Cream Materials
from a Malaysian company namely, SAl cond Sales and Engineering SDN BHD from the fund allocated for Investment in
Depot. But in the Prospectus the supplier\s name is mentioned as “Yantai High Link Imp. And Exp. Co.” from China.

e) The management of Taufika Foods and Lovello Ice-Cream PLC has spent total amount of Taka. 2,77,64,472 for the purpose of
IPO Expenses up to June 30, 2024.

f)  The management of Taufika Foods and Lovello Ice-Cream PLC has Paid Taka 70,000,000 for repayment of Corporate Term
Loan to Shimanto Bank Ltd. In Account No. : 1001741000187 and Taka 20,000,000 has been paid to Lanka Bangla Finance Ltd.
As Lease loan up to the month of June 30, 2024.

g) The management of Taufika Foods and Lovello Ice-Cream PLC has been incurred Foreign currency loss of Taka 80,638 and
Bank Charge of Taka 96,102; Tk.9,45,681/- has been received as Interest Income and TDS on Interest income Tk. 129,273- on
IPO Proceeds accounts (A/C No. 0022-0320000775 maintaining with Trust Bank Limited) up to the month of June 30, 2024.

h)  According to the fund utilization monthly report of IPO Proceeds, report submition time line has been ended on January 31,
2023 as per Prospectus. We have received a letter from the company, reference no. PLC/SHARE/IUP/22 on dated December
26, 2022, where the company has applied to Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC) for 1st time, time
extention for 12 months up to January 31, 2024 and Company wants to utilize Tk. 65 (Sixty Five) lac in Vehicle purchase
instead of Investment in depot but BSEC has not approved the rectification and extension of time till to date.

The company has applied to Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC) for 2nd time, time extention for 12
months up to January 31, 2025 but BSEC has not approved the rectification and extension of time till to date

We also report that:

i. the expenses/utilization has been made in line with the provision of Initial Public Offering (IPO) documents except Tk.
10,337,854;

ii. the expenses/utilization made in line with the condition 4, part C of consent letter of Initial Public Offering (IPO);

iii. the expenses/utilization of Taka 256,741,125/- of IPO proceeds have been completed as mentioned time schedule/
implementation schedule as specified in Initial Public Offering (IPO) documents;

iv. the expenses/utilization made is accurate /for the purpose of the company as mentioned in Initial Public Offering (IPO)
documents; and

v. we also confirmed that: (i) expenses have been procured/ incurred by maintaining proper procedure as well as at a
reasonable price; and (ii) books and records including vouchers are found correct in support of utilization of Initial Public
Offering (IPO) fund.

Sd/-

Dated: July 11, 2024
Place: Dhaka

FAMES & R
Chartered Accountants
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Related party transaction

Compliant steps have been taken by the Board to avoid any conflict of interests that may arise, in transacting with related parties
as per the definition of IAS.

Events occurring after the reporting date As at the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any matter or circumstance
that has arisen since the end of the year 2023-24 that has significantly affected or may significantly affect the operations of the
Company, the results of its operations or its state of affairs, which is not already reflected in this report other than the following:

On October 17, 2024, Taufika Foods and Lovello Ice-cream PLC recommended 10 percent cash & 10 percent stock dividend. Details
of the recommended dividend during the financial year are disclosed in Note 39 of the Financial Report.

Dividend

The Company will be paying 10% cash & 10% Stock dividend for the year ended 2023-24. The Board of Directors in its meeting held
on 17 October 2024 recommended “10% cash & 10% Stock” dividend for the year 2023-24. As per article-89, Schedule-1 of the
Companies Act 1994, dividend shall be declared out of profit i.e. from current year’s profit and from previous years’ retained
profit. During the year ended the company has registered profit of BDT 121.77 mn.

Taufika Foods and Lovello Ice-cream aims to provide commendable and sustainable rate of dividend to its shareholders.
The Board of Directors confirms that no bonus share or stock dividend has been or shall be declared as interim dividend.
Contribution to the National exchequer and the economy

During the year 2023-24, the company contributed a total amount of BDT 4.59 million as Corporate Tax, BDT 210.82 million as VAT
& SD, in total BDT 215.41 million was paid to the national exchequer

Directors’ Responsibilities for Financial Statements

The Board is responsible to present a fair, balanced and understandable assessment of the Company’s position and prospect as
part of good corporate governance and to that end the directors confirm to the best of their knowledge that-

e the Financial Statements, prepared by the Management of the Company, present fairly its state of affairs, the result of its
operations, cash flows and changes in equity;

e proper books of account as required by the law have been maintained;

e appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of the Financial Statements and that the
accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgments;

¢ the Financial Statements prepared in accordance with IAS//IFRS;

e the Financial Statements prepared on going concern basis;

e the minority shareholders have been protected from abusive action by or in the interest of controlling shareholders acting
either directly or indirectly and have effective means of redress;

Accounting policies and maintenance of books of accounts

The Directors consider that in preparing the Financial Statements, the Company has used appropriate accounting policies,
consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates and that the International Accounting
Standards have been followed. In preparing financial statements, information has been obtained from the books of accounts,
which have been maintained properly as required by the applicable rules and regulations.

Observance of IAS, BAS, BFRS & applicable laws

The Directors have the responsibility for ensuring that the Company keeps accounting records which disclose with reasonable
accuracy the financial position of the Company and which enable to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act, 1994, the Securities and Exchange Rules, 1987 and other applicable laws. The Directors also confirm that the
financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the International Accounting Standards and other applicable rules
and regulations.

Fairness of the accounts

The Directors accept responsibility for the annual financial statements, which have been prepared using appropriate accounting
policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates, in conformity with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) and the requirements of Companies Act, 1994. The Directors are of the opinion that the financial statements give
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a true and fair view of the state of the financial affairs of the Company and of their profits for the year ended June 30, 2024.
Responsibility to Internal Control System

The Board of Directors is responsible to ensure that the system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively
implemented and monitored. In this regard, the board has taken proper steps and sufficient care in building a system of internal
control, which is reviewed, evaluated and updated regularly. The internal audit department of the Company conducts periodic
audit to provide reasonable assurance that the established policies and procedures of the Company are consistently followed. The
Audit Committee consists of three members from the Board of Directors. The Chairman of the Audit Committee is an Independent
Director

Risk and concerns:

The Board of Directors is in charge of determining the Company’s fundamental attitude toward risk while setting out the risk
principles as well as the level of risk exposure. The Board of Directors are responsible for formulating risk policies, determining
methods to measure and manage risk, setting commensurate risk limits and monitoring their performance.

Fundamental principles of Taufika Foods and Lovello Ice-cream PLC risk management philosophy are:

o Effectively managing and monitoring credit, interest rate, liquidity, market and operational risk and providing for appropriate
allocation of capital among the types of risk.

e Managing risk in a forward-looking manner and identifying and analyzing risks from the beginning with the help of steering risk
strategies, models and parameters.

e Creating maximum value for the shareholders, depositors and employees in long term.

e Being financially reliable and strong and establishing business relations with the stakeholders that will last for many years by
creating the image of a profound institution that will stay in business permanently.

e Complying with Companies Act, Rule and Regulations of BSEC, Listing Regulations of Stock Exchanges and other guiding
principles of BSEC.

Going concern

The Board of Directors has reviewed the Company’s overall business plans, strategies and is satisfied that the Company has
adequate resources to continue its operations in the foreseeable future. Accordingly, the financial statements of the Company are
prepared based on the going concern concept.

Corporate governance

Fundamentally, the conduct of the Company is guided by our core values, our code of ethics and a commitment to openness and
transparency. LOVELLO’s Board of Directors endeavors always to provide learned and strategic direction for the Company through
applying the highest standards of corporate governance practice. To this end, we comply with all reporting regulations and
requirements as defined in the Code of Corporate Governance issued by the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission.
Strengthening the policies and procedures by accommodating the changes in legislation and perspectives is our routine
application to protect the Company from risk and introduce new policies necessary to steer the company on right and clear
strategic direction. We work to ensure all governance matters are transparent to stakeholders as well as shareholders through
channels such as the Annual General Meeting (AGM), quarterly financial statements and this annual report. The Board of
Directors of the Company has always committed to maintain and practice an effective corporate governance structure

Directors to retire, re-appointment and biographies of the Directors-

As per Article 104 of the Articles of Association of the Company, one-third of the Directors of the Company are required to retire
by rotation at each Annual General Meeting (AGM). The retiring Directors are eligible to stand for re-election. In this connection
the following Directors will retire in the 13th Annual General Meeting and being eligible offered them for re-election;

i) Dato’ Engr. Md. Ekramul Haque

ii) Muhsinina Taufika Ekram

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee reviewed the nomination of the above retiring and newly appointed directors and
recommended the board for appointment. Accordingly, the board recommended appointment of retiring directors for re-election
as well as newly appointed director.
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Report on the compliance of the conditions of BSEC’s notification

In accordance with the BSEC’s Notification dated June 3, 2018, the Board of Directors are required to report on the compliance of
certain conditions. The notification was issued for the purpose of establishing a framework for ensuring good governance
practices in the listed companies for the interest of the investors and the capital market. The overall shareholding pattern and a
statement on the compliance with the BSEC’s conditions are given on Annexure-I| of this report.

Pattern and distribution of shareholding-

As on June 30, 2024 the paid up capital of the Company is Tk. 850,000,000.00 subdivided by 85,000,000 shares of Tk. 10 each
where the Sponsor/Directors Shareholders holding is 41.12%. The overall shareholding patterns of the Company as at the end of
the year 2023-24 is shown on Annexure-II of this report.

Corporate responsibility

Taufika Foods and Lovello Ice-cream PLC defines corporate responsibility as operating with veracity at all the times, sustaining the
Company's long-term viability while contributing to the present and future well-being of all stakeholders.

We, at the company, recognize that we have certain responsibilities to our clients, shareholders, employees and to the
communities in general. But the biggest contribution of the Company has to make the long-term sustainability of its business.

We value our shareholders and their rights. We are always committed towards our shareholders to preserve their rights and to
enhance their return as much as possible. Considering this fact the management of Taufika Foods and Lovello Ice-cream PLC gives
its best effort to:

¢ Keep standard operating performance that ranks among the best in the industry;

e Ensure effective corporate governance;

e Provide full and complete financial information;

e Give striking dividend.

We are committed to be equal opportunity employer, adhering to the highest social standards, the company seeks to provide a
superior working environment for its employees based on diversity and respect for the importance of the individual.

Business ethics

Our customer welfare comes first. We ensure understanding our client’s need, extending facilities to the right clients at just terms.
We care our clients to enjoy consistent continuous service wherever we operate. We have complained box for taking care of
customer complaints with highest priority. All our Board, Management and employees strictly follows regulatory guidelines,
instructions and all applicable laws, rules and regulations of the country.

Audit information

The Directors who held office at the date of this Director’s Report confirm that:

e So far as the Directors are aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the company’s auditors are unaware; and

e The Directors have taken all the steps that they themselves ought to have taken as Directors in order to make them aware of
any relevant information and to establish that the company’s Auditors are aware of that information.

Auditors

Kazi Zahir Khan & Co. Chartered Accounts have expressed their willingness to become the statutory auditor of the company for
the FY-2024-2025. In this regard the Audit Committee scrutinized and reviewed their proposals and recommended to the Board
to appoint Ahmed Zaker & Co, Chartered Accounts as the external auditor of the Company for the FY-2024-2025.

The Board in its meeting held on October 17, 2024 recommended the shareholders to appoint Kazi Zahir Khan & Co., Chartered
Accounts at a remuneration of Tk. 400,000 plus VAT.

The Audit Committee scrutinized and reviewed the proposals of Mujibur Rahman & Co., Cost and Management Accountant to be
compliance auditor of the company and recommended to the Board for appointment.

The Board in its meeting held on October 17, 2024 also recommended the shareholders to Mujibur Rahman & Co. Cost and
Management Accountant at a remuneration of Tk. 25,000 plus VAT as the compliance auditor for the year 2024-25.
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Our employees and environment

The Management of Taufika Foods and Lovello Ice-cream PLC believe that Human Resources of any organization can make the
difference in the Industry. Considering this thought the company recruits competent people, develop them as per the demand of
the time and situation, and retain them with competitive and standard motivation-award and retention policies and practices.

The Company is committed to creating a working environment based on the values of equal opportunity, diversity and
meritocracy. All the Company’s activities are reinforced by its governance structure, which complies with the leading codes of best
practices.

Product Responsibility and Customer Health & Safety

The Company believes that the modern day Consumers demand quality, convenience and value for money from the brands they
choose and all our products sold under the brand names of LOVELLO score high in this regard. The Company complies with
stringent international standards/ I1SO certifications for hygiene and food safety.

Furthermore, our prime focus on the highest quality standards run through all the functions in the Company from sourcing and
quality standard are maintaining from end-to-end covering to product innovation, manufacturing, marketing and are embedded
in the genes of our staff. Our well-equipped Quality Assurance and Research and Development laboratories help us to deliver our
promise of high quality products to our consumers.

Directors' meeting, attendance & remuneration -

During the year ended June 30, 2024 total 05 meetings were held. During this year, all of the Directors serving on the Board
attended were more than 80 percent of the aggregate of the total number of meetings of the Board of Directors. The attendance
in the Board and Committee meetings by each Director is given in Annexure-l on this Report.

Signing of Report

The Board in its meeting on June 2024 authorized the Chairman, Datin’ Shamima Nargis Haque to sign Director’s report and any
addendum thereto.

Acknowledgement

With hearts brimming with gratitude, we extend our deepest thanks to our cherished clients, loyal depositors, and esteemed
shareholders. Our heartfelt appreciation also reaches out to the Bangladesh Telecommunication Regulatory Commission,
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission, Dhaka and Chittagong Stock Exchanges, NBR, the invaluable backing from banks
and financial institutions, and the unwavering support from various government bodies and our esteemed statutory auditors.
Your positive suggestions have been the guiding light, shaping our path toward excellence. To our incredible employees, who
breathe life into our vision at every level of the company, we express our deepest pleasure and gratitude. Your dedication and
efforts illuminate our journey, turning challenges into triumphs and aspirations into achievements.

In every step we take, your support is the wind beneath our wings, propelling us toward greater heights. We treasure your trust,
and it fuels our commitment to delivering nothing but the best. Here’s to the shared success and the boundless possibilities that
lie ahead.

Warmest regards,

Datin’ Shamima Nargis Haque
Chairman
Dhaka: October 17, 2024
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PROFIT after tax
2023-24: BDT 121.77 Million
2022-23: BDT 105.26 Million

NAV
2023-24: BDT 1136.42 Million
2022-23: BDT 1099.65 Million

NOCF
2023-24: BDT 353.85 Million
2022-23: BDT 180.02 Million

EPS
2023-24: BDT 1.43
2022-23: BDT 1.24

Dividend

payout (Cash)

2023-24: 10% Cash & 10% Stock
2022-23: 10% Cash

Sales

2023-24: BDT 992.13 Million
2022-23: BDT 943.66 Million
Consist of 17 Depots
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION

Business Insight

Despite the chilling winds of several turmoil previous years, Bangladesh's economy stood strong demonstrating unparalleled
resilience akin to the creamiest, most enduring scoop of ice cream. Our GDP danced at a growth rate of 6.5%, a testament to the
nation’s unwavering spirit and determination. In the face of dynamic market conditions, Taufika Foods and Lovello Ice-cream PLC
have remained loyal in its commitment to innovation, quality, and sustainability.

Our strategic decisions, guided by the insights gained through extensive market analysis, have not only propelled us through
challenging times but also positioned us as industry leaders. Just like a scoop of ice cream brings joy to your day, businesses like
ours are dedicated to sweetening the world with flavors of progress and commitment.

We are sincerely stimulated by Bangladesh's journey, and it fuels our passion to create charming experiences and contribute to
this aloft path.

Taufika Foods and Lovello Ice-cream PLC under The Companies Act, 1994 vide Registration No. C-94700/11 dated August 07, 2011
was incorporated in Bangladesh as a Private Limited Company. The Company being transformed into a public limited Company
dated 22 August, 2019, commenced its commercial operation on January 02, 2016. The company got a chance to take its
corporate head office at Plot-80, Road-2, Banani (Chairman Bari), Dhaka-1213, Bangladesh and factory at Bashile, Kathali, 6 No.
Valuka Union Parishad Valuka, Mymensingh. The Company is an Ice-cream manufacturer and supplier in Bangladesh.

Blueprint of Business Excellence

Our strategy is meticulously crafted to not just meet industry standards but exceed them, setting a new benchmark for business
excellence. Our approach encompasses a series of deliberate and dynamic moves, all geared towards captivating our customers,
booming in competitive arenas, enhancing performance, and accomplishing our organizational objectives. Lovello’s strategic
framework serves as a beacon of corporate purpose and action, distinguished by its thoughtful planning and adaptable design,
focusing on:

e Maximizing Efficiency: Embracing strategies that yield maximum results and efficiency in every operation.

e Seizing Opportunities: Actively identifying and capitalizing on emerging opportunities in the market.

e Leveraging Progressive Technology: Harnessing the power of modern machinery and manufacturing technology to stay ahead
in innovation.

e Total Quality Management (TQM) Focus: Ensuring that every facet of our business adheres to the highest quality standards
through rigorous Total Quality Management practices.

e Setting Service Excellence Standards: Establishing a culture of service excellence, where every customer interaction reflects
our commitment to exceptional service.

e Precision in Market Timing and Product Placement: Delivering the right products to the right markets at the opportune
moments, ensuring a strategic market presence.

e Modified Market Segmentation: Segregating markets and customizing our products to cater to diverse customer needs
effectively.

e Customer-Centric Approach: Centering our focus on understanding and fulfilling the unique needs of our customers.

e Proactive Approach to Challenges: Anticipating and addressing challenges and threats with agility and innovation.

e Continuous Product Enhancement: Persistently expanding and refining our product lines to meet evolving market demands.

e Delivering Value and Satisfaction: Offering products that not only provide value for money but also ensure 100% customer
satisfaction.

e Consistent Growth and Retention: Sustaining and nurturing consistent growth while retaining customer loyalty through
unrivaled products and services.

e Strategic Positioning: Securing and maintaining an advantageous position in the market through strategic decision-making.

e Environmental Accountability: Taking proactive measures to curtail our environmental impact, reflecting our commitment to
sustainability.

In our relentless pursuit of market supremacy, our outreach endeavors transcend the ordinary, painting a canvas of unparalleled
engagement and innovation. Across a myriad of platforms, we masterfully weave our narrative, captivating audiences with a
symphony of sophistication. The digital realm, adorned with the vibrant hues of Facebook, Twitter, and Instagram, becomes our
playground, where we orchestrate compelling dialogues and forge enduring connections.
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At the helm of Lovello stands a management cadre, not merely equipped but adorned with a holistic framework of unparalleled
sophistication. Within this framework lies the wisdom to discern the faintest ripples of opportunity on the gigantic ocean of
business, the insight to dissect threats before they materialize, and the artistry to optimize every resource and fortify our
strengths. As we ascend the peaks of success, we don't just set standards; we redefine them, casting a brilliant, illuminating light
that guides the entire industry toward a future where excellence isn't an option but the only choice. In the grand tapestry of
commerce, Lovello isn't just a player; it's the maestro, conducting a symphony of unique brilliance and setting new benchmarks
that echo across the annals of business history.

1. SWOT Analysis:

For business excellence, we also follow a strategic plan and it is SWOT. SWOT is actually a business analysis occurred internally and
externally. SWOT of a company actually shows 4 major categorical analyses:

S —Strength

W — Weakness

O - Opportunities
T —Threats
Strength:

Our company has swiftly become identical with producing exquisite products, a testament to our steadfast commitment to quality
and taste. More than just a business, we embrace the power of diversity, inclusion, and continuous learning. Our people, the
heartbeat of our enterprise, represent our essence of strength. We champion the art of connection, fostering loyalty and motiva-
tion, creating a corporate culture steeped in engagement and warmth. Within our walls, an atmosphere of openness prevails,
nurturing a high-performance environment where our team thrives. We relentlessly pursue excellence, expanding our product
range to encompass a delightful array of flavors, party packs, sticks, cones, and mini treats. Our motivation stems from more than
just our products; it's cultivated by a dynamic and skilled management team that propels us toward boundless horizons.

Weaknesses:

Though started newly, LOVELLO is going on having less market share and crossing so many hardships to pierce into a new market.
The company goes with the tough competition in the market from international and national ice cream products. Moreover, the
four major facts are:

e Size of market is limited as the supply of the product is very difficult.

e Seasonal sales of the product.

e General problem faced by ice cream manufacturing companies like load shedding problem, damage return and untimely
delivery to retailers.

e (Credit facilities is not secured by land and building.

Opportunities:

In the bustling heart of major cities, our company is unfurling its wings, seizing the opportunity to expand its footprint. A delecta-
ble revolution is underway as the demand for ice cream and frozen delights skyrockets in hotels, restaurants, parties, and myriad
celebrations. With our commitment to quality at an affordable price, we find ourselves at the epicenter of a growing appetite. As
ice cream market is on the rise, the biggest opportunities for the company are

e Rising income, change in lifestyle party cultures.
e Large young population

e Hot summer.

e High economic growth and market liberalization.

Threats:

In the intricate dance of commerce, threats are the tempestuous waves that test a business's mettle. A ship adrift in placid waters
lacks direction; similarly, a business unchallenged by threats lacks the impetus for innovation and resilience. We navigate the
tumult of political transitions, the uncertainty of economic climates, the complexities of labor pricing, and the flickering lights of
load shedding that cast shadows on our path. Through analysis we have found some other threats in business:

e Low income population and threat of infrastructure.
e Economical and regulatory changes.

e Threat of substitutes.

e Local ice creams and sweet dishes.

e Health conscious people refraining from sweets.

TAUFIKA FOODS AND LOVELLO ICE-CREAM PLC ' 65



Annual Report-2023-24

These challenges, while daunting, are the crucible in which our resilience is forged. Navigating these intricate waters requires not
just a steady hand but also the innovation to adapt, ensuring our ship not only sails but triumphs amidst the storm.

2. Analysis of the financial statements of last five years with reason(s) of fluctuating revenue or sales, other income, total

income, cost of material, finance cost, depreciation and amortization expense, other expense; changes of inventories, net
profit before & after tax, EPS etc.

m - 30, -

66

June 30, 2020
(A) Sales 992,132,243 943,667,285 960,385,039 850,801,390 942,869,150
(B) Cost of Goods Sold 577,935,197 558,930,279 557,319,210 494,909,633 552,392,597
(C) Gross Profit (A-B) 414,197,046 384,737,006 403,065,829 355,891,757 390,476,553
(D) Operating Expenses 141,034,522 143,284,585 141,143,960 139,688,077 149,280,037
Administrative Expenses 15,378,844 16,687,750 17,101,509 16,231,797 18,701,781
Marketing Expenses 125,655,678 126,596,834 124,042,451 123,456,281 130,578,256
(E) Operating Income (C-D)| 273,162,525 241,452,422 261,921,869 216,203,680 241,196,516
(F) Financial Expenses 128,225,191 116,877,787 120,022,392 118,035,700 155,147,618
(G) Profit Before Other 144,937,334 124,574,634 141,899,478 98,167,980 86,048,398
Income (E-F)

(H) Other Income 14,887,562 13,590,518 12,051,004 3,598,895 3,455,781
(1) Net Profit Before WPPF | 159,824,896 138,165,152 153,950,482 101,766,874 89,504,679
(1) Provision for WPPF 7,610,709 6,579,293 7,330,975 4,846,042 4,262,128
(K) Net Profit Before Tax (I-)) | 152,214,186 131,585,859 146,619,507 96,920,833 85,242,551
(L) Income Tax Expense 30,442,837 26,321,934 25,024,497 1,912,957 23,189,490
Current Tax 37,752,395 11,639,189 13,362,639 18,794,777 21,733,994
Deferred Tax (7,309,558) 14,682,745 11,661,858 -16,881,820 1,455,496
(M) Net Profit After Tax (K-L) 121,771,349 105,263,926 121,595,010 95,007,875 62,053,062
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Annexure-1

Board Meetings and Attendance by the Directors

Attendance by the Directors in the Board of Directors’ Meeting in 2023-2024 are summarized and given below:

Name

Number of

Meeting

Number of
Attendance

(%)

1 Datin’ Shamima Nargis Haque, Chairman 5 5 100%
2 Dato’ Engr. Md. Ekramul Haque, Managing Director 5 5 100%
3 Muhsinina Taufika Ekram, Director 5 5 100%
4 Mubhsinina Sharika Ekram, Director 5 5 100%
5 Ruhul Ameen M.Com. FCMA, Independent Director 5 5 100%
6 Barrister Sajed Ahammad Sami, Independent Director 5 1 20%

Audit Committee Meetings and Attendance by the Directors

Attendance by the Directors in the Audit Committee Meeting in 2023-2024 are summarized and given below:

Number of Number of
SI. No Name Meeting Attendance (%)
1 Ruhul Ameen M.Com. FCMA, Independent Director, Chairman of the 4 4 100%
Committee

2 Mubhsinina Taufika Ekram, Director, Member of the Committee 4 4 100%
3 Muhsinina Sharika Ekram, Director, Member of the Committee 4 4 100%

NRC Meetings and Attendance by the Directors

Attendance by the Directors in the NRC Meeting in 2023-2024 are summarized and given below:

Number of Number of
SI. No Name Meeting Attendance (%)
1 Barrister Saleed Ahammad Sami, Independent Director, Chairman of 1 1 100%
the Committee

2 Muhsinina Taufika Ekram, Director, Member of the Committee 1 1 100%
3 Muhsinina Sharika Ekram, Director, Member of the Committee 1 1 100%
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Annexure-2

Shareholding Pattern

Position of shareholding of ordinary shares as on June 30, 2024

% of holding % of holding
Shareholder's Group Number of Shares 2023-2024 2022-2023
1 Sponsors 34,950,000 41.12 44.65
2 Foreign Investors Nil Nil Nil
3 Financial and other Institutions 14,739,000 17.34 19.51
4 General Public 35,311,000 41.54 35.35
Total 85,000,000 100 100

Distribution schedule of each class of equity security setting out the number of holders and percentages as on June 30,2024

Sl Range of Holdings As per BO 1D
No. No. of holders holdings percentage( %)
1 Less than 500 shares 2368 572,131 0.67%
2 501 to 5,000 shares 1023 2,061,615 2.43%
3 5001 to 10,000 shares 235 1,798,655 2.12%
4 10,001 to 20,000 shares 191 2,780,084 3.27%
5 20,001 to 30,000 shares 87 2,172,434 2.56%
6 30,001 to 40,000 shares 55 1,900,097 2.24%
7 40,001 to 50,000 shares 38 1,729,847 2.04%
8 50,001 to 100,000 shares 76 5,398,125 6.35%
9 100,001 to 1000,000 shares 66 19,267,357 22.67%
10 Over 1,000,000 shares 9 47,319,655 55.67%
Total 4148 85,000,000 100 %

A. Parent or Subsidiary or Associated Companies and other parties

No. of Shares Shareholding (%)

Taufika Engineering Limited (TEL) 8,049,655 9.47%
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B. Director’s and their spouses and minor children

\ET Status No. of Shares Shareholding (%)
Datin’ Shamima Nargis Haque Chairman 2,900,000 3.41%
Dato’ Engr. Md. Ekramul Haque Managing Director 27,000,000 31.76%
Muhsinina Taufika Ekram Director 2,050,000 2.41%
Muhsinina Sharika Ekram Director 3,000,000 3.53%
Ruhul Ameen M.Com. FCMA Independent Director -
Barrister Sajed Ahammad Sami Independent Director
Their minor children do not have shareholding

Company Secretary, Chief Financial Officer, Head of Internal Audit and Compliance and their Spouses and Minor children

Name Status No. of Shares Shareholding (%)
Mustaque Ahmad Chief Financial Officer - -
Md. Moheuddin Sarder Company Secretary - -
Md. Mafuzur Rahman Head of Internal Audit & . _
: Compliance
Their Spouses and minor children do not have shareholding

C. Executives and their spouses and minor children: Nil

D. Shareholders holding ten percent or more voting interest in the company

Status No. of Shares Shareholding (%)

Dato’ Engr. Md. Ekramul Haque Managing Director 27,000,000 31.76%
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CERTIFICATE OF
COMPLIANCE

Report to the Shareholders of Taufika Foods and Lovello Ice-cream PLC on
Compliance of the Corporate Governance Code

We have examined the compliance status to the Corporate Governance Code by Taufika Foods and Lovello Ice-cream PLC as on 30
June, 2024. This Code relates to the Notification No: BSEC/CMRRCD 2006-158/207/Admin/80, dated - 3rd June, 2018, of the
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission.

Such compliance with the Corporate Governance Code is the responsibility of the Company. Our examination was limited to the
procedures and implementation thereof as adopted by the Management in ensuring compliance to the conditions of the
Corporate Governance Code.

This is a scrutiny and verification and an independent audit on compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance Code
as well as the provisions of relevant Bangladesh Secretarial Standards (BSS) as adopted by Institute of Chartered Secretaries of
Bangladesh (ICSB) in so far as those standards are not inconsistent with any condition of this Corporate Governance Code.

We state that we have obtained all the information and explanations, which we have required, and after due scrutiny and
verification thereof, we report that, in our opinion:

(a) The Company has complied with the conditions of the Corporate Governance Code as stipulated in the above mentioned
Corporate Governance Code issued by the Commission complied;

(b) The Company has complied with the provisions of the relevant Bangladesh Secretarial Standards (BSS) as adopted by the
Institute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB) as required by this Code complied;

(c) Proper books and records have been kept by the company as required under the Companies Act, 1994, the securities laws and
other relevant laws complied; and

(d) The Governance of the company is highly satisfactory.

Place: Dhaka Sd/-
Date: October 20, 2024 Md. Mujibur Rahman FCMA
Principal & CEO
Mujibur Rahman & Co.
Cost & Management Accountants
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TAUFIKA FOODS AND LOVELLO ICE-CREAM PLC

COMPLIANCE REPORT ON CORPORATE

GOVERNANCE CODE

Status of compliance with the conditions imposed by the Commission’s Notification No. SEC/CMRRCD/2006- 158/207/Ad-

min/80, dated 3 June 2018 issued under section 2CC of the Securities and Exchange Ordinance, 1969:

Condition No
1.

Title
Board of Directors:-

Compliance Status

Remarks (If any)

1(1)

Size of the Board of Directors

The total number of members of a
company’s Board of Directors (hereinafter
referred to as “Board”) shall not be less
than 5 (five) and more than 20 (twenty).

TAUFIKA FOODS AND
LOVELLO ICE-CREAM
PLC Board is comprised
of 06 Directors.

1(2)

Independent Directors

All  companies shall have effective
representation of independent directors on
their Boards, so that the Board, as a group,
includes core competencies considered
relevant in the context of each company; for
this purpose, the companies shall comply
with the following:-

1(2) (@)

At least one-fifth (1/5) of the total number
of directors in the company’s Board shall be
independent directors; any fraction shall be
considered to the next integer or whole
number for calculating number of
independent director(s);

The number of
independent director
of the company is 02
(Two)

1(2) (b)

For the purpose of this clause “independent
director” means a director

1(2) (b) (i)

who either does not hold any share in the
company or holds less than one percent
(1%) shares of the total paidup shares of the
company;

1(2) (b) ii)

who is not a sponsor of the company or is
not connected with the company’s any
sponsor or director or nominated director
or shareholder of the company or any of its
associates, sister concerns, subsidiaries and
parents or holding entities who holds one
percent (1%) or more shares of the total
paid-up shares of the company on the basis
of family relationship and his or her family
members also shall not hold above
mentioned shares in the company:
Provided that spouse, son, daughter, father,
mother, brother, sister, son-in-law and
daughter-in-law shall be considered as
family members;

1 (2) (b) (iii)

who has not been an executive of the
company in immediately preceding 2(two)
financial years;

1(2) (b) (iv)

who does not have any other relationship,
whether pecuniary or otherwise, with the
company or its subsidiary or associated
companies;
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1(2) (b) (v)

who is not a member or TREC (Trading Right
Entitlement Certificate) holder, director or
officer of any stock exchange;

1(2) (b) (vi)

who is not a shareholder, director excepting
independent director or officer of any
member or TREC holder of stock exchange
or an intermediary of the capital market

1(2) (b) (vii)

who is not a partner or an executive or was
not a partner or an executive during the
preceding 3 (three) years of the concerned
company'’s statutory audit firm or audit firm
engaged in internal audit services or audit
firm  conducting special audit or
professional certifying compliance of this
Code;

1 (2) (b) (viii)

who is not independent director in more
than 5 (five) listed companies;

1(2) (b) (ix)

who has not been convicted by a court of
competent jurisdiction as a defaulter in
payment of any loan or any advance to a
bank or a Non-Bank Financial Institution
(NBFI); and

1(2) (b) (x)

who has not been convicted for a criminal
offence involving moral turpitude;

1(2) ()

The independent director(s) shall be
appointed by the Board and approved by
the shareholders in the Annual General
Meeting (AGM);

1(2)(d)

The post of independent director(s) cannot
remain vacant for more than 90 (ninety)
days; and

No vacancy Occurred

1(2) (e)

The tenure of office of an independent
director shall be for a period of 3
(three)years, which may be extended for 1
(one) tenure only: Provided that a former
independent director may be considered
for reappointment for another tenure after
a time gap of one tenure, i.e., three years
from his or her completion of consecutive
two tenures [i.e. six years]: Provided further
that the independent director shall not be
subject to retirement by rotation as per the
fKvilavbx AvBb, 1994 (1994 mibi 18bs
AvBb) Companies Act, 1994).

1(3)

Qualification of Independent Director.-

1(3)(a)

Independent  director shall be a
knowledgeable individual with integrity
who is able to ensure compliance with
financial laws, regulatory requirements and
corporate laws and can make meaningful
contribution to the business;

1(3)(b)

Independent director shall have following
qualifications:

1(3)(b) (i)

Business Leader who is or was a promoter
or director of an unlisted company having
minimum paid-up capital of Tk. 100.00
million or any listed company or a member
of any national or international chamber of
commerce or business association; or

N/A
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1(3) (b) (i)

Corporate Leader who is or was a top level
executive not lower than Chief Executive or
Managing Director or Deputy Managing
Director or Chief Financial Officer or Head
of Finance or Accounts or Company
Secretary or Head of Internal Audit and
Compliance or Head of Legal Service or a
candidate with equivalent position of an
unlisted company having minimum paid up
capital of Tk. 100.00 million or of a listed
company; or

N/A

1 (3) (b) (iii)

Former official of government or statutory
or autonomous or regulatory body in the
position not below 5th Grade of the
national pay scale, who has at least
educational background of bachelor degree
in economics or commerce or business or
law; or

1(3) (b) (iv)

University Teacher who has educational
background in Economics or Commerce or
Business Studies or Law; or

N/A

1(3)(b) (v)

Professional who is or was an advocate
practicing at least in the High Court Division
of Bangladesh Supreme Court or a
Chartered Accountant or Cost and
Management Accountant or Chartered
Financial Analyst or Chartered Certified
Accountant or Certified Public Accountant
or Chartered Management Accountant or
Chartered  Secretary or  equivalent
qualification;

1(3) ()

The independent director shall have at least
10 (ten) years of experiences in any field
mentioned in clause (b);

1(3)(d)

In special cases, the above qualifications or
experiences may be relaxed subject to prior
approval of the Commission.

N/A

1(4)

In special cases, the above qualifications or
experiences may be relaxed subject to
prior approval of the Commission.

1(4)(a)

The positions of the Chairperson of the
Board and the Managing Director (MD)
and/or Chief Executive (CEO) of the
company shall be filled by different
individuals;

1(4) (b)

The Managing Director (MD) and/or Chief
Executive (CEO) of a listed company shall
not hold the same position in another listed
company;

1(4)(q)

The Chairperson of the Board shall be
elected from among the non -executive
directors of the company;

1(4)(d)

The Board shall clearly define respective
roles and responsibilities of the Chairperson
and the Managing Director and/or Chief
Executive ;
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1(4)(e)

In the absence of the Chairperson of the
Board, the remaining members may elect
one of themselves from non -executive
directors as Chairperson for that particular
Board’s meeting; the reason of absence of
the regular Chairperson shall be duly
recorded in the minutes.

1(5)

The Directors’ Report to Shareholders

The Board of the company shall include the
following  additional statements or
disclosures in the Directors’ Report
prepared under section 184 of the
Companies Act, 1994 (Act No. XVIIl of
1994): -

1(5) (i)

An industry outlook and possible future
developments in the industry;

1 (5) (ii)

The segment -wise or product -wise
performance;

1 (5) (iii)

Risks and concerns including internal and
external risk factors, threat to sustainability
and negative impact on environment, if any;

1 (5) (iv)

A discussion on Cost of Goods sold, Gross
Profit Margin and Net Profit Margin, where
applicable;

1(5)(v)

A discussion on continuity of any
extraordinary activities and their
implications (gain or loss);

- N/A

1 (5) (vi)

A detailed discussion on related party
transactions along with a statement
showing amount, nature of related party,
nature of transactions and basis of
transactions of all related party transactions

1 (5) (vii)

A statement of utilization of proceeds
raised through public issues, rights issues
and/or any other instruments

- N/A

1 (5) (viii)

An explanation if the financial results
deteriorate after the company goes for
Initial Public Offering (IPO), Repeat Public
Offering (RPO), Rights Share Offer, Direct
Listing, etc.;

- N/A

1(5) (ix)

An explanation on any significant variance
that occurs between Quarterly Financial
performances and Annual Financial
Statements;

- N/A

1(5) (x)

A statement of remuneration paid to the
directors including independent directors;

1 (5) (xi)

A statement that the financial statements
prepared by the management of the issuer
company present fairly its state of affairs,
the result of its operations, cash flows and
changes in equity;

1 (5) (xii)

A statement that proper books of account
of the issuer company have been
maintained

1 (5) (xiii)

A statement that appropriate accounting
policies have been consistently applied in
preparation of the financial statements and
that the accounting estimates are based on
reasonable and prudent judgment
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1 (5) (xiv)

A statement that International Accounting
Standards (IAS) or International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS), as applicable in
Bangladesh, have been followed in
preparation of the financial statements and
any departure there from has been
adequately disclosed;

1(5) (xv)

A statement that the system of internal
control is sound in design and has been
effectively implemented and monitored;

1 (5) (xvi)

A statement that minority shareholders
have been protected from abusive actions
by, or in the interest of, controlling
shareholders acting either directly or
indirectly and have effective means of
redress;

1 (5) (xvii)

A statement that there is no significant
doubt upon the issuer company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, if the issuer
company is not considered to be a going
concern, the fact along with reasons there
of shall be disclosed;

1 (5) (xviii)

An explanation that significant deviations
from the last year’s operating results of the
issuer company shall be highlighted and the
reasons thereof shall be explained;

N/A

1 (5) (xix)

A statement where key operating and
financial data of at least preceding 5 (five)
years shall be summarized;

1(5) (xx)

An explanation on the reasons if the issuer
company has not declared dividend (cash or
stock) for the year;

N/A

1 (5) (xxi)

Board’s statement to the effect that no
bonus share or stock dividend has been or
shall be declared as interim dividend;

1 (5) (xxii)

The total number of Board meetings held
during the year and attendance by each
director;

1 (5)(xxiii)

A report on the pattern of shareholding
disclosing the aggregate number of shares
(along with name-wise details where stated
below) held by:-

1 (5)(xxiii) (a)

Parent or Subsidiary or Associated
Companies and other related parties
(name-wise details);

N/A

1 (5)(xxiii) (b)

Directors, Chief Executive , Company
Secretary, Chief Financial Officer, Head of
Internal Audit and Compliance and their
spouses and minor children (name-wise
details)

All directors other than
Independent directors
hold shares of the
company.

1 (5) (xxiii)(c)

Executives; and

N/A

1 (5) (xxiii)(d)

Shareholders holding ten percent (10%) or
more voting interest in the company
(name-wise details);

1(5)(xxiv)

In case of the appointment or
reappointment of a director, a disclosure on
the following information to the
shareholders:-

1(5)(xxiv)(a)

a brief resume of the director
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1(5)(xxiv)(b)

nature of his or her expertise in specific
functional areas; and

1(5)(xxiv)(c)

names of companies in which the person
also holds the directorship and the
membership of committees of the Board;

1(5)(xxv)

A Management’s Discussion and Analysis
signed by CEO or MD presenting detailed
analysis of the company’s position and
operations along with a brief discussion of
changes in the financial statements, among
others, focusing on:

1(S)(xxv)(a)

accounting policies and estimation for
preparation of financial statements;

1(5)(xxv)(b)

changes in accounting policies and
estimation, if any, clearly describing the
effect on financial performance or results
and financial position as well as cash flows
in absolute figure for such changes;

- N/A

1(5)(xxv)(c)

comparative analysis (including effects of
inflation) of financial performance or
results and financial position as well as cash
flows for current financial year with
immediate preceding five years explaining
reasons thereof;

1(5)(xxv)(d)

compare such financial performance or
results and financial position as well as cash
flows with the peer industry scenario;

1(5)(xxv)(e)

briefly explain the financial and economic
scenario of the country and the globe;

1(5)(xxv)(f)

risks and concerns issues related to the
financial statements, explaining such risk
and concerns mitigation plan of the
company; and

1(5)(xxv)(g)

future plan or projection or forecast for
company’s operation, performance and
financial position, with justification thereof,
i.e., actual position shall be explained to the
shareholders in the next AGM;

1(5)(xxvi)

Declaration or certification by the CEO and
the CFO to the Board as required under
condition No. 3(3) shall be disclosed as per
Annexure - A; and

1(5)(xxvii)

(xxvii) The report as well as certificate
regarding compliance of conditions of this
Code as required under condition No. 9
shall be disclosed as per Annexure -B and
Annexure - C.

1(6)

Meetings of the Board of Directors

The company shall conduct its Board
meetings and record the minutes of the
meetings as well as keep required books
and records in line with the provisions of
the relevant Bangladesh  Secretarial
Standards (BSS) as adopted by the Institute
of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh
(ICSB) in so far as those standards are not
inconsistent with any condition of this Code
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1(7)

Code of Conduct for the Chairperson, other
Board members and Chief Executive

The Board shall lay down a code of conduct,
based on the recommendation of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee
(NRC) at condition No. 6, for the
Chairperson of the Board, other board
members and Chief Executive of the
company;

The code of conduct as determined by the
NRC shall be posted on the website of the
company including, among others, prudent
conduct and behavior; confidentiality;
conflict of interest; compliance with laws,
rules and regulations; prohibition of insider
trading; relationship with environment,
employees, customers and suppliers; and
independency.

Governance of Board of Directors of
Subsidiary Company.-

2 (a)

Provisions relating to the composition of
the Board of the holding company shall be
made applicable to the composition of the
Board of the subsidiary company

N/A

2 (b)

At least 1 (one) independent director on the
Board of the holding company shall be a
director on the Board of the subsidiary
company;

N/A

2(c)

The minutes of the Board meeting of the
subsidiary company shall be placed for
review at the following Board meeting of
the holding company;

N/A

2 (d)

The minutes of the respective Board
meeting of the holding company shall state
that they have reviewed the affairs of the
subsidiary company also;

N/A

2 (e)

The Audit Committee of the holding
company shall also review the financial
statements, in particular the investments
made by the subsidiary company.

N/A

Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive
(CEO), Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Head of
Internal Audit and Compliance (HIAC) and
Company Secretary (CS).

3(1)

Appointment

3(1)(a)

The Board shall appoint a Managing
Director (MD) or Chief Executive (CEO), a
Company Secretary (CS), a Chief Financial
Officer (CFO) and a Head of Internal Audit
and Compliance (HIAC);

3 (1) (b)

The positions of the Managing Director
(MD) or Chief Executive (CEO), Company
Secretary (CS), Chief Financial Officer (CFO)
and Head of Internal Audit and Compliance
(HIAC) shall be filled by different individuals;

3(1)(c)

The MD or CEQ, CS, CFO and HIAC of a listed
company shall not hold any executive
position in any other company at the same
time;

N/A
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3 (1) (d)

The Board shall clearly define respective
roles, responsibilities and duties of the CFO,
the HIAC and the CS;

3(1)(e)

The MD or CEOQ, CS, CFO and HIAC shall not
be removed from their position without
approval of the Board as well as immediate
dissemination to the Commission and stock
exchange(s).

3(2)

Requirement to attend Board of Directors’
Meetings

The MD or CEQ, CS, CFO and HIAC of the
company shall attend the meetings of the
Board:

Provided that the CS, CFO and/or the HIAC
shall not attend such part of a meeting of
the Board which involves consideration of
an agenda item relating to their personal
matters

3(3)

Duties of Managing Director (MD) or Chief
Executive (CEQO) and Chief Financial Officer
(CFO)

3(3)(a)

The MD or CEO and CFO shall certify to the
Board that they have reviewed financial
statements for the year and that to the best
of their knowledge and belief:

3(3) (a) (i)

these statements do not contain any
materially untrue statement or omit any
material fact or contain statements that
might be misleading; and

3(3) (a) (ii)

these statements together present a true
and fair view of the company’s affairs and
are in compliance with existing accounting
standards and applicable laws;

3 (3) (b)

The MD or CEO and CFO shall also certify
that there are, to the best of knowledge and
belief, no transactions entered into by the
company during the vyear which are
fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the code
of conduct for the company’s Board or its
members;

- - N/A

3(3)(c)

The certification of the MD or CEO and CFO
shall be disclosed in the Annual Report

Board of Directors’ Committee.-

For ensuring good governance in the
company, the Board shall have at least
following subcommittees:

4 (i)

(i) Audit Committee; and

4 (ii)

(if) Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

5

Audit Committee.-

5(1)

Responsibility to the Board of Directors.

5(1) (a)

The company shall have an Audit
Committee as a subcommittee of the
Board;

5(1) (b)

The Audit Committee shall assist the Board
in ensuring that the financial statements
reflect true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the company and in ensuring a
good monitoring system within the
business;
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5(1) (c)

The Audit Committee shall be responsible
to the Board; the duties of the Audit
Committee shall be clearly set forth in
writing

5(2)

Constitution of the Audit Committee

5(2) (a)

The Audit Committee shall be composed of
at least 3 (three) members;

5(2) (b)

The Board shall appoint members of the
Audit Committee  who  shall be
nonexecutive directors of the company
excepting Chairperson of the Board and
shall include at least 1 (one) independent
director;

5(2)(c)

All members of the audit committee should
be “financially literate” and at least 1 (one)
member shall have accounting or related
financial management background and 10
(ten) years of such experience;

5(2) (d)

When the term of service of any Committee
member expires or there is any
circumstances causing any Committee
member to be unable to hold office before
expiration of the term of service, thus
making the number of the Committee
members to be lower than the prescribed
number of 3 (three) persons, the Board
shall appoint the new Committee member
to fill up the vacancy immediately or not
later than 1 (one) month from the date of
vacancy in the Committee to ensure
continuity of the performance of work of
the Audit Committee;

5(2) (e)

The company secretary shall act as the
secretary of the Committee;

5(2)(f)

The quorum of the Audit Committee
meeting shall not constitute without at
least 1 (one) independent director.

5(3)

Chairperson of the Audit Committee

5(3) (a)

The Board shall select 1 (one) member of
the Audit Committee to be Chairperson of
the Audit Committee, who shall be an
independent director;

In the absence of the Chairperson of the
Audit Committee, the remaining members
may elect one of themselves as Chairperson
for that particular meeting, in that case
there shall be no problem of constituting a
quorum as required under condition No.
5(4)(b) and the reason of absence of the
regular Chairperson shall be duly recorded
in the minutes.

5(3)(c)

Chairperson of the Audit Committee shall
remain present in the Annual General
Meeting (AGM): Provided that in absence of
Chairperson of the Audit Committee, any
other member from the Audit Committee
shall be selected to be present in the annual
general meeting (AGM) and reason for
absence of the Chairperson of the Audit
Committee shall be recorded in the minutes
of the AGM.
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5(4)

Meeting of the Audit Committee

5(4) (a)

The Audit Committee shall conduct at least
its four meetings in a financial vyear:
Provided that any emergency meeting in
addition to regular meeting may be
convened at the request of any one of the
members of the Committee;

5 (4) (b)

The quorum of the meeting of the Audit
Committee shall be constituted in presence
of either two members or two third of the
members of the Audit Committee,
whichever is higher, where presence of an
independent director is a must.

5(5)

Role of Audit Committee
The Audit Committee shall: -

5(5) (a)

Oversee the financial reporting process;

5(5) (b)

monitor choice of accounting policies and
principles;

5(5) (c)

monitor Internal Audit and Compliance
process to ensure that it is adequately
resourced, including approval of the
Internal Audit and Compliance Plan and
review of the Internal Audit and
Compliance Report;

5(5) (d)

oversee hiring and performance of external
auditors;

5(5) (e)

hold meeting with the external or statutory
auditors for review of the annual financial
statements before submission to the Board
for approval or adoption;

5(5) ()

review along with the management, the
annual  financial statements before
submission to the Board for approval;

5(5)(g)

review along with the management, the
quarterly and half yearly financial
statements before submission to the Board
for approval;

5(5) (h)

review the adequacy of internal audit
function;

5(5) (i)

review the Management’s Discussion and
Analysis before disclosing in the Annual
Report;

5(5)(j)

review statement of all related party
transactions submitted by the
management;

5(5) (k)

review Management Letters or Letter of
Internal Control weakness issued by
statutory auditors;

5(5)(1)

oversee the determination of audit fees
based on scope and magnitude, level of
expertise deployed and time required for
effective  audit and evaluate the
performance of external auditors; and
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5(5) (m)

oversee whether the proceeds raised
through Initial Public Offering (IPO) or
Repeat Public Offering (RPO) or Rights
Share Offer have been utilized as per the
purposes stated in relevant offer document
or prospectus approved by the
Commission:

Provided that the management shall
disclose to the Audit Committee about the
uses or applications of the proceeds by
major category (capital expenditure, sales
and marketing expenses, working capital,
etc.), on a quarterly basis, as a part of their
quarterly declaration of financial results:
Provided further that on an annual basis,
the company shall prepare a statement of
the proceeds utilized for the purposes other
than those stated in the offer document or
prospectus for publication in the Annual
Report along with the comments of the
Audit Committee

N/A

5(6)

Reporting of the Audit Committee

5(6) (a)

Reporting to the Board of Directors

5(6) (a) (i)

The Audit Committee shall report on its
activities to the Board.

5(6) (a) (i)

The Audit Committee shall immediately
report to the Board on the following
findings, if any:-

5 (6) (a) (ii) (a)

report on conflicts of interests;

N/A

5(6) (a) (i) (b)

suspected or presumed fraud or irregularity
or material defect identified in the internal
audit and compliance process or in the
financial statements;

N/A

5 (6) (a) (ii) (c)

suspected infringement of laws, regulatory
compliances including securities related
laws, rules and regulations; and

N/A

5(6) (a) (ii) (d)

any other matter which the Audit
Committee deems necessary shall be
disclosed to the Board immediately;

N/A

5(6) (b)

Reporting to the Authorities

If the Audit Committee has reported to the
Board about anything which has material
impact on the financial condition and
results of operation and has discussed with
the Board and the management that any
rectification is necessary and if the Audit
Committee finds that such rectification has
been unreasonably ignored, the Audit
Committee shall report such finding to the
Commission, upon reporting of such
matters to the Board for three times or
completion of a period of 6 (six) months
from the date of first reporting to the
Board, whichever is earlier

N/A

5(6)(7)

Reporting to the Shareholders and General
Investors

Report on activities carried out by the Audit
Committee, including any report made to
the Board under condition No. 5(6)(a)(ii)
above during the year, shall be signed by
the Chairperson of the Audit Committee
and disclosed in the annual report of the
issuer company.
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6

Nomination and Remuneration Committee
(NRC).-

6(1)

Responsibility to the Board of Directors

6 (1) (a)

The company shall have a Nomination and
Remuneration Committee (NRC) as a
subcommittee of the Board;

6 (1) (b)

The NRC shall assist the Board in
formulation of the nomination criteria or
policy for determining qualifications,
positive  attributes, experiences and
independence of directors and top level
executive as well as a policy for formal
process of considering remuneration of
directors, top level executive;

6 (1) (c)

The Terms of Reference (ToR) of the NRC
shall be clearly set forth in writing covering
the areas stated at the condition No. 6(5) (b).

6(2)

Constitution of the NRC 6

6(2) (a)

The Committee shall comprise of at least
three members including an independent
director;

6 (2) (b)

All members of the Committee shall be non
-executive directors;

6(2) (c)

Members of the Committee shall be
nominated and appointed by the Board;

6(2) (d)

The Board shall have authority to remove
and appoint any member of the Committee;

6(2) (e)

In case of death, resignation,
disqualification, or removal of any member
of the Committee or in any other cases of
vacancies, the board shall fill the vacancy
within 180 (one hundred eighty) days of
occurring such vacancy in the Committee;

6 (2) (f)

The Chairperson of the Committee may
appoint or co -opt any external expert
and/or member(s) of staff to the
Committee as advisor who shall be non
-voting member, if the Chairperson feels
that advice or suggestion from such
external expert and/or member(s) of staff
shall be required or valuable for the
Committee;

6(2)(g)

The company secretary shall act as the
secretary of the Committee;

6 (2) (h)

The quorum of the NRC meeting shall not
constitute without attendance of at least an
independent director;

6 (2) (i)

No member of the NRC shall receive, either
directly or indirectly, any remuneration for
any advisory or consultancy role or
otherwise, other than Director’s fees or
honorarium from the company.

6(3)

Chairperson of the NRC

6(3) (a)

The Board shall select 1 (one) member of
the NRC to be Chairperson of the
Committee, who shall be an independent
director;
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6 (3) (b)

In the absence of the Chairperson of the
NRC, the remaining members may elect one
of themselves as Chairperson for that
particular meeting, the reason of absence
of the regular Chairperson shall be duly
recorded in the minutes;

The Chairperson of the NRC shall attend the
annual general meeting (AGM) to answer
the queries of the shareholders:

6(3) ()

Provided that in absence of Chairperson of
the NRC, any other member from the NRC
shall be selected to be present in the annual
general meeting (AGM) for answering the
shareholder’s queries and reason for
absence of the Chairperson of the NRC shall
be recorded in the minutes of the AGM.

6 (4)

Meeting of the NRC

6(4) (a)

The NRC shall conduct at least one meeting
in a financial year;

6 (4) (b)

The Chairperson of the NRC may convene
any emergency meeting upon request by
any member of the NRC;

6 (4) (c)

The quorum of the meeting of the NRC shall
be constituted in presence of either two
members or two third of the members of
the Committee, whichever is higher, where
presence of an independent director is must
as required under condition No. 6 (2) (h);

6 (4) (d)

The proceedings of each meeting of the
NRC shall duly be recorded in the minutes
and such minutes shall be confirmed in the
next meeting of the NRC.

6 (5)

Role of the NRC

6(5) (a)

NRC shall be independent and responsible
or accountable to the Board and to the
shareholders;

6 (5) (b)

NRC shall oversee, among others, the
following matters and make report with
recommendation to the Board:

6 (5) (b) (i)

formulating the criteria for determining
qualifications, positive attributes and
independence of a director and
recommend a policy to the Board, relating
to 13 the remuneration of the directors, top
level executive, considering the following:

6 (5) (b) (i) (a)

the level and composition of remuneration
is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain
and motivate suitable directors to run the
company successfully;

6 (5) (b) (i) (b)

the relationship of remuneration to
performance is clear and meets appropriate
performance benchmarks; and

6 (5) (b) (i) ()

remuneration to directors, top level
executive involves a balance between fixed
and incentive pay reflecting short and long
-term performance objectives appropriate
to the working of the company and its
goals;
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6 (5) (b) (i)

devising a policy on Board’s diversity taking
into consideration age, gender, experience,
ethnicity, educational background and
nationality;

6 (5) (b) (iii)

identifying persons who are qualified to
become directors and who may be
appointed in top level executive position in
accordance with the criteria laid down, and
recommend their appointment and
removal to the Board;

6 () (b) (iv)

formulating the criteria for evaluation of
performance of independent directors and
the Board;

6 (5) (b) (v)

identifying the company’s needs for
employees at different levels and
determine their selection, transfer or
replacement and promotion criteria; and

6 (5) (b) (vi)

developing, recommending and reviewing
annually the company’s human resources
and training policies;

6 (5) (c)

The company shall disclose the nomination
and remuneration policy and the evaluation
criteria and activities of NRC during the year
at a glance in its annual report.

External or Statutory Auditors. -

7 (1)

The issuer company shall not engage its
external or statutory auditors to perform
the following services of the company,
namely: -

7(1) ()

appraisal or valuation services or fairness
opinions;

7 (1) (i)

financial information systems design and
implementation;

7 (1) (iii)

book -keeping or other services related to
the accounting records or financial
statements;

7 (1) (iv)

broker -dealer services;

7(1) (v)

actuarial services;

7 (1) (vi)

internal audit services or special audit
services;

7 (1) (vii)

any service that the Audit Committee
determines;

7 (1) (viii)

audit or certification  services on
compliance of corporate governance as
required under condition No. 9(1); and

7 (1) (ix)

any other service that creates conflict of
interest.

7(2)

No partner or employees of the external
audit firms shall possess any share of the
company they audit at least during the
tenure of their audit assignment of that
company; his or her family members also
shall not hold any shares in the said
company:

Provided that spouse, son, daughter, father,
mother, brother, sister, son-in-law and
daughter-in-law shall be considered as
family members.
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Representative of external or statutory
7(3) auditors shall remain present in the
Shareholders’ Meeting (Annual General
Meeting or Extraordinary General Meeting)
to answer the queries of the shareholders.

8 Maintaining a website by the Company.-
The company shall have an official website

8(1) linked with the website of the stock
exchange.

The company shall keep the website
8(2) functional from the date of listing.

The company shall make available the
detailed disclosures on its website as

8(3) required under the listing regulations of the
concerned stock exchange(s).
9 Reporting and Compliance of Corporate

Governance.-

The company shall obtain a certificate from
a practicing Professional Accountant or
Secretary (Chartered Accountant or Cost
and Management Accountant or Chartered
9(1) Secretary) other than its statutory auditors
or audit firm on vyearly basis regarding
compliance of conditions of Corporate
Governance Code of the Commission and
shall such certificate shall be disclosed in
the Annual Report.

The professional who will provide the
certificate on compliance of this Corporate
Governance Code shall be appointed by the
shareholders in the annual general
meeting.

9(2)

The directors of the company shall state, in
accordance with the Annexure-C attached,
9(3) in the directors’ report whether the
company has complied with these
conditions or not.
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Details relating to the issuer's audit committee and remuneration committee, including the names of committee members and
a summary of the terms of reference under which the committees operate.

In accordance with the currently accepted Best Practice and Corporate Governance Code adopted by Bangladesh Securities and

Exchange Commission (BSEC), the Board appointed Audit Committee and Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC)
comprises of the following:

Audit Committee Members Name

SL No. Name & Position

1 Ruhul Ameen M.Com, FCMA, Independent Director, Chairman of the Committee
2 Muhsinina Taufika Ekram, Director, Member of the Committee
3 Mubhsinina Sharika Ekram, Director, Member of the Committee

* The company secretary shall act as the secretary of the Committee.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) Members Name

SL No. Name & Position

1 Barrister Sajed Ahammad Sami, Independent Director, Chairman of the Committee
2 Muhsinina Taufika Ekram, Director, Member of the Committee
3 Muhsinina Sharika Ekram, Director, Member of the Committee

* The company secretary shall act as the secretary of the Committee.

The terms of reference of the audit committee has been agreed upon as follows:

e To review all internal and external audit report.

e Torecommend the statutory annual audited financial statements to the Board of Directors for approval.

e To review the finding of the internal and external auditors.

e To review and approve the Annual “Audit Plan” of the Internal Audit Department.

¢ To monitor the implementation of the recommendations of the Internal and External auditors.

¢ Toreview the performance of the external auditors and make recommendations to the Board regarding their appointment
and fees.

e To review the quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial statements before submission to the Board, focusing particularly
on.

e To review the company’s statement on internal control systems prior to endorsement by the Board.

e The company secretary shall be the secretary of the audit committee.

The terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) has been agreed upon as follows:

e To assist the Board in developing and administering a fair and transparent procedure for setting policy on the
remuneration of directors and senior management of the Company

e Determining the remuneration packages

e Review the Annual Confidential Report (ACR) of senior management of the company

e Review and oversee the Company's overall human resources strategy.
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REPORT OF THE NOMINATION AND
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (NRC)

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is a sub-committee of the Board of Directors of the Company and its role is to
assist the Board in fulfilling their oversight responsibilities defined in the BSEC’s Corporate Governance Code.

The NRC,in compliance with the Corporate Governance Code of Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC), is
comprised of three Directors of the Board of which one is Independent Director. The Independent Director is the Chairman of the
Committee.

The terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) have been adopted by the Board as per BSEC
notification. The NRC assist the Board in formulation of the nomination criteria or policy for determining qualifications, positive
attributes, experiences and independence of directors and top level executive as well as to develop policy for formal process of
considering remuneration of directors, top level executives.

Ruhul Ameen M.Com, FCMA, Chairman of the Committee is an Independent Director. Detailed qualifications of the existing
members of the Committee are set out on pages 42 to 44. of this Annual Report. The Committee formally met once during the
year under review. The NRC of Taufika Foods and Lovello Ice-cream PLC observed the following activities:

e To assist the Board in developing and administering a fair and transparent procedure for setting policy on the remuneration of
directors and senior management of the Company

Determining the remuneration packages.

Review the Annual Confidential Report (ACR) of senior management of the company

Formulated Nomination and Remuneration Policy

Formulated Board Evaluation Policy

Reviewed Training and Development Policy

Reviewed nomination of the directors to be re-elected in retire by rotation.

Reviewed reappointment of Managing Director.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) expressed their sincere thanks to the members of the Board of Directors,
management of the Company for their support and co-operation.

Sd/-
Barrister Sajed Ahammad Sami
Chairman
September 27, 2024
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LOVELLO.,

ice¥cream

REPORT OF
THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee is a sub-committee of the Board of Directors of the Company and its role is to assist the Board in fulfilling
their oversight responsibilities regarding the integrity of Lovello’s financial statements, risk management, internal control &
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the external auditors’ performance, qualifications and independence and the
performance of the internal audit function.

The Audit Committee, in compliance with the Corporate Governance Code of Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission
(BSEC), is comprised of three Directors of the Board of which one is Independent Director. The Independent Director is the
Chairman of the Committee.

For the purposes of the Corporate Governance Code, all the members of Committee are financially literate and Ruhul Ameen
M.Com, FCMA and Chairman of the Committee is the financial expert. During the financial year under review the Committee met
five times.

During the year 2023-24, the Audit Committee of the Company met five and reviewed the following:

e Reviewed the financial statements of the company for the year ended on June 30, 2024

e Reviewed the Company’s 1st Quarterly Un-Audited Financial Statements- Statement of Financial Position, Statement of
Comprehensive Income, statement of Changes in Equity, statement of Cash Flows and related explanatory notes as on 30
September 2023.

e Reviewed the Company’s Half Yearly Un-Audited Financial Statements- Statement of Financial Position, Statement of
Comprehensive Income, and Statement of Changes in Equity, statement of Cash Flows and related explanatory notes as on 31
December 2023.

e Reviewed the Company’s 3rd Quarterly Un-Audited Financial Statements- Statement of Financial Position, Statement of
Comprehensive Income, statement of Changes in Equity, statement of Cash Flows and related explanatory notes as on 31
March 2024.

e Recommended for appointment of External Auditors and fixation of their remuneration.

Recommended for appointment of compliance auditor.

Reviewed the management discussion and analysis.

Reviewed the Internal Audit Report and Compliance plan.

Reviewed the adequacy of internal control and systems.

Reviewed the financial reporting process

Reviewed the choice of accounting policies and principles

Reviewed the management letter issued by the statutory auditor

Reviewed the effectiveness and independence of the statutory auditors.

Evaluate the performance of statutory auditor.

e Reviewed the determination of audit fees based on scope and magnitude, level of expertise deployed and time required for
effective audit and evaluate the performance of external auditors.

The Audit Committee expressed its sincere thanks to the members of the Committee, Board, Management and the auditors for
their support in carrying out their duties and responsibilities.

Sd/-
Ruhul Ameen M.Com, FCMA
Chairman
Audit Committee
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TERMS OF
PREFERENCE OF NRC

Regulatory Framework:

Clause 6 (1) (c) read with the applicable Clauses of Corporate Governance Code of Bangladesh Securities and Exchange
Commission require the Board to clearly set forth in writing the duties of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC).

This Terms of Reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is framed as per the requirements of the aforesaid
governance code.

Constitution

The Board has resolved to establish a Committee of the Board to be known as the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The
Nomination and Remuneration Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities in respect of:

Formulation of nomination criteria for appointment of directors, chief executives and other top level executives;
Formulation of remuneration policy for the directors and top level executives;
Devising policy on Boards diversity;

Formulation of Policy on Evaluation of performance of the Board of Directors, Committees and individual Directors;

Membership

The membership of the Committee is as appointed by the Board from time to time from amongst the non-executive
directors;

The Committee comprises of three members including Independent Directors;

The Independent Directors will be appointed by the Board and approved by the shareholders for a term of three years and
term can be extended for another three years. A former independent director may be considered for reappointment for
another tenure after a time gap of one tenure, i.e., three years from his or her completion of consecutive two tenures [i.e.
six years];

Except Independent Director the membership of other directors is subject to annual re-election by the shareholders;
The Committee has a Chairman selected by the Board who shall be an Independent Director.

When the term of service of the Committee members expires or there is any circumstance causing any Committee
member to be unable to hold office until expiration of the term of service, thus making the number of the Committee
members to be lower than the prescribed number, the Board of Directors shall appoint the new Committee member(s) to
fill up the vacancy(ies) immediately or not later than 180 days from the date of vacancy(ies) in the Committee.

The members of the committee can be changed/removed at the discretion of the Board of Directors at any time.

Secretary

The Company Secretary shall act as the Secretary of the Committee.

Meetings

The Committee meets at least once in a year, with authority to convene additional meetings as circumstances require;
Meetings are convened by written notice served on each of the members by the Secretary of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee, such notice to be served at least two days prior to the meeting;

All members of the Committee are expected to attend each meeting;

The quorum necessary for the transaction of business shall be two Committee members, the quorum of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee meeting shall not constitute without presence of at least 1(one) independent director. A
duly convened meeting of the Committee at which a quorum is present shall be competent to exercise all or any of the
authorities, duties and discretions vested in or exercisable by the Committee;

Meetings of the Committee may be attended by the Chairman, MD, HR executives and outside expert at the invitation of
the Committee;

In the absence of the Committee Chairman the remaining members shall elect any of them present to chair the meeting;
Formal decisions are made by a simple majority vote, with the Chairman of the meeting holding a casting vote; and

The Secretary shall be responsible, in conjunction with the Chairman of the Committee, for compiling and circulating the
agenda and papers for the meeting. The Secretary will also be responsible for liaising with the Executive Team to ensure
that all papers, reports etc. required by the Committee are forwarded to them in a timely manner.
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Minutes of Meetings

e The Secretary shall minute the proceedings and resolutions of all meetings of the Committee, including recording the
names of those present and in attendance.

e Conflicts of interest must be declared by Committee members at the beginning of meetings and the Secretary should
record any such declaration in the minutes.

e The Committee Secretary shall promptly circulate draft meeting minutes to the Committee Chairman for review and
subsequently to all members of the Committee. Meeting minutes shall be confirmed at the next meeting of the
Committee and tabled as soon as practicable thereafter at a meeting of the Board.

Annual General Meeting

The Committee Chairman shall present at the Annual General Meeting and respond to any questions regarding the Committee’s
activities at the Annual General Meeting of the Company’s Shareholders.

Duties & Responsibilities
NRC shall oversee, among others, the following matters and make report with recommendation to the Board:

(i) formulating the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and recommend
a policy to the Board, relating to the remuneration of the directors, top level executive, considering the following:

a) the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate suitable directors
to run the company successfully;

b) the relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks; and

¢) remuneration to directors, top level executive involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and
long-term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the company and its goals;

(ii) devising a policy on Board’s diversity taking into consideration age, gender, experience, ethnicity, educational background and
nationality;

(iii) identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in top level executive position in
accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend their appointment and removal to the Board;

(iv) formulating the criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and the Board;

(v) identifying the company’s needs for employees at different levels and determine their selection, transfer or replacement and
promotion criteria; and

(vi) developing, recommending and reviewing annually the company’s human resources and training policies;
Reporting Responsibilities

e The Committee Chairman shall report to the Board on its proceedings after each meeting on all matters within its duties
and responsibilities.

e The Committee shall make whatever recommendations to the Board it deems appropriate on any area within its remit
where action or improvement is needed.

e The Committee shall compile a report to shareholders on its activities to be included in the company’s Annual Report.

Others

The Committee shall also:

e Review annually its own performance, constitution and terms of reference to ensure it is operating at maximum
effectiveness and recommend any changes it considers necessary to the Board for approval;
e Undertake any other projects relating to its remit which it considers appropriate or as requested by the Board.

Authority

The Committee is authorized by the Board:
¢ To seek any information it requires from any employee of the company in order to perform its duties;
e To obtain, at the Company’s expense, outside legal or other professional advice on any matter within its terms of
reference;
e To call any employee to be questioned at a meeting of the Committee as and when required; and
e To gain unrestricted access to all books and records of the Company.
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TERMS OF PREFERENCE OF
THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

Regulatory Framework:

Clause 5 (1) (c) read with the applicable Clauses of Corporate Governance Code of Bangladesh Securities and Exchange
Commission require the Board to clearly set forth in writing the duties of the Audit Committee.

This Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee is framed as per the requirements of the aforesaid governance code.
Constitution

The Board has resolved to establish a Committee of the Board to be known as the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee assists
the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities in respect of:

e the integrity of Company’s financial statements;

e Company’s risk management and internal control arrangements;

e Company’s compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

e the performance, qualifications and independence of the external auditors; and
¢ the performance of the internal audit function.

Membership

e The membership of the Committee is as appointed by the Board from time to time from amongst the non-executive
directors except Chairman;

e The Committee comprises of three members including Independent Directors;

e Each member of the Committee should be ‘financially literate’. One member of the Committee should be a ‘financial
expert’ who shall have accounting correlated financial management background and 10 (ten) years of such experience.
The ‘financial expertise’ of this member is adjudged by the Board in accordance with the requirements of current
legislation and regulation, and in the light of relevant codes of practice;

e The Independent Directors will be appointed by the Board and approved by the shareholders for a term of three years and
term can be extended for another three years. A former independent director may be considered for reappointment for
another tenure after a time gap of one tenure, i.e., three years from his or her completion of consecutive two tenures [i.e.
six years];

e Except Independent Director the membership of other directors is subject to annual re-election by the shareholders;

e The Committee has a Chairman selected by the Board who shall be an Independent Director.

e When the term of service of the Committee members expires or there is any circumstance causing any Committee
member to be unable to hold office until expiration of the term of service, thus making the number of the Committee
members to be lower than the prescribed number, the Board of Directors shall appoint the new Committee member(s) to
fill up the vacancy(ies) immediately or not later than 1 (one) month from the date of vacancy(ies) in the Committee.

e The members of the committee can be changed/removed at the discretion of the Board of Directors at any time.

Secretary
The Company Secretary shall act as the Secretary of the Committee.
Meetings

e The Committee meets at least four times a year, with authority to convene additional meetings as circumstances require;

e Meetings are convened by written notice served on each of the members by the Secretary of the Audit Committee, such
notice to be served at least two days prior to the meeting;

e All members of the Committee are expected to attend each meeting;

e The quorum necessary for the transaction of business shall be two Committee members, the quorum of the Audit
Committee meeting shall not constitute without presence of at least 1(one) independent director. A duly convened
meeting of the Committee at which a quorum is present shall be competent to exercise all or any of the authorities,
duties and discretions vested in or exercisable by the Committee;
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e Meetings of the Committee may be attended by the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Auditor, Chief
Legal Officer, the lead partner of the external auditors, and other Directors and executives at the invitation of the
Committee;

* In the absence of the Committee Chairman, if there is more than one Independent Directors, the remaining members
shall elect the other Independent Director present to chair the meeting;

e Formal decisions are made by a simple majority vote, with the Chairman of the meeting holding a casting vote; and

e The Secretary shall be responsible, in conjunction with the Chairman of the Committee, for compiling and circulating the
agenda and papers for the meeting. The Secretary will also be responsible for liaising with the Executive Team to ensure
that all papers, reports etc. required by the Committee are forwarded to them in a timely manner.

Minutes of Meetings

e The Secretary shall minute the proceedings and resolutions of all meetings of the Committee, including recording the
names of those present and in attendance.

e Conflicts of interest must be declared by Committee members at the beginning of meetings and the Secretary should
record any such declaration in the minutes.

e The Committee Secretary shall promptly circulate draft meeting minutes to the Committee Chairman for review and
subsequently to all members of the Committee. Meeting minutes shall be confirmed at the next meeting of the
Committee and tabled as soon as practicable thereafter at a meeting of the Board.

Annual General Meeting

The Committee Chairman shall present at the Annual General Meeting and respond to any questions regarding the Committee’s
activities at the Annual General Meeting of the Company’s Shareholders.

Duties & Responsibilities
1. Risk Management and Internal Control

The Committee shall:

e Evaluate whether:

-the Management has been able to build up the appropriate administration culture regarding the importance of internal
control system and risk management;

-employees have been provided clear instruction on their duties & responsibilities and full control on their work.

e Review the recommendations as provided time to time by the internal and external auditors to build a strong internal
control frame work have been administered by the Management or not;

e Review the existing Risk Management process to ensure effective mitigation & control system;

¢ Inform the Board regularly after review of the steps taken against findings of forgery, limitations of internal control system
or identification of similar sectors by the internal, external and inspection team, if any, of regulatory authority;

e Monitor the effectiveness of the Company’s risk based internal control system, make such recommendations as the
Committee considers desirable. Among other things the Committee shall have access to all reports of the Head of
Internal Audit and Control and the External Auditors and information relating to policy and management
responsibilities with regard to risk management and internal control, the adequacy of disclosure controls and
procedures (including related certification and attestation processes), the avoidance of illegal payments and improper
accounting practices, and identified weaknesses in the effectiveness of risk and control management.

2. Financial Reporting

The Committee shall:

e Review whether the financial statements are contained with full & applicable disclosures and are prepared in accordance
with the policies and procedures and in compliance with accounting and reporting standards required by law and
regulators;

e Oversee the financial reporting process

e Monitor choice of accounting policies and principles;

e Discuss with the external auditors and management before finalization of financial statements;

e Review and discuss the integrity of annual audited Company financial statements and quarterly financial statements
with management and the External Auditors, including the financial contents of (and the notes to) the financial
statements and management’s commentary or discussion and analysis of the financial information and recommend
to the Board for approval;

e Monitor and recommend interim results announcements and any other formal announcement relating to its financial
performance;

e Review statement of all related party transactions submitted by the management.

e Review the Management’s Discussion and Analysis before disclosing in the Annual Report;
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3. Internal Audit

The Committee shall:

e Consider and approve the remit of the internal audit function and ensure it has adequate resources and appropriate
access to information to enable it to perform its function effectively and in accordance with the relevant professional
standards. The Committee shall also ensure the function has adequate standing and is free from management or other
restrictions;

e Review and monitor management’s responsiveness to the findings and recommendations of the internal auditor;

e Review and assess the annual internal audit plan;

e Review the adequacy of internal audit function;

e Monitor and review the expertise& effectiveness of the company’s internal audit function in the context of the company’s
overall risk management system;

e Monitor Internal Audit and Compliance process to ensure that it is adequately resourced, including approval of the
Internal Audit and Compliance Plan and review of the Internal Audit and Compliance Report;

e Approve the appointment and removal of the head of the internal audit function. The Committee shall consider, at least
annually, the standards employed by the internal audit function, quality assurance procedures and auditor competence.

e Recommend to the Board for changing accounting principles, if any.

e The Chief Internal Auditor shall have direct access to the Committee Chairman and to the Committee as a whole, and any
member of the Committee shall also have direct access to the Chief Internal Auditor.

4. External Audit

The Committee shall:

e Consider and make recommendations to the Board, to be put to shareholders for approval at the AGM, in relation to the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of the company’s external auditor. The Committee shall oversee the selection
process for new auditors and if an auditor resigns the Committee shall investigate the issues leading to this and decide
whether any action is required;

e Review the annual audit activities and audit report;

e Approval of their terms of engagement, including any engagement letter issued at the start of each audit and the scope
of the audit;

e Assessing annually their independence and objectivity taking into account relevant professional and regulatory
requirements and the relationship with the auditor as a whole, including the provision of any non-audit services;

e Satisfying itself that there are no relationships (such as family, employment, investment, financial or business) between
the auditor and the company (other than in the ordinary course of business);

e Review Management Letters/ Letter of Internal Control weakness issued by statutory auditors.

e Review the management’s response to the auditor’s findings and recommendations.

5. Compliance with existing Laws & Regulations
Review compliance with existing laws & regulations of the relevant regulators and policies approved by the Board.

6. Reporting Responsibilities

e The Committee Chairman shall report to the Board on its proceedings after each meeting on all matters within its duties
and responsibilities.

e The Committee shall make whatever recommendations to the Board it deems appropriate on any area within its remit
where action or improvement is needed.

e The Committee shall compile a report to shareholders on its activities to be included in the company’s Annual Report.

environment. The company’s intent is to establish a good relationship through a mutual understanding of expectations. Lovello
believes in working in a team and demonstrate team spirit to maximize and excel in standard quality service to our valued
customers in the area of business. Employees work in an environment where they feel valued, responsible, and supported by the
authority as well as their colleagues. Lovello also takes preventive and safety measures to avoid all sorts of hazardous situations
that might take place in some areas of technical functions. With the present status, the company aims to expand and grow at a
faster pace by utilizing the best possible opportunities and expansion of network, distribution channels throughout the whole
country. This enormous task requires dedicated, devoted, and committed manpower.

Safety at Work
We are committed to promoting accident prevention and providing safe places to work and conduct business for our employees,
clients and other visitors. We believe that integrating sound environment, health and safety practices into our business has

multiple positive effects, including contributing to improving quality and productivity in the workplace and increasing employee
job satisfaction.
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The Audit Committee shall immediately report to the Board of Directors on the following findings, if any:-
a) report on conflicts of interests;

b) suspected or presumed fraud or irregularity or material defect in the internal control system;

c) suspected infringement of laws, including securities related laws, rules and regulations;

d) any other matter which shall be disclosed to the Board of Directors immediately.

7. Reporting to the Authority

If the Audit Committee has reported to the Board of Directors about anything which has material impact on the financial
condition and results of operation and has discussed with the Board of Directors and the management that any
rectification is necessary and if the Audit Committee finds that such rectification has been unreasonably ignored, the
Audit Committee shall report such finding to the Securities and Exchange Commission, upon reporting of such matters to
the Board of Directors for three times or completion of a period of 6 (six) months from the date of first reporting to the
Board of Directors, whichever is earlier.

8. Others

The Committee shall also:

Review annually its own performance, constitution and terms of reference to ensure it is operating at maximum
effectiveness and recommend any changes it considers necessary to the Board for approval;

Report to the Board quarterly, regarding corrective measures taken against error, fraud, deceit, or other irregularities
identified by the auditors (internal or external) or regulatory authority;

Undertake any other projects relating to its remit which it considers appropriate or as requested by the Board.

9. Authority

The Committee is authorized by the Board:

To seek any information it requires from any employee of the company in order to perform its duties;

To obtain, at the Company’s expense, outside legal or other professional advice on any matter within its terms of
reference;

To call any employee to be questioned at a meeting of the Committee as and when required; and

To gain unrestricted access to all books and records of the Company.
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POLICY OF
NOMINATION

For the Board of a Company to be effective and efficient, it should comprise of individuals who have professional qualifications
and proven experience in their respective fields of specialization.

The Nomination and Remuneration committee evaluates the Directors and recommends the Board for their appointment and
ensures optimum composition of Board. While recommending appointment of an Individual as a Director on the Board, the
committee has to review the following factors including the others:

¢ Diversity of the Board
¢ Qualification and positive attributes
¢ Independence of Directors (in the case of Independent Directors)

Regulatory Framework:

Clause 6 (5) (b) read with the applicable Clauses of Corporate Governance Code of Bangladesh Securities and Exchange
Commission require the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of a company (“NRC”) to recommend to the Board of
Directors a policy, relating to the appointment, removal and remuneration of the directors, top level executives and to devise a
policy on Board diversity.

The said governance code also require NRC to lay down the evaluation criteria for performance evaluation of Board, its
Committees and individual directors. Further, the Board of Directors is responsible for monitoring and reviewing of the Board
Evaluation framework.

The Board of Directors is also required to satisfy itself that plans are in place for orderly succession for appointments to the Board
and to senior management.

This nomination policy is framed as per the requirements of the aforesaid governance code.
Criteria for Board Nominations:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) of the Board is responsible for identifying persons for initial nomination as
directors and evaluating incumbent directors for their continued service. The following are the qualifications, positive attributes
and independence criteria laid down by the NRC of aamra technologies limited in terms of Corporate Governance Code,
Notification of BSEC and Companies Act, 1994 to be considered for nominating candidates for Board positions/appointment of
directors.

Qualifications:
Personal Traits

¢ Highest personal and professional ethics, integrity and values

e Shares the values and beliefs of the Company.

 Inquisitive and objective perspective, practical wisdom and mature judgment

e Demonstrates intelligence, maturity, wisdom and independent judgment

e Self-confidence to contribute to board deliberations, has a stature that other board members will respect his or her views.

Experience and Background

¢ Well accomplished in his / her respective field.

e Demonstrated success at policy-setting and strategy development levels in a large organization (such as corporation,
government, academic institution or profession)

¢ Typically first level leadership position (i.e., Chair, MD &CEO or equivalent) or second level (i.e., COO, CFO or other CXQ’s)
unless the Board is seeking a particular skill set (e.g., technology, human resources management or financial expert)

o Leadership role- at the time a potential director’s initial candidacy is evaluated must either be current or very fresh and
recent, and incumbent directors should continue to demonstrate a sophisticated understanding and current knowledge of
complex business issues

¢ A mastery of a broad knowledge area (e.g., engineering, finance, marketing, corporate affairs, technology, law, human
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resources management, executive leadership) that complements the skills of current board members and proposed board
role

e Absence of adverse events (e.g., bankruptcy affiliations, disqualifications under Companies Act 1994 or other applicable
laws etc.) that either disqualify or require adverse disclosures

Fit and proper

¢ The intangibles of demeanor, attitude and interpersonal skills that indicate the candidate will be an effective member of the
board of directors “team” in a major company setting

e Should act on fully informed basis, in good faith, with due diligence and care and in the best interest of the Company and
its stakeholders

¢ Should be able to exercise objective independent judgment on corporate affairs

® Special skills, expertise and background that contribute to the diversity of views and perspective of the board as a whole

e with respect to Directors being nominated for Independent position, the candidate should comply with the “Independence
qualifications” as defined by applicable laws

¢ Willingness to devote sufficient time to carry out the duties and responsibilities effectively, including attendance at
meetings

¢ Willingness to undertake appropriate induction and regularly update and refresh his/ her skills, knowledge and familiarity
with the Company

e Commitment to representing the long-term interests of the shareholders and balancing the interests of stakeholders

¢ Willingness to challenge management in a constructive manner while working effectively as a part of a team in an
environment of collegiality and trust

¢ Adhere to the code of conduct of the Company

¢ Protecting the legitimate interests of the Company, its shareholders and employees and maintain confidentiality

e Meets the age criteria and applicable tenor restrictions placed by the Board

e Absence of an unacceptable number of other board commitments

» Absence of personal and business relationships/directorship that would pose a conflict of interest to the Board position

¢ Absence of unfair obstruction in the functioning of the Board/Committees

Positive Attributes
The positive attributes for a director would encompass:

e Ethical Integrity& transparency

¢ Has/acquires sufficient knowledge in the Company’s business and operations

¢ Demonstrate sound judgement gained through experience & expertise in management/ technical/ financial /governance or
regulatory matters

e Foresight - ability to see and prepare for future, anticipate needs, opportunities and threats

¢ Managerial abilities required to lead and guide the management such as effective communication skills, cultural sensitivity,
flexibility, team player, strategic thinking, and balancing risk with opportunity, ability to juggle several variables and make
complicated decisions etc.

Independence Standards:
A Director is independent if the Board affirmatively determines that he/she meets the
Independence criteria provided under the applicable laws. In addition to applying these guidelines, the Board will consider all

relevant facts and circumstances in making its determination relative to a director’s independence.

Two core objectives in selecting board members and continued board service are that the skills, experiences and perspectives of
the Board as a whole should be broad and diverse, and the collective talent should blend together to be as effective as possible.

Independence of Directors (only in the case of Independent Directors):
Any relationship between the Company and Directors other than in the normal course will affect the Independence of Directors

in many ways. The Committee shall assure that the candidate proposed for the position of Independent Director meets the
minimum criteria for Independence set out in the Corporate Governance Code of BSEC.
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POLICY ON
REMUNERATION

The principles and criteria for the director, MD & COO, Senior Management employee remuneration policy will be annually
reviewed by the Nominations and Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors within the framework of their powers to
maintain the alignment of the Company’s remuneration policy with the best practices and trends in the market.

Therefore, the directors’ remuneration for exercising their supervision and decision-making functions is based on the following
main principles:

The remuneration must be sufficient and
conform to the directors’ dedication,

qualification and responsibilities but it must
not compromise their independent criteria.

The remuneration must be sufficient to
attract and retain directors with the talent
and profile desired by the Company.

The remuneration must be competitive,
which is achieved by establishing a
remuneration package in line with market
standards of comparable sectors and
companies.

=

The MD & Chief Executive’s remuneration for exercising his/her functions is based on the following main principles:

e Making sure that the compensation package can attract, retain and motivate the Chief Executive thanks to its structure
and overall amount and be competitive with respect to the similar trend business standards, so that the Company can
meet its strategic objectives within the increasingly competitive environment in which it operates.

e The MD & Chief Executives remuneration will necessarily be approved by the shareholders and disclosed in annual
report.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall recommend to the Board, remuneration by way of salary, perquisites and

allowances (fixed component) and variable pay to the managing director, the whole-time director, the executive directors, the
chief executive officer and other senior management employee.

The remuneration to be paid to the managing director, the whole-time director, the executive directors, the chief executive officer
and other senior management employee shall be determined keeping in view the market practice, the relative performance of the
Company to the industry performance and individual performance and shall be subject to approval of appropriate authorities, as
and when required.

Independent and non - executive directors may be paid such sitting fees for attending the meeting of the Board and its
committees, as approved by the Board time to time.
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BOARD EVALUATION
POLICY

Purpose

This policy is intended to provide a framework for inclusion to promote diversity in the Board of Taufika Foods and Lovello
Ice-cream PLC.

The Board of Directors of Taufika Foods and Lovello Ice-cream PLC. believes in the benefits diversity brings and it recognizes that
diversity of thought makes prudent business sense. Having a board composed of men and women with diverse skills, experience,
backgrounds and perspectives means:

e competitive advantage;

e robust understanding of opportunities, issues and risks;

e inclusion of different concepts, ideas, and relationships;

e enhanced decision-making and dialogue; and

e Heightened capacity for oversight of the organization and its governance.

Principles

The Board of Directors of Taufika Foods and Lovello Ice-cream PLC believes that board diversity enhances decision-making
capability and a diverse board is more effective in dealing with organisational changes and less likely to suffer from group thinking.
We recognise that board diversity is an essential element contributing to the sustainable development of the Company.

In applying this Policy we recognise that directors are appointed by shareholders, not the Board or the Company. The right to
appoint directors is one of the most important rights exercisable by shareholders and is not sought to be fettered by this Policy.

Objectives
The objectives of this Policy are, with the support of our shareholders, to have a Board which

a) ischaracterized by a broad range of views arising from different experiences when discussing business;

b) facilitates the making of informed and critical decisions; and

c) has sustainable development as its core value, and thus promotes the interests of all our stakeholders, particularly the
long term interests of our shareholders, fairly and effectively.

Scope

For purposes of Board composition, diversity includes, but is not limited to, business and industry skills and experience, age,
educational background, gender, and ethnicity. The Board will make good use of these differences and distinctions among
individuals in determining the optimum composition of the Board.

Independence

The Board shall have an optimum balanced composition of Executive, Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive
Directors as required by applicable laws so that there is a strong element of independence in the Board. The Independent
Non-executive Directors shall be of sufficient calibre and stature for their views to carry weight. In so far as the independence of
each of the Directors is concerned, this is a question of fact and the Board is committed to assessing this on an ongoing basis with
regard to all relevant factors concerned.

Gender

LOVELLO is committed to maintaining an environment of respect for people regardless of their gender in all business dealings and
achieving a workplace environment free of harassment or discrimination on the basis of gender, physical or mental state, race,
nationality, religion, age, family status, or any other attribute recognised by the laws of the country. The same principle is applied
to the selection of potential candidates for appointment to the Board and thus the Board intends to ensure at least 30% female
representation.
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Nationality and Ethnicity

LOVELLO shall encourage of having a board of directors of different nationality or ethnic backgrounds, subject to fulfilment of
required qualifications, who can contribute their knowledge and understanding of the environment, in which the com operates.

Skills and Experience

The Board shall possess a balance of skills appropriate for the requirements of the business of the Company. The Directors will
have a mix of finance, marketing, legal and management backgrounds that taken together provide the Company with
considerable experience in a range of activities.

Age

The Board shall comprise of directors with a range of ages and tenure on the Lovello Board that can enhance diversity and
minimise succession risks. In support of that objective, Non-executive Directors (excluding the Chairman) will not be considered
for re-election at an Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Company if, as at the date of the relevant AGM, they will have
reached the age of 72 years. The Board may from time to time determine to relax or waive this guideline in relation to any director
whom the Board considers has skills, experience or capabilities that cannot be replaced at the relevant time.

Board Size

The size of the Board can have a significant impact on board diversity. The Board shall ensure that the total number of members
shall not be less than 5 (five) and more than 20 (twenty).

Implementation

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) has been delegated with the overall responsibility for implementation,
monitoring and periodic review of this Policy. In assessing potential candidates for the Board, the NRC will consider the diversity
perspectives, as set out in this policy.

The shareholders shall provide required information about the qualifications, experience, and other engagement etc. of each
individual Board member so that the shareholders are aware of the composition of their Board, including diversity.

Publication and Revision
A summary of this Policy will be included annually in the Annual Report. This Policy is will also available on the company’s website.

Any revisions to the Policy as recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee will be submitted to the Board for
consideration and approval.

e Human Resource Metaphysics

Human Resource Management is a philosophy of people management based on the belief that human resources are uniquely
important to grow and sustain business success. HR philosophy of Lovello refers its leadership style of the top management, the
current corporate culture and practicing values. It is about the vision of the leader of the organization. Lovello believes in modern
HR Management approach and builds the environment suitable for the evolution of the modern HR Management. Lovello
respects and values the opinions of the main stakeholders. Lovello management and HR division puts continuous effort to change
and develop the corporate culture for its stakeholders.

Importance of Human Resources

Understanding and responding to the trends shaping the future of work enables us to create the best possible environment for
our workforce. In 2023-24, Lovello built on a number of initiatives to improve existing HR systems and processes as well as develop
new tools to enhance the employee experience. These efforts will span recruitment and employer brand; development;
engagement; performance and recognition; leadership and succession.

Recruitment and Employer Brand: Entry level candidates now respond to different approaches, for example through social
media and virtual reality, as well as look for an authentic Employee Value Proposition. We have employed a number of these
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approaches. At the same time, in line with our focus on internal mobility, we have continued our efforts to retain expertise
and experience by providing attractive career opportunities. Internal mobility also helps us turn necessary restructuring into
an opportunity.

Development: As we adopt digital tools and new ways of working, we also need to ensure our employees are equipped with
the right skills. To support this objective, we provide access to learning available anywhere and anytime via our digital learning
platform. This covers the entire range of mandatory training and available learning at Lovello. Furthermore, reflecti
commitment to help employees develop professionally and personally and advance their careers, we are pursuing a
cross-divisional approach to talent acceleration.

Engagement: It is crucial for us to understand what motivates and engages our employees and how they perceive their work
environment. Therefore, we encourage open and regular dialogue between managers and their team members.

4 p

Festival Bonus The Company pays two festival bonus @ 50% of gross salary.

Employees are awarded with a minimum increment of at least 10-20% of salary and

Yearly Increment/Promotions N .
promotion for extra ordinary performances.

The company makes a regular allocation of 5% on net profit after charging such

Contribution to Workers’ Profit contribution but before tax to this fund as per provision of Bangladesh Labour Law,

Participation and Welfare Funds 2006 and The company will transfer the fund to the trustee board and the trustee
of the fund will take decision of disbursement and investment within the stipulated
time.

Employees of Taufika Foods and Lovello Ice-Cream PLC. receive group insurance
facility from Metlife Insurance for any kind of injury during the course of their
service in the company.

Group Insurance

Taufika Foods and Lovello Ice-Cream PLC. has established this Employees’
Provident Fund by way of trust deed dated 05 day of June 2012 and recognized
under the provisions of Part B, Paragraph — 2 (1) of the first schedule of the Income
Tax Ordinance 1984 by the Commissioner of Income Tax having jurisdiction and to
be known as the “Taufika Foods and Agro Industries Limited Employees’ Provident
Fund” effective from 1st January of 2019. This Provident fund is approved as per
Income Tax Ordinance. Every member so admitted to the fund shall be bound to
subscribe to the fund in each month during the period of his service a sum equal to
10% (ten percent) of his basic salary for that month to the nearest Taka &
contributions are to be deducted from Members salary when it is disbursed and
shall be paid by the company to the Trustees.

N J

Provident Fund

Performance and Recognition: Reflecting the ambitions and needs of our employees, we have adopted a holistic approach to
performance management, which includes providing regular meaningful feedback and recognition, while holding people
accountable and promoting continuous development. This approach is directly linked to our compensation framework and
promotion process. In addition, to ensure our employees’ financial, social, mental and physical wellbeing throughout all stages
of their lives while employed at Lovello. The company provides various benefit packages to its employees in addition to
monthly benefit of salary, wages and allowances. Lists of benefits provided for the employees are as follows:

Leadership and Succession: To ensure we develop future leaders for the Lovello, we provide a number of cross-divisional
programs to foster management and leadership skills. The purpose is to equip our people with the necessary capabilities to
lead the organization through change, develop their teams, manage performance and ensure business success in line with the
Lovello’s strategy and our values and beliefs.

Diversity and Inclusion: Diversity and inclusion are vital to business success and are integral to all of our people practices and
culture. Last year, we made further progress in our integrated, multi-dimensional approach.

Code of Conduct: Acting in accordance with our Code of Conduct is vital for us to be a socially responsible company that achieves

sustainable success. The Code sets out our standards of behavior and conduct to which we expect our people to adhere. Our Code
of Conduct should be at the heart of everything we do. Its success depends on all employees using their judgment to navigate
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what is sometimes a complex regulatory environment and seeking advice as appropriate. It also highlights that critical matters
should be escalated promptly and appropriately. The Code is designed to ensure that we conduct ourselves ethically — with
integrity, and in accordance with Lovello’s policies and procedures as well as the laws and regulations that apply to us

We are committed to advocating a “speak up” culture, an environment where all employees feel comfortable in voicing their
concerns about misbehavior or any issues that they may come across in their daily work. “Speak up” is about supporting an open
and honest dialogue across the organization. This includes providing feedback when things are going well and alerting
management to potential problems and scope for improvements.

Rewarding Employees

A fair, transparent and sustainable approach to employee remuneration remains of crucial importance to the company. Our
compensation strategy is focused on supporting a competitive and sound compensation practices. Our compensation framework
aims to promote and reward sustainable performance and contributions at all levels of the organization. It provides a clear
structure of compensation composition across the company.

Wellbeing
Our employees are our most important resource and we rely on them to help us shape the future of the company. For our people
to stay healthy and engaged, perform well and thrive in their professional and personal lives we provide a comprehensive offering.

In addition to competitive compensation, we offer provident fund which complement social security and private savings.

We provide a range of benefits to help our employees manage professional and personal commitments and achieve a healthy
work-life balance. We believe that we can make a positive contribution to the good health of our people.

Employee Turnover & Retention
Lovello has an effective employee retention program which includes employee compensation, recognition and reward system,

work-life balance, communication and feedback, effective teamwork etc. The Company also has the best practices in developing
workplace culture for its employees. The company experiences minimum employee turnover.

Senior Leadership Development
We continue to place leadership and culture at the core of our transformation and change efforts. This includes intensified support

for senior talent who drive performance, innovation and culture at Lovello. This phase of corporate talent management builds on
existing executive practices by amplifying focus on board readiness, senior talent development and team effectiveness.

Workforce Management

Our workforce management concept enables us to achieve cost savings, while managing organizational change, strengthening our
corporate culture and facilitating cross-divisional collaboration through a consistent approach to planning and defining roles.

Equal Employment Opportunity

Lovello believes to provide equal opportunity in all aspects of employment for all persons, to prohibit discrimination in
employment because of age, disability, marital status, race, religion, personal appearance, family responsibilities, matriculation,
political affiliation, sex or veteran status or other unlawful factors; to prohibit sexual, racial and other forms of unlawful
harassment; and to promote the full realization of equal employment opportunity through a positive, continuing, result-oriented
program of affirmative action throughout the Organization.

As a large and diverse organization, Lovello offers these policies as a framework within which to make human resources decisions

in a competitive environment. Although progressive and flexible, the policies provide sufficient framework in a climate where our
best employees can excel and we can address the deficiencies of those who cannot meet legitimate job performance standards.

Working Environment

Lovello companies offers a wonderful and friendly environment in the office. The company has conducive and safe working
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Health, Safety and Environment

Lovello is a safe and attractive place to work. The main principle of this policy is that injury, discomfort in the job and work related
diseases, can be prevented. This can be achieved through systematic work, awareness of dangers and common sense. Lovello
strives to maintain all the employees’ motivated and educated work force.

Health, safety and environment issues must have high priority and must also be managed by objectives. All concerned are
encouraged to reduce workplace hazards and implement new or improve existing safety and health programs. It is an important
issue that all concerned employee and officials give great importance to HSE. The working environment has to be evaluated as a
company issue and all efforts should be given for a good working environment. If all demonstrates a cooperative attitude and plays
their active role concerning HSE issues, then it is expected that Lovello will become an attractive place to work having a good
atmosphere and low injuries figures.

A good and safe working environment in the company will enable all employees to render a high level of services to customers and
ensure high productivity and efficiency.
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DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION
POLICY

1.00 Introduction

The Dividend Distribution Policy is prepared and adopted in compliance with the provisions of the Directive No. BSEC/CMRRC-
D/2021-386/03 dated 14 January, 2021 of the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC) about dividend declara-
tion, pay off, disbursement and compliance.

The Board of Directors (the Board) will consider the directive while declaring/ recommending dividend on behalf of the Company.

The Policy is not an alternative to the decision of the Board for declaring/recommending dividend, which takes into consideration
all the relevant circumstances enumerated hereunder or other factors as may be decided by the Board.

2.00 Definitions

“the Act” means Companies Act 1994

“the Company” means Taufika Foods and Lovello Ice-cream PLC.
“AGM” means Annual General Meeting

“Board” means Board of Directors of Square Pharmaceuticals Ltd.

“Shareholders” means Members whose name is registered in the Member Register of the Company.
“Shares” means Ordinary Equity Shares.

3.00 Concept of Dividend
Dividend is the share of the profit that a Company decides to distribute among its Shareholders in proportion to the amount

paid-up on shares they hold in the form of Cash and/or Stock (Bonus). The profits earned by the Company can either be retained
in the business or can be distributed among the Shareholders as dividend.

4.00 Types of Dividend

The Act deals with two types of dividend - Interim and Final.

- Interim dividend is the dividend declared by the Board between two AGMs as and when considered appropriate. The Act
authorizes the Board to declare interim dividend during any financial year out of the profits for the financial year in which the
dividend is sought to be declared and/or out of the surplus in the profit and loss account.

- Final dividend is recommended for the financial year at the time of approval of the annual financial statements as well as

appropriation of profit. The Board shall have the power to recommend final dividend to the shareholders for their approval at
the AGM of the Company. Dividend recommended by the Board of Directors cannot be changed prior to holding of the AGM.

5.00 Declaration of Dividend
Subject to the provisions of the Act, dividend shall be declared and paid out of:

a. Profits of the Company for the year for which the dividend is to be paid after setting off carried over previous losses and
depreciation not provided in the previous year(s);

b. Undistributed profits of the previous financial years after providing for depreciation in accordance with law and remaining
undistributed.

c. Outofa &b both.

Before declaration of dividend, the Company may transfer a portion of its profits to reserves of the Company as may be considered
appropriate by the Board at its discretion.

In the event of inadequacy or absence of profits in any financial year, the Company may declare dividend out of free reserves
subject to the compliance with the Act and Rules.
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6.00 Factors Governing Declaration of Dividend

The decision regarding dividend pay-out is a crucial decision as it determines the amount of profit to be distributed among the
shareholders and amount of profit to be retained in business.

The circumstance for dividend pay-out decision depends on various external and internal factors which the Board of Directors
shall consider while recommend/ declaring dividend including the following:

6.01 External Factors:
e The Board shall endeavor to retain a larger portion of profits to build up reserves, in case of Adverse Economic Scenario.

e The Board shall evaluate the market trends in terms of technological changes mandating investments, competition impacting
profits, etc., which may require the Company to conserve resources.

e The Board shall consider the restrictions, if any, imposed by the Act and other applicable laws with regard to declaration of
dividend in order to ensure compliance with the applicable laws.

¢ Dividend distribution tax or any tax deduction at source as required by tax regulations, applicable at the time of declaration of
dividend may impact the decision with regard to dividend declaration.

e Other factors beyond control of the Management like natural calamities, fire, etc. effecting operations of the Company
may impact the decision with regard to dividend declaration.

6.02 Internal Factors:

e Profitability

e Availability and Liquidity of Funds

e Capital Expenditure needs for the existing businesses

e Expansion/Modernization of the business

e Additional investments in subsidiaries/associates of the Company
e Cost of raising funds from alternate sources

e Cost of servicing outstanding debts

e Funds for meeting contingent liabilities

e Mergers and Acquisitions

e Any other factor as deemed appropriate by the Board.

Apart from the above factors, the Board also considers past dividend history and sense of shareholders’ expectations while
determining the rate of dividend. The Board may additionally recommend special dividend in special circumstances.

7.00 Financial Parameters for Declaring Dividend

The Company is committed to deliver sustainable value to its stakeholders. The Company shall strive to distribute an optimal and
appropriate level of the profits among the shareholders in the form of dividend.

To keep investment attractive and to ensure capital appreciation for the shareholders, the Company shall also endeavor to provide
consistent return over a period of time. While deciding on the dividend, micro and macroeconomic parameters for the country in
general and the Company in particular shall also be considered.

Taking into consideration the aforementioned factors, the Board shall endeavor to maintain a dividend pay-out.

8.00 Utilization of Retained Earnings
Subject to the provisions of the Act and other applicable laws, retained earnings may be utilized as under:

e |ssue of fully paid-up bonus shares

e Declaration of dividend-Interim or Final

e Augmenting internal resources

¢ Funding for capital expenditure/expansion plans/acquisition;
e Repayment of debt

e Any other permitted use as may be decided by the Board.
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9.00 Parameters for Various Classes of Shares

Currently, the Company has only one class of shares - Equity Shares. There is no privilege amongst Equity Shareholders of the
Company with respect to dividend distribution.

10.00 Circumstances Impacting Dividend Payment

The Company has been paying dividend to its shareholders around three decades and shall endeavor to continue with the
dividend payment.

Given here in below are some of the circumstances in which shareholders of the Company may or may not expect dividend
pay-out:

10.01 May Expect Dividend:

e Adequate profits and liquidity
e Accumulated profits not warranted for immediate business needs.

10.02 May Not Expect Dividend:

¢ Non availability of profits for dividend distribution
e Funds available for dividend but need to be conserved due to:

- Business needs;

- Adverse economic /market scenario expected in near future;
- Augmenting internal resources.

11.00 Disclosure

This Dividend Distribution Policy shall be disclosed in the Annual Report of the Company and
on the Company’s website: www.lovello.club

If the Company proposes to declare dividend on the basis of any additional parameters apart from those mentioned in the Policy

or proposes to change the parameters contained in this Policy, it shall disclose such changes along with the rationale for the same
in the Annual Report and on the website.

12.00 Effective Date

This Policy has been approved by the Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on 6th April, 2021 and shall be
effective and applicable for dividend, onwards.

13.00 Review/Amendment

The Board may amend, abrogate, modify or revise any or all provisions of this Policy. However, amendments in the Act or in
the Listing Regulations shall be binding even if not incorporated in this Policy.
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UNCLAIMED/UNSETTLED
DIVIDEND

Summary of unclaimed/unsettled cash dividend for the FY 2020-21

Particulars Amount
Dividend declared for the FY 2020-21 9,35,00,000
Dividend disbursement 8,85,88,447
Total Dividend lying with the Company 49,11,553

Summary of unclaimed/unsettled cash dividend for the FY 2021-22

Particulars

Dividend declared for the FY 2021-22

Amount

10,20,00,000

Dividend disbursement

9,74,93,592

Total Dividend lying with the Company

45,06,408

Summary of unclaimed/unsettled cash dividend for the FY 2022-23

Particulars

Amount

Dividend declared for the FY 2022-23 8,50,00,000
Dividend disbursement 8,09,52,670
Total Dividend lying with the Company 40,47,330

Summary of total unclaimed/unsettled cash dividend for the FY 2020-21, 2021-22 & 2022-23

CETL T ET Amount
Unclaimed/unsettled cash dividend for the FY 2020-21 49,11,553
Unclaimed/unsettled cash dividend for the FY 2021-22 45,06,408
Unclaimed/unsettled cash dividend for the FY 2022-23 40,47,330
Total Dividend lying with the Company as on 30 June 2024 1,34,65,291

TAUFIKA FOODS AND LOVELLO ICE-CREAM PLC
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SUPPLY CHAIN
MANAGEMENT

Supply chain management is the handling of the entire production flow of a goods or service starting from the raw components
all the way to delivering the final product to the consumer. It is create a network between a company and its suppliers to produce
and distribute a specific product to the final buyer. The supply chain also represents the steps it takes to get the product or service
from its original state to the customer.

Supply Chain Practice in Taufika Foods and Lovello Ice-Cream PLC:

=~

Payment @
= “fAssesment of
g - Requirement

&

o Verification of
0§ Requirement
Approval Lovello

for Payment SUPPLY
CHAIN ' =
FLOW iy
. Work Order
Operation v
Ex%ion
Quality of Order
Control

Supply chain Management is aimed to examining and managing supply chain network to cost savings, overall quality output & just
in time service. Taufika Foods and Lovello Ice-Cream PLC follow a standard work flow chart for Supply Chain Management as
follows:

Procurement Practice

Procurement is the process of purchasing goods or services and is usually in reference to business spending. Procurement is most
commonly associated with businesses because companies need to solicit services or purchase goods, usually on a relatively large
scale. Taufika Foods and Lovello Ice-Cream PLC has a procurement practice which is guided by the procurement manual and
purchase practice must comply with procurement guideline, Policy and principle. Cash Purchase is highly discourage. For all kind
of purchase, several quotations are obtained to ensure competitive cost. Procurement practices of Taufika Foods and Lovello
Ice-Cream PLC as follow:

Requisition e o Quotation
Verifivation Collection

PreAudit Quotation Work Order
Approval

Execution QC Clerance Payment
of Work by User Dept
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VALUE CHAIN MODEL @
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We, Taufika Foods and Lovello Ice-Cream PLC are portraying all business activities, carried out in regular business to create value
for stakeholders by a value chain mode in order to do this we have adopted porter’s value chain analysis to examine all activities,
the way in which value chain activities are performed, to see how they are connected and how these activities are affecting costs
and profits.

Primary Business activities:

Inbound Logistics

Sourcing suppliers of high-quality materials
Strong relationship with suppliers and vendors
Logistics and stock management

Supply schedules are matched with production

Operation
Anticipating, identifying, developing and delivering fabric to meet the customer needs

Automated & manual manufacturing process

Compliance in every aspect and step of the production processes
Quality control and inspection

Order fulfillment on time

Real time inventory and sales tracking system

Outbound logistic

Efficient dispatch and delivery system

Inventory management

On time delivery

Emergency shipment

Sales and Marketing

Effective customer management system

Efficient sales by skill and experiences employees

Regular training of the sales team through sales training department
Entering new and emerging markets

Market research

Branding and promotion of products

Service

Customer survey and seeking feedback
Structured approach to understand to the requirement of customers
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Support Business Activities:

Firm Infrastructure

e The design of the building and factory is good and reflects modern concept

e Prevalence of good governance

e Practice of strong code of business conduct

e Improved communication between different department through the intranet
e Better accounting and financial management practices

Human Resource Management

e Offering healthy working environment

e Strong HR department to recruit, training and motivate employee

e Excellent corporate culture for team work and leadership development
e Competitive salary package and compensation benefits

e Ensuring employees health and safety issues

Technology Development

e Installation of machinery and equipment with advanced technologies

e |T department with required expertise

e Development of in-house customized software

e Efficient R&D departments continuously engaged with developing new product or upgrading existing one.
e Procurement

e Direct contract with vendors and suppliers

e Good cross border relationship

e |T based procurement planning and inventory management system

e Practice of strong code of business conduct.

Wmn &

' The Westin Dhaka [ Thursday, 11 Moy 20% 00 PM

For Supplying 25,000 rcs
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
to the shareholders of
Taufika Foods and Lovelle Ice-Cream PLC

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Taufika Foods and Lovello [ee-Cream PLC which cumprise the Statement of
Financial Position as at June 30, 2024 and Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive lncome. Statement of
Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended June 30, 2024, and notes to the financial statements.
including u summary of significant accouniing policies and other explanatory notes.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements of the Company give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Company as at June 30, 2024, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended June 30, 2024 in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs), the company Act 1994, the Securities and Exchange
Rules, 2020 and other applicable laws and regulations.

Basis for Opinian

We conduct owr andit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilitics under those
standurds are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilitics for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board tor Accountants” Code of
trhics for Professional Accountants (1LSBA Lode) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accomlance with
the JLSBA Code and the Instituie of Chartered Accountants oi Bangladesh (ICAB) By Luws, We believe that the audit
evidenee we have abtained is sutficient and appropriale i pravide a basis for vur unqualified opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our profissional Judgment, were of most significance in ovr audit of the financial
statements of the current period, These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of (he financial statements as «
whole, and in forming our upinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

~ Risk Our response t¢ the risk

Revenve Recognition
During the year ended June 30, 2024, | We have tested the design and operating effeciveness of key contols focusing
wtal  veporied  revenue is of Tk | on the following:

992,132,243,

* Obtining an understanding of and assessing the design and operating
effectivencss of contrals designed v ensure that revenue is recognized in the
appropriale aceounting period,

Revenue is measured net of discounts,
VAT, incentives and rebates earned by
customers an the Compamy’s sales.
Within a number of the Compamny's | -
nurkets, the estimation of discounts,
incentives und rebates recognized based
on sales made during the vear s »
muterial and considered to be complex
and judgriental. Therefure, there s a
risk of revenue being misstated s a
resuft of faulty  cstimations  over | » Verifying the monthly VAT return form 9.1 to confipn reporting about sales
discounts. incentives, rebates. There is 10 NRR,

also a sisk that revenue may be
overstated  due to  fraud  through 5
manipulation  of  the discounts,
incentives  and  rebates recognized

resulting  from  the  pressure  local | . . . L N , ,
e : . # Comparing a sample of revenue transactions recognized during the vear with
managemenl may  teel o achieve ’

the sale invoices and other relevant underlyving ducumentation,
= formance. g i

Segregation of dutics in invoice crestion and modification (if any}) and
timing of revenue recognition,

Assessing the appropriateness of the Company’s accounting policies for
revenue recognition and compliance of those policies with applicable
aceounting standards.,

Obtaining supporting documents for sale transactivn along with checking the
recording period of revenus recognition,

Brunch Office:

Sultana Tower (Level-12), 2 No. Kalabagan, Mirpur Road
Drhanrmondi, Dhaka-1205, Mobile @ 01726-3384492

c-mail: mebmedkziebd@oman, com. mdefiekharahiZ gmail, com

Head Office:

Heme Town Apartmeats ¢ Tevel 1% & Flar B, Lavel 13)
#7, New Eskaren Boad, Dihaka TO00,

Tel: 0 41032537 Mabile: +RAI 713013955

e il kzkcdBgamail com, kehe_Bd@vuhoo com
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Risk Our response to the risk

# Critically assessing manual journals posted to revenue o identify unusual or
irregular items, and finally assessed the appropriatcness and presentation of
disclosures against relevant accounting standards,

Please see note no. 24 to the statement of profit or loss & other comprehensive income,

Inventory Valuation

Our audit included the following procedures:
During the year ended June 30, 2624,
wial reported  imventory is of Tk *  Evaluating the design and implementation of key inventory controls
501,622,491, vperating  across the compuny, including thase at a sample ol
distribution centers, warchouses and branches,

The company had inventory which held
in distribution centers, warehouses and
aumerous  branches.  and  across
multiple product lines. Inventories are
carried at the lower af cost and et
realizable svalue, As @ resuin the
Directors  apply  judgement  in
determining (he appropriate values for
slow-moving or obsolew items.

L

Auending inventory counts and reconciling the count resulis to the
inventory listings to test the completeness of data.

# Comparing the net realizable value, obained through a detailed review
ol sales subsequent o the wear-cnd, to the cost prive ol a sample of
inventorivs and comparison 1o the associated Provision (o gssess
whether inventory provisions are complete.

¥ Reviewing the historical accuracy of inventory provisioning, and the
level of inventory write-of's during the vear.

Pleuse see note no. § to the financial statements

Long Term Loan

At reporting date, the position of Long- | We have tesied the design and operating effectiveness of key contrals forusing
erm Loan including current portion | on the following:
outstanding was Tk. 953,468,887 for

the  Company., In other words, | »  Understanding and reviewing the nature of types of loans.

approximately  60.77%  of ol 5 Review: i . . :

liabilities are represcnied by loans for eviewing the board meeting minutes on arrangements of the loans.

the Company Evidently. the Company | » Obtaining the repayment schedules, loan statements and facility offer letters
is using loan 10 operate the business o review teams, debi covenunts, interest rates and other conditions
amnd alse, W acouire non-current assets. associated with the loars,

Loan, therefore, has been considered as N ) .

Key audit arca. #  Recacaluling the interes: related to loans.

»  Finally, assessing the approprizteaess and presentation of disclosures against
relevant accounting standords.

Please see note no. 16 to the financial statements

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements and Internat
Controls;

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the finunciyl stataents in accordance with TFRSs,
other applivable laws and regulations and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to cnabie the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, munggement is responsible for assessing the entity’s ability o continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related o going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting wnlesy
management either intends to liguidate the entity or to cease operations. or has no realistic alternative but w do so.

These charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the entity’s financial reporting process.

Head Office:

Flame Town Apariments { Level 15 & Flat B, Lavel 13)

A7, New Eskaon Read, Dhaka 0040
Tel: 02-41032537, Motle: +8501713-01 3055
e il hehedB@gmanl.com. krke_bégyahon.com

Branch {()ffice:

Sulians Tower (Level 1232 Na. Kalabagan, Mirpur Road
Dhmcnomb. Bhaka 1205, Mobile : §1726-339892

c-minl: mahmudkeked@ el com, mdeliekharalbg zmal, conm

TAUFIKA FOODS AND LOVELLO ICE-CREAM PLC 115



Annual Report-2023-24

‘ i ABACUS
Kazi Zanm Kuan & Co.

{Chartered Accountants
In Praguice Since 1080

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements:

Our objectives are to oblain reasonable assurunce about whether the financial stulements as a whole are tree from material
misstatement. whether due to fraud or crror, and 1o issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
4 high level of assurance. but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs will always deteet a material
misstaterent when it exists, Misstatements can arise 1rom fraud or error and are corsidered material if. individually or in the
aggregaic. they could reasunably be expected o influence the econamic decisions of users tuken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part o un yudit in accordance with 1SAs. we excreise professional Judgmenls and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:
*  Identily and ussess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedurcs responsive to those risks. and obtain aodit evidence that is sutficient and appropriate w
provide a basis for sur upinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resuiting from error, as fravd may invelve collusion, turgery, intentional omissions. misrepresentations. or the
override of internal control.
¢ Oblain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedurcs that are
appropriate in the circumstances. but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effeclivencss ol the
Company*s internal control,
*  Fvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimales and related
disclosures made by management.
Conclude on tke appropriateness of management’s use of the going coneern basis of accounting and. based on the
audit evidence obtained, whoether 2 material uncertainly exists s¢lated 1o events or conditions thar may cast sighificant
doubt on the Company s ability 1o continue as a going concern, 1{ we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw atiention in our auditor's repor 1o the related disclosures in the tinancial statements or, it such
disclosures are inadequate, to medify our upinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up © the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may vause the Company to cease 0 continug as a
£0INE concem.
Evaluate the overall presentation. structure and content of the Fmancial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying ransactions and events in & manner that achieses fair
presentation.

We communicate with thuse charged with governance regarding. among other matiers, the planned scope and timing ol the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identity during owr audit,
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and 1o coinmunicate with them alf relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
tear on our independence. and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matiers communicated with those charged with govemance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current periud und are theretore the key vudit matters. We describe
these matiers n our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we delermine that a matier should not be cammunicated in our repart because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements:
I accordance with the Companies Act. 1994, the Securities and Lxchange Rules, 2020 and relevanl notifications issues by, we
alsw report that:
4l We have obained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and beliel were necessary
for the purpase of our audit and made due verification thereof;

Branch Office:

Suliza Tower (Lovel 123, 2 X, Ralabagan, Mirpor Road
Phanmondi, Daca 1205, Mobte - 01726-

c-mal mhrradkzkehd Zamail com, muestekncalidhenail o

Head Office:

Homie Toran Apaniments [ Lavel 15 & Flar B, Lavel-15)
E7, New bxkain Roud, Dhiba- 10H).

Tel: H2-410325357 ) Motale: + BROL713-0H 3935
c-mml kekedB@gnrail con:, kicke b frpahio. con
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b} In our opinion, proper books of accounts. records and other statutory bouks as requited by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appeared [rom our cxaminations of those hooks:

9] T}.lc Financial Stawements of the company together with the annexed notes dealt with by the report are in agreement
with the baoks of account and relurns.

d}  The expenditure incurred was for the purposes of the Company s business,

Kazi Zahir Khan & Co., Chartered Accountants
FRC Registration # CAF-001-116

Place: Dhaka Md. Nu in Khan FCA
Dated: Managi er
DVC: 1711012024 Earollme 20

2L1017D743ACR2TR19

RBrunch OiTice:

Sultan Tower (Lesel 123, 2 No Kalubagan, Minur Road
Lihanmondi. Puka- 1205, Mobile | 81726 339892

e-mtdil: mahmudkzkebd@email com, mdeflekharali@ gmeal com

Head Offtee:

Home Trwn Apartmears | Level-15 & Flar B, Lave! 13}
&5, New Eskaton Boad, Dhaka 1066,

Tel: 62 J1032357, Motile: +~RRO2713-015935

e mal: kzkudd@@a il com, kzke_bd Fryaloa: com

TAUFIKA FOODS AND LOVELLO ICE-CREAM PLC 117



Annual Report-2023-24

KAZI ZAHIR KHAN & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Taufika Foods and Lovello lce-Cream PLC
Statement of Financial Position

As at 30 June 2024
Partcuar L Now ot ]

A. Non-current Assets 1, 365,665,749 | 440,327
Propenty, Plant & Equipments 4.00 1, 145,944,020 1,110,666,223
ROU Assets 4.01 175,846,253 187,257,301
Intangible Assets 5.00 462,153 451,805
Capital Work=-in-progress 6,00 29,612,716 31,271,000
Investment 7.00 13,800,607 13,793,999
B. Current Assets 1.339,669,406 1,280,940,304
Inventories 8.00 501,622,491 482,397,363
Trade & Other Receivables 2,00 439,864 964 426,622,688
Inter-company Receivables 10.00 8,520,579 7,950,000
Advance, Deposits & Prepayments 11.00 230,081,742 218,879,582
Cash and Cash Equivalents 12.00 159,579,630 145,090,668
TOTAL ASSETS (A+B) LM&IES 1&2@&1
EQUITIES & LIABILITIES:

C. Sharehalders’ Equity 1,136,424,360 1,099,653,011
Share Capital 13.00 H50,000,000 £50,000,000
Retained Earnings 14.00 286,424,360 249,653,011
D, Non-current Liabilities 1,055,149,598 981,948,546
Deferred Tax Liability 15.00 66,809,472 74,119,030
Long-term Loan 16,00 741,586,912 680,452,103
Lease Liability 17.00 246,753,213 237,377.414
E. Current Liabilities 513,761,197 542,779,073
Current Portion of Long-term Loan 16,00 211,881,974 194,414,886
Current Portion of Lease Loan 17.00 90,436,094 £3,334,782
Short-T'erm Loan 18.00 - 13,901,325
Trade & Other Payables 19.00 40,127 558 58,047,293
Linbilities for Expenses 20,00 21,393,140 23,558,911
Prowision for WPPF 21.00 8.211,531 7,730,887
Provision for Income Tax 1200 128,245 309 91,018,062
Undisbursed Dividend 13.00 13,465,291 70,763,928
Total Equity & Liabilities: !.MS. 155 wﬁl
Net Asset Value Per Share 31.00 13.37 12.94

The accompanying notes form an integral part of thiz financial statements are 10 be rend in conjunction therewith,

Company Secretary

Chiel Finan r

St

Chairman

Signed in terms of our separate report of even date annexed.

Place: Dhaka
Dated: Cetober 17, 2024
DVC: 24101 70240A5837819
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KAZI ZAHIR KHAN & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Taufika Foods and Lovello lee-Cream PLC
Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 30 June 2024
Particulars H Notes I ——AmountinTaka |
| 30-Jun-24 0-Jun-23 |
Sales 24.00 992,132,243 943,667,285
Less: Cost of Goods Sold 25.00 577,935,197 558,930,279
Gross Profit 414,197,046 384,737,006
Operating Expenses: 141,034,522 143,284,585
Administrative Expenses 26,00 15,378,844 16,687,750
Marketing & Selling Expenses 27.00 125,655,678 126,596,834
Operating income 273,162,525 141,452,421
Financial Expenses 128,225,191 116,877,787
Finance cost 28.00 | 128,225,191 || 116,877,787 |
Profit before other income 144,937,334 124,574,634
Other Income 25.00 | 14,887,562 || 13,590,518 |
Met profit before WPPF 159,824,896 138,165,152
Provision for WPPF 21.00 [ 7.610,709 | | 6,579,293 |
Met Profit Before Tax 152,214,186 131,585,859
Income Tax Expense 30,442,837 26,321,934
Current Tax 22.00 37,752,395 11,639,189
Deferred Tax 15.00 (7,309,558} 14,682,745
Met Profit after Tax 121,771,349 105,263,925
Other Comprehensive Income
Total Comprehensive Income 121,771,349 105,263,925
Earnings per Share (Per value Tk. 10) 30.00 1.43 1.24

The accompanying notes form an integral pant of this financial statements are to be read in conjunction therewith,

Company Secretary Chiefl Finanos er

Signed in terms of our separate report of even date annexed.

St

Chairman

Kazi Zahir Khan & Co., Chartered Accountants

FRC Registration # CAF-001-116

Place: Dhaka Md. Nur

Dated: October 17, 2024 ~ =" Managing

DVC: 2410170240A5837819 Enrolment
6
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KAZI ZAHIR KHAN & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Taufika Foods and Lovello lce-Cream PLC

Statement of Changes in Equity
Faor the year ended 30 June 2024
- Amount in Taka
Particulars Share Capital | SPare Money | Retained Total
Deposit Earnings

Balance as on July 01, 2023 E50,000,000 - 249653012 1,099,653,012
Share Capital - -
Met Income for the vear 121,771,349 121,771,349
Less: Dividend for FY 2022-23 (85,000,000) (85,000,000)
Balance as on June 30, 2024 | 820,000,000 [ - | 286,424,361 [ 1,136,424,361

Taufika Foods and Lovello lee-Cream PLC

Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 30 June 2023
Amount in Taka
Particulars Share Capital Share Money R““.“d Total
Deposit Earnin

Balance as on July 01, 2022 850,000,000 - 246,389,086 1,096,389,086
Share Capital - .
|Met Income for the year 105,263,925 105,263,925
Less: Dividend for FY 2021-22 (102,000,000) {102,000,000)
Balance as on June 30, 2023 | 850,000,000 | - | 249,653,012 [  1,099,653,012

Statement of Changes in Equity

Taufika Foads and Lovello [ce-Cream PLC

Cnmpn% Secretary

TAUFIKA FOODS AND LOVELLO ICE-CREAM PLC

e

Chief Financial Officer

i}
Managing tor

For the year ended 30 June 2022
Amount in Taka
Particulars Share Capital | Stare Money | Retained Total
Deposit Earnings

Balance as on July 01, 2021 30,000,000 - 218,294,076 1,068,294,076
Share Capital - -
Met Income for the year 121,595,010 121,595,010
Less: Dividend for FY 2020-21 (93,500,000) (93,500,000}
Balance as on June 30, 2022 | 850,000,000 - 1,096 [

St

Chairman




KAZI ZAHIR KHAN & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Taufika Foods and Lovello Ice-Cream PLC
Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 30 June 2024

Amount in Taka
Particulars Notes 30-Jun-24 T Wdun2d
A. Cash Flows lrom Operating Activities :
Cash Received from Customers 978,889,967 £72,563,504
Cash Received from other Sources 14,887,562 13,590,518
Cash Paid to Suppliers and Creditors (586,762,316) (548,488,331)
Cash Paid for Operating Expenses (48,569,779) (47,605.851)
Cash paid for Income Taxes (4,591.300) (10,366,052)
Net cash inflow/{outflow) from operating activities 353,854,133 179,693,788
B. Cash flow from Investing Activities:
Acquisition of Property, Pland & Equipment (161,100,126) (179,459,377)
Increase Investment (6,608) (290,758)
Capital Work in Progres 1,658,284 (31,271,000
Net cash inflow/ (outflow) in Investing Activities (159,448,450) (211,021,135)
C. Cash flow from Financing Activities:
Paid up capital & .
Bank Loan 64,700,574 222,573,770
Lease Loan 26,477,112 (12,448,904)
Dividend Paid (142,298,637) {36,744,690)
Inter-company Receivables (570,579) (5,450,000)
Financial Expenses (128,225,191) (116,877,787)
Net cash inflow/{outflow) in Minancing activities (179,916,721) 51,052,389
I} Increase(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalent (A+B+C) 14,488,962 19,725,042
E. Opening of Cash and Cash Equivalent 145, 0490 668 125,365,626
F. Ending Cash and Cash Equivalent (D+E) 159,579.6.30 145,090,668
Net Operating Cash Flow Per Share (NOCFPS) 32.00 4.16 2.11

Company Secretary

Chief Financial Officer

St

Chairman
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KAZI ZAHIR KHAN & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Taufika Foods and Lovello Iee-Cream PLC
Explanatory Notes to the Financial Statements
As at and for the year ended 10 June 2024

Corporate History of the Reporting Entity
Legal Status of the Entity

Taufika Foods and Loveile Ice-Cream PLC, The Company (Former Taufika Foods and Agro industries
Limited } was incorporated in Bangladesh as a Private ©.imited Company under The Companies Act, 1994
vide Registration No. C-94700/11 dated August 07, 2011 Subsequently, the Company was converted into
a public limited Company dated 08 July 2015 and the company has been enlisted with DSE & CSE on
Februury 02, 2021, And the company also change its name Tavfika Foods and Agro [ndustries Limited to
Taufika Foods and Loveilo fee-Cream PLC on 20th june 2021,

The Company started iis commercial operation on January 02, 2016. its Corporate Head Office located at
Plot-80, Road-02, Banani, Dhaka-1213 and Factory is located at Bashil, Kathali, Valeka, Mymensingh.

Corporate Business

The Company is an [ce-cream manuotacturer and supplier in Bangladesh.
Basis of preparation, presentation and disclosures of financisl statements

Statement of Compliance

The financial statements have been prepared under historical cost convention on a poing concern basis
following accrual basis of accounting in accordance with the International Accounting Standards {IASs),
Internaticnal Financial Reporting Standards (iFRSs), The Companies Act 1994 and Securities and
Exchange Rules 2001,

Regnlatery Compliances

The financial statements of the company under reporting have been prepared in accordance with
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles and Practice in Bangladesh in compiiance with The
Companies Act 1994, The Securities and Exchange Rules 1987, The Listing Regulations of Dhaka Stock
Exchange Lid (DSE) & Chittagong Stock Exchenge Lid. (CSE), International Accounting Standards
tIAS) as adopted by Financial Reporting Council (FRC), International Financial Reporting Standards
{IFRS) as adopted by Financial Reporting Council (FRCY and other applicable ruies and regulations.

Basis of measurement

Thesc financial statements have been prepared under the -historical cost’ convention method.
Fundamenta] Aceounting Concepts/ Assumption

The Fipancial Statements have been prepared based on Going Concern, Consistency and Accrual
Concepts and such other convention as required by IAS-] for Fair Presemation of Financial Statements.

Other regulatory compliances

tn addition, the Company is also required to comply with the following major legal provisions;
fncome Tax Act-2023

The Income Tax Ordinance, 1984

The Income Tax Rules, 1984

The Value Added T'ax and Supplementary Duty Act, 2012

The Value Added Tax and Supplementary Duty ruies, 2016.

The Customs Act 2023

The Company Act 1994

The Bangladesh Labour Act 2006, and

Bangladesh Labour (Amendment) Act 2013

ephie—
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Taufika Fooeds and Lovelle Iee-Cream PLC
Explanatory Notes to the Financial Statements
As at and for the vear ended 30 June 2024

Presentation of Financial Statements

The presentation of these financial statements is in accordance with the guidelings provided by IAS |
‘Presentation of Financial Statements’. The Financial Statement comprises

aj A statement of financial position;

b) A statement of profit or loss and olher comprehensive income;

¢} A statement of changes in equity;

d} A statement of cash flows; and

&) notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and explanatory information.

Preparation and Presentation of Financizl Statements of the Company
The Board of Directors are responsibie for preparing and presenting the financial statements including
adequate disclosures, who approved and authorized for issue of this financial statements.
Going Concern
The company has adequate resources 1o continue in operation for the foreseeable future. For this reasons
the direciors continue to adopt going concem basis in preparing the financial statements. The current
credit facilities and resources of the company provides sufficient fund to meet the present requirements of
its existing business.
Reporting Period
The period of the financial statements covers period from July 01, 2023 to June 30, 2024,
Provisions
In accordance with the guidelines as prescribed by [AS-37: Provisions, Contingent Linbilities and
Contingent Asscts, provisions are recogaized in the foliowing situations:

a. when the company has an obligation { legal or constructive) as  result of past events;

b. when it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required

1o settle the obligation; and
c. reliable estimates can be made of the amount of the abligation.

Events after the Reporting Period

In compliance with the requirements of 1AS 1¢: Events After the Repurting Period, post statement of
financial position events that provide additional information about the cam pany's posilion at the reporting
date are reflected in the financial statements and events afier the reporting period there are adjusting
events those are disclosed as follows:

i. The company has been declared 10% cash and 10% stack dividend in this financial year {2023-2024)
Functional and Presentational (Reporting) Currency

The [inancial statements are prepared and presented in Bangladesh Currency {Taka), Which is (he
company's functional currency. All financial information presented have been rounded off 1o the nearest
Taka except where indicated otherwise.

Figures in brackets indicated negative balance.

Comparative Information and Rearrangement Thereof

Comparative figures have been re-arranged wherever considered necessary to ensure better comparability
with the current period without causing any impact on the profit and value of assets and liabilities as
reported in the financial siatements.

hwhs=
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Taufika Feods and Lovello Ice-Cream PLC
Explanatory Notes to the Financial Statements
As at and for the year ended 30 June 2024

Principal Accounting Policies

The specific accounting policies selected and applied by the company’s directors for significant
transactions and events that have material effect in preparation and presentation of financial statements
within the framework of LAS-1 “Presentation of Financial Statcments”, have been consistently applied
throughout the year and were also consistent with those used in earlier yeurs,

For a proper understanding of the financial statements, these accounting policies are set out below in one
place as prescribed by the IAS-1 “Presentation of Financial Statements”™. The recommendations of 1A5-1
refating the format of financial statements were also taken into full consideration for fair presentation:

1AS 1 Prescatation of Financial Statements

1AS 2 Inventories

1AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows

1AS § Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
1AS 1) Events After the Reporting Period

IAS 12 Income Taxes

IAS 16 Property, Plant & Equipment

IAS 19 Employees Benefits

[AS 23 Buorrowing Costs

[AS 24 Related Party Disclosures

IAS 33 Earnings Per Share

IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets,

I1AS 38 Intangible Assets

IFRS 01 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards
IFRS 07 Financial [nstruments: Disclosures

IFRS 09 Financial lastruments

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Cusiomers

ITRS 16 Leases

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

TFor a proper understanding of the (inancial statentents ; these accounting policies are set out helow in one
place as prescribed by the 1AS-1 "Presemation of Financial Statements”. The recommendations of JAS-1
relating the format of financial statements were also taken into full consideration for fair presentatior.

Property, Plant & Equipment (PPL})
i} Recognition of Property, Plant & Equipment

These are capitalized at cost of acquisition and revalued amount and subsequently stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation, The cost of acquisition comprises of purchase price, including import dutics
and non-refundable Taxes and any directly attributable cost of bringing the assets to its working condition
for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after the assets have been put imo operation, such as repairs
and maintenance is normally charged off us revenue expenditure in the period in which it is incurred. In
sitvation where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future
economic benefit expected w0 be obtained from the use of the PPE, the expenditure is capitalized as an
additional cost of the PPF. j

On retirement or otherwise disposal of PPE, the cost and accumuiated depreciation are eliminated and any
gain or loss on such disposal is reflected in the income statement which is determined with reference to
the net book value of PPE and the net sales proceeds.

A
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Explanatory Notes 10 the Financial Statements
Asat and for the year ended 30 June 2024

it} Depreciation

Depreciation on all PPE other than Land & Land development has been charged when the PPE was
available for use and is computed using the Reducing balance method so as to write off the assets over
their expected useful life, Gifice space is depreciated as per lease contract.

After considering the useful life of PPE as per [AS-16. the annual depreciation rates have been applied as
under which is considered reasonable by the management.

Particulars 30 June, 2024 | 30 June 2023
Land & Land Development {% (%%
Building & Civii Works 5% 5%
Plant and Machinery 10% 10%
Furniture and Fixtures 10%% 16%
Freezer 1% 10%
Office Equipment 18% 16%
Motor Vehicles 20% 20%
Office Space 20% 20%
Computer Softwere 50% 50%

Capital Work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress represents the cost incurred for acquisition andor construction of property, plant
and equipment that were not ready for use at the end of the period 36 June 2024 and these are stated at
cost.

Impairment of assets

All Fixed assets have been revicwed and it was confrimed that no such fixed assels have been im paried
duriny the year and for this reasons, no provision hus beecn made for impairment of assets.

Revenue Recognitien

As per [FRS-15 “Revenuc from Contracts with Customers™. Revenue is too recognized when it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the organization and the
amount of revenue can be measured reliably. The Company recognizes revenue at the point of raising
invoices to the customersiclients. Turnover is shown net of return and discount. Sales revenue is

recoenized on accrual basis as and when goods are delivered.
Other Income

All other income is recognized when the Company’s right to receive such income has been reasonably
determined and ali conditions precedent is satisfied.

Long Term Loan

Long Term loans are non-current liabilities arising from loans taken from different banks which are not
repayable within one year.

Short term loan and bank overdraft

Short term loans are current liabilities arising from loans taken from different banks which are repayable
within one year. Bank overdrafts are repayable on demand which were taken to meet up the working
capital rquirement,

Liability for expenses

Lisbilities are recognized for amounts to be paid in future for goods and serviees, whether or not billed by
the suppliers.

Yrbe-
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KAZI ZAHIR KHAN & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Taufika Foods and Lovello lee-Cream PLC
Explanatory Notes to the Financial Statements
As at and for the year ended 30 June 2024

3.08 Advances, deposits and pre-payments

Advances, Deposits & Pre-payments are unsecured but considered good.

i) Advances

Advances are initially measured at cost. After initial recognition, advances are carried at cost less
deductions, adjustments or changes to other accounts heads.

ii) Deposits

Deposits are measured at payment value.

iii) Prepayments

Prepayments are initially measured at cost. After initial recognition, prepayments are carried at cost less

charge to profit and loss accounts.

3.09 Inventories

[nventories comprise Raw Materials, Packaging Material, Finished Goods and Work in process. They are
stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value in accordance with [AS 2 “inventories” after making due
allowance for any obsolete or slow moving item. The costs of inventories are assigned by using weighted
average ¢ost method. Net realizable value of Work in Process is determined after deducting the estimated
cost of campletion and estimated cost necessary to make the sale from estimated selling price.

3.10  Basis of valuation of inventories
ate Basis of Valuation

At the lower of cost and net realizable vaiue. The cost includes
allocation of production overheads that relate to bringing the
inventories to their present condition and location.

Finished products and
work-in-process

Raw and packaging

. At the lower of cost and net realizable value.
materials

Goods in transit At cost including related charges.

3.11  Finance Costs:
Finance costs comprise interest expense on bank loan and other borrowings and are recognized in the
income statenvent using effective interest method.

3.12  Finance Income:

Finance income comprise of interest income receivable from FDR from Trust Bank Ltd. and Shimanto
Bank Ltd. And also interest received from bank current accounts.

3.13 Employees' benefit schemes
i) Defined contribution fund (Provident fund)

The Company maintains an equal contributory recognized provident fund (@10% for its eligible
permanent employees. The provident fund is being considered as defined contribution plan being
managed by a separate Board of Trustges,

!..1'-‘:’5“‘""
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Explanatory Notes o the Financial Statements
As at and for the vear ended 30 June 2024

i) Workers' profit participation and welfare fund

The Company recognizes a provision for workers' profit participation and welfare fund (WPPF) @ 5% of
income before tax and it has been managing, disbursing and investing as per provisions of the Bangladesh
Labour { Amendment) Act, 2013, The Company is making the payment within nine months at the end of
the relevant financial year. 80% of the Fund is hemng paid to eligible employees, 16% to Government
Workers Welfare Foundation and remaining 10% w0 Taufika Foods and Lovello fce-Cream PLC
Emiployzes Welfare Fund as per provision of Bangladesh Labour (Amendment} Act, 2013,

iii) Group insurance scheme

The Company operates a group insurance scheme for its permanent etnployees as per provision of the
Bangladesh Labor (Amendment} Act, 2013, The permanent employees include full time permanent
cmployees and workers of the Company. Payment in this regard has been accounted for in the
accompanying linancial statcments.

Statement of Cash flows

Cash Flow Statement is prepared in accordance with TAS-7; Statement of Cash Flows under Direct
Method as prescribed by Bangladesh Securities and Exchange (BSEC) rule 1987,

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of bank balances, cash in hand and cash equivalemts like demand draft,
pay orders etc in hand that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject 1o an

insignificant risk of changes in value,
Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recognized and stated at original invoiced amounts and carried at anticipated
realizable values. Bad debts are written off when it is established that they are jrrecoverable, No bad debt
incurred in the period.

Trade payables

Trade payables are stated at cost which approximaies the fair valuc of the consideration to be paid for
goods and services received.

Provisions

All provision is recognized on the balance sheet date if, as a result of a past event. The company has a
present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of
cconomic benef't will be required 10 settle the obligation.

Borrowings Costs

Financial Expenscs (Borrowing Coss) incurred during the year was rccognized as revenue expenses in
accordance with [AS-23 “Borrowings Costs™. No borrowing cost incarred during the period,

Income Tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income
statement, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case, the tax is recognised in orher comprehensive income or dircctly in equity,
respectively,

hh—
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Taufika Foeds and Lovello Tee-Cream PLC
Explanatory Notes to the Financial Statementis
As at and for the year ended 30 Junc 2024

i) Current Tax

Necessary provision for tax has been made as per Income Tax Ordinance 1984, Current tax is the
expected lax payable on the taxable income for the financial vear, using tax rates enacted or subsequently
enacted after the reporting date and any adjustment 1o tax payable in respect of previous vears. Provision
for taxation is calculated on the basis of applicable current tax rate and incompliance with Finance Act oo
the accounting profit made by the company as per ITO 1984 in compliance with TAS-12 "Income Taxes".

i) Deferred Tax

Deferred Tax assets and labilities are measured using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or
subscquently enacted at the balance sheet dute. The impact on the account of changes in the deferred tax
assets and liabilities for the vear ended June 30, 2022 has been recognized in the statement of Profit or
Loss and other comprehensive income as per 1AS-12 "Income Taxes”,

Contingent Liabilities and Assets

Contingent liabilities are current or possible abligations, arising from past events and whose existence is
due to the occurrence of non- occurrence of one or more uncertain future events, which are not within the
contred of the company. [n accordance with TAS 37 provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets,
there were no contingent liabilities and assets.

i. the company has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the poads:

i the company retains neilher continuing managerial involvement 1o the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

iii. the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

iv. it is prabable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction wiil flow to the company; and

v. the cost incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.
VAT

The Company's nei sales is considered with 5% applicable VAT and 3% suppiementary duty.
Statement of Changes in Equity

Statement of changes in equity is prepared in accordance with IAS-1 “Presentation of Financial
Statements”. This statement reflects information about the increase or decrease in net assets or wealth.
Related party disclesures

The Company carried out a number of transactions with related parlies in the normal course of business
and on an arms’ length basis. The information as required by [TAS-24; "Related Party Disclosures” has
been disclosed in a separate note to the financial statements.

Materiality and aggregation

Each material class of similar items is presented separately in the financial statements, tems of dissimilar
nature or function are presented separately unless they are immaterial.
Segment information

The Company is primarily engaged in the manufacturing and selling of simifar type of products. The
Company's business is not organized in such a way which may identify different products! geographical
components structurally. Hence segmentation within a wide portfolio of products/ geographical location is
not a part of the regular internally reported financial information to the operating decision makers.
Therefore, it is not possible to segment the Company's results by products/ geographic location which

might involve a high deeree of estimation.
Earnings per Share

This has been calculated in compliance with the requirmients of IAS 33: "Earnings Per share™ by dividing
the basic earings by the number of ordinary shares outstandings during the vear,
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Explanatory Notes to the Financial Statements
As at ang for the vear ended 30 June 2024

Basic Earning
This represents eamnings for the year attributable to ordinary sharcholders. As there was no preference

dividend, minorty interest or extra ordinary items, the net profit after tax has been considered as fully
atfributable to the ordinary sharcholders.

Changes in significant accounting policies - [FRS 16 Leases
IFRS 16 Leases
Nature and effect of Changes

Previously, LOVELLO determined at contract inception whether an arrangement is or contains a lease
under IFRIC 4, Under IFRS 16, LOVELLD assesses whether a contract is or contains a leuse based on the
definition of a lease.

On transition to IFRS 16, LOVELLO evaluated ail types of contracis 10 assess whether a contract is or
containg, a lease al the date of initial application.

As a Lessee

As a lessee, LOVELLQ previously classified leases as operating or finance leases based on its assessment
of whether the lcase transferred significantly all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the
underlying asset to LOVELLO. Under IFRS 16, LOVELLO recognises right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for all ieases.

5
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Taufika Foods and Lovello lee-Cream PLC
Explanatory Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2024

Particulars

Amount in Taka

|| Nates 30-Jun-z4 30-Jun-23

400 Proparty, Plant & Equipment
At Cost:
Opening Balance
Additiom Duning the Year
Closing balanee
Accumulated Deprecistion:
QOpening Balance
Addition During the Yeur
Closing Balance

Written Down Value

1,713.659.513
149 888 078

13343800138
179,279,377

1,863,547,538 1,713,689,513
602,993,290 493,162,885
114,610,227 1)9.830.485

717,603,518 602,993,290

1,145,944,020 1,i10:666,223

{Detaiis of Property. Plant & Eyuipment are provided in the Annexure-A)

4001 ROLU Assets
Al Cost:
Qpening Balance
Addition During the Year
Cinsing balance

Avcumulated Depreciation:
Opening Balance

Addition During the Year
Closing Bulunce

Written Down Yaiue

407,234,234 407,384,234
10,897,101 -

4i8,281,336 407 384,234

220,126,934 195,137,037
22,308,149 24,989,897

242,435,083 220,126,934

|T&&£S§ 187,257,301

{Details of Property, Plant & Equipment are provided in the Annexure-a}

5.00  Intangible Assets

At Cost:
Opening Batance
Addition During the Year

Closing Balance

Accumulated Depreciation:
Opening Balance

Addition During the Y ear
Closing Balance

Written Down Value

{(Details Intangible Assets are provided in the Annexure-A)

600 Capital Work in Progress

Plant & Machinery
Freezer

7.0¢  Investoreni
DR Investonent

7.01  FDR Investment
MName of Bank
Trust Bank

Shimanto Bank
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3,788,633 3,618,633
315,000 180,000
4,103.633 3,758,633
3,336,828 2,675,023
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16,997,856 -
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Explanatory Notes & the Financial Statements
For i year ended June 30, 2024

Particulars Notes | Amopunt in Taka
articulars Notes [ 30-Jun-za T 3¢-Jun13 |

800 Inventories

Raw Materials 150450931 148,951,318
Work in Progress 23,301,627 21274206
Finished Goods 327,769,933 312,161,841

501,622,491 482 397,365

Al The end of the vear physical verilication of inventorics were carcied out,
QB0 Trade & Other Reccivables
I'rade Reecivables 9,01 430,864,964 426,522 688
~— dT6,611,688

— A RGAI6T

9.01  Trade Reeeivables

Bogra Territory 24337836 23,592,150
Khulng Territory 23,384 825 22,703,713
Barisal Territory 23,558,175 21,901,141
Rangpur Tetritory 21,589,724 20,739.3350
Chinagong Territory 35,743,450 34702379
Cowmilla Territary 33,040,328 32077986
Uttura Territory 23954133 23,236,440
Rampura Ierritory 31.260.773 30647817
Jatrabari Territory 31,347,967 30,733,301
Sylhet Territory 23,372,443 22,691,692
Faridpur Territory 21.020.587 20,212,105
Bosilla Territory 31,730,150 30,805,971
Cox's Bazar Territory 23,315,280 22,636,195
Noakhali Territory 33,083,601 32,120,001
Jussore Tertitory 16,569 101 15,031,828
Mymensingh Territon 30,207,827 29,327,988
Rajshahi Territory I3.35%?ﬁ-& 12,722,634
T AT6,6I16EY

Ageing of Trade receivables

Due for 3 months 272,716,278 264,506,067
Duc for 3 1o 6 months 145,153 438 144,785,487
Due for ubove 6 months 21,993,248 21,331,134

Full information as per requirements of the Para 4 Fart |, schedule Xi. of the Compunies Act. 1994 reparding
Trade receivables as on June 30, 2024 are as follows:

IR Particulars 30 June, 2024 || 30 June, 2023

Receivables considered good in respect of which the company 15 fully

spcuned.
Receivables considered good in respect of which the company holds no
security other than the debtor personal security, 439,864,364 HIEEN6RA

iii. |Reccivable considered doubtful or bad.

Accounts Receivable due By any director or ofher oflicer o The company
or any of them vither severzlly ar joinily with any other person or debts doe
firm or private companics respectively in which any dizecior is & partner or

a director or a member 1o be soparately stated,

Receivables dus by companies under the semc management to be disclosed
wilh the names of the companies;

The maximum amount of receivable due by any dizector or olher officer of

s the company at any time during the year to be shown by way of a now,

T,

b |
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Explanatory Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2024

Particulars

Amount in 1aka

[
” Notes ¢ Tun-24

[ 30-Jun-23

Tin 09

11.90

11.01

11.02

11.03

11.61.01

1LAOZ.01

i) Debt considered good and in respect of which the company can realize it fully.
1y Debts considered good lor which the company holds ne security olier than the debtors personal seourity

i} Management considered the trade receivables are collectinie and thus no provision had been made.

iv) Therc is no such trade receivables due by or 1o dircctor or other officers of the Ccompany,

Inter-company Receivabies

8,520,579

7.230,000

8,510,579

7,950,

This represent lemporary advance and short term in uature, and repavable on demand.. Manapement has obtained
confirmation from the aforesatd entitics and assessed recuverability, upon which satistied that all these balances

Advanee, Deposits & Pre-payments

Advince
Meposit
Pre-payments

Advance

AlIT & Souvree Tax

Advance to BS1T & Halal Soned
Advance tor Office Rem
Advance 1o Supplier

Advance for Listing Foes

Dreposit
L/C margin

Pre-payments
Kamaphuli (nsurance Co. Lid.
Matlife Insurance Co, Lid,

AIT & Source Tax
Upening Balance
Addition During the Year

Adjustiment During the Year
Closing Balince

L/C marpin

Opening Balance

Addiuion during the year

Net Adjusement During the Year
Closing Belance
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are recoverzhble i full

11.01 229,369 877
11.02 -

11.03 711,863

230.081,742

217,364,541
578,000
7.041

2 218,879.582

11.01.01 60,193,335 65,127,233

- 994,240

1,156,000 1,130,000

159,026,492 149 390,067

- 303,000

229,359,877 217,364,541

11.42.01 ST,
- 578,000

T1L3635 -

= 937.041

711865 937,041

635,127,233 54,761,182

4,066,152 10,266,052

68,193,185 65,127,233

ﬁ9!I93.385 65i12?£33

STR.O00 19,501,835

- 578,004
£578.0000 (19.301.835)

= 578,000




KAZI ZAHIR KIIAN & CO.
CHARTERCD ACCOLUNTARNTS

Taufika Foods and Lovello Ice-Cream PLC
Explanatory Notes to the Financinl Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2024

Particulars

~ Amauntin Taka
otes 30Jun-2d ]| 30-Jun-23 |

11.04 Disclosure as per Schedule-X1, Part -1, of The Companies Act, 1994

Advance, deposits & prepayments considered good & secured 230,081,742 218,879,582
Advance, deposit & prepayments considercd Good without security
Advance, deposil & prepaymenis considered doubtful & bad
Advance. depusil & prepavmenis due by directors or other officers & staffs
Advance. deposit & prepayments dug trom companies under same
management
Maximum advance due by dircctors or officers & stulls at any time
Tatal 23}L081,742 218,879,582
12,00 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash in Hand 12.01 78.599.596 90,216,211
Cash a1 Bank 12.02 80,980,634 54874457
155,579,630 145,090,668
12.01  Cash in Hand
Faclory (Mtice 327.000 163,600
Corporate Office 5,356,321 4,929,639
Depot Office ?2.91&275 85,121,372
1 +
1202  Cuash at Bank
Trust Bank Lid (o)) 0022-0210012530 32,626 1.716
Pubati Rank Ltd D 0365901028140 - 20,527
Premicr Bank |id [h] 010411103078610 6.897 6,857
Prime Bank Lid cr 2132113001637 6,465 444 246,947
Rrac Bunk, Lid D 15720343966 5001 632,678 140093
Islami Bank Lid < 20301770100435607 488,181 22424
Dutch Bangly Bank 1id Cp 1031100033118 10,853,637 150,908
Linion Bank Lad Cch 0291010001239 10,216 6,836
Mcrcantile Bank Lid CD 1T1311118%660601 - 322,785
UCBL D 541131000005430 1,921 10,035
City Bank Lid 5} 1402538242001 - 12,164
AB Bank Lid SND 4033-761383-430 1.398 279,768
Trust Bank T.td SND 0022-0320000775 [5,411243 44,138,232
Malional Bank Limited cD LiGa00360:2 18 1,848,269 1,851,959
Dutch Bangla Bunk 1t CcDh 2811106002179 680 698,766
Shimant Bunk Limited CD 1001241001122 16,965 17.500
NRB Bank co 1022010104230 17,124,332 2360
Shimante Bank Limited cD 1005241000030 3,000 -
Shimanto Bank Limited SND 1005441400036 3,754 860,312
Trust Bunk Lid D T022.0212005722 4,442 10,774
Trust Bank Lrd SND 0220320000962 5.241,764 5.707.763
Trust Bank 1.td ch 0022-0210023324 4,503,823 451,688
Trust Bank Lid [k 0022-0210024154 4,175,226 -
MNEE Bank <n 1422050129708 %050 -
NRB Bank I 1022210128408 14032258 -
Standard Bank PLC ch 02633100905 16,167
Shahjala) Islami Bank P ch 40131 100006 166 34,335 -
80,980,034 54,874,457

All bank balances are reconciled with bank statements and bank book and reconciled balance extracied here.
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KAZ] ZAHIR KHAN & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Taufika Foods and Lovello Tee-Cream PLC
Explanatory Moles to the Financial Statements
For the year ended Junc 30, 2024

in lak
Particulars ” Muotes E SU-Iu:-T:uni]m 32:}_3‘]"_23 |

1300  Share Capital
1301 Authorized Capital

{10000, 00 Orlinpry shares of Tk 10 each) 1,000,000 M0 L.000.600.000
13.02 Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up
§5,000,000 shares of Tk.10 each A54,000.000 850,000,000

* é
Shareholding Position is as follows:

Number of Shares Percentzge of holding Share
SL. No. Sharcholders Group
2023-24 20022-23 2023-24 2022-23

i |Sponsors 314.950.000 | 37,950,000 41,02 44.65

2 |Forcizm Investors - - -

3 |Financial and other Institations 14,7332 000 16987414 1734 19.51

4 |General Public 35311000 30,062,586 41.54 35.84

Total 85,000,000 | 85,000,000 100,04 100,00
14.00 Retained Earnings

(pening Balance 249653011 246,389 086
Add: Profit Duzing the Year 121,771,349 105,263,925
Less: Dividend for FY 2022-23 (85.000,000) -
Less: Dividend for FY 2021-22 - {1402,000,000)

Less: Dividend Tor FY 2020-21
Closing Balance

15.08 Deferred Tax Liability

186,424,360 249,653,011

Opening Balance 74119030 39.436,286
Add: During the Year (7,309,558) 14,682 745
Closing Balance 65,809,472 T4=Il9={]30
As on 30 June 2022
WDV as por Accounts 1,237 651,976 1.214,013,838
WDV as per 3rd Schadule 903,604,616 843418687
Temporary Difference 334,047,360 370,595,151
Applicable Tax Raw 20,00% 26.00%
Dreforred Tax Liability 66,809.472 74,119.030
Deferred Tax Linbality 66,809,472 74,119,030
16.00  Long -term Loan
Long-term Loan from Shimanks Bank Limited 16.01 456,949.423 404,981,841
Long-term Lean from Trust Bank Limited 16.02 496,519,464 469,585 148
_OS3i(B8RT 874866088
Current Portion Classification
Due within one vear 211,881,674 194,414 886
Duc after one year 741,586,912 630.452,103
953,468,887 874.806,988

fohe
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KAZI ZAHIR KHAN & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Tanofiks Foods and Lovello [ce-Cream IPLC
Explanatory Notes to the Financial Statemenls
For the year ended lune 34, 2024

; Amount in Taka |
Particulars | Naotes 30-Jun-24 _|[ 30-Jun-23 |
16.01 Long-term Loan frem Shimanto Bank Limied

10741000294 . 29,717,289
10 741000301 - 30.048.448
1001741600310 - 46,768,647
1001741000329 - 28,684.233
1001741000347 - 43,205,154
1001741000365 - 31,911,456
1001741000374 - 17.137,136
1001741000383 - 26,695,030
101711000445 28,587,406 26279000
100174 1000454 30,131,290 27,698,000
1001 741000463 20,102,512 19,405,500
1681741000472 80.980.160 734,430,948
1001741000589 18,537,588 -
1001741000543 29,632,196 .
1001741000507 19422112 -
1601741000598 26,491,524 -
1601741000516 30,676,827 -
01741000534 31024892 -
100174 1000552 47,711.99% -
1L T4 1000523 51,957.2010

1O 741000561 35,235,723

100174 1800490 2.(157,995

456,944,423 S04.981.841
Mature of Secority of Loans:

Particulars Dietails
Name of Bank & Finaacial Institute  |Shimanto Bank Limited
Type of Facility I.ong Term Loan
Limit BDT TK 69.50 Crore
Repayment Monthiv
Intercst Rate 9% p.a with monthly rest or as revised from time to time by SMBL
Period of Loan 6l months
Expiry Date 3 Years from the the date of st disbursement.
Renewal Seatus Renewed
Securities 1. Joint Registration and comprehensive insurance of vehicles ii.
) Postdated Cheque covering cach EMI
To purchase glass wp deep freczer. storage box for cold room, pick up,
Purpose . . o
Eeftigerated van, auro vehicles, office car, motorevele vic

16.02 Long-term Loan from 'rust Bank Limited

02 2-03640000484 219,266.473 210,567,252
(022-0640000893 109,432,265 105,093,565
002 2-0640000900 22,857,769 2202281
0220640000919 19,782,563 19071108
022-0640000946 68,228,566 61,650,517
(022-06450000455 23.657.628 21.379.297
3022-6640000964 33,294 205 30.098.399

496,519,464 ﬂég i!ﬁ HE
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KAZI ZAHTR KHAN & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Taufika Foods znd Lovello Ice-Cream PLC
Explanatory Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2024

Pariiculars l Notes AR Ak
) ’ 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
1700 Lease Liability

Lease Loan trom Lankabangla 17.01 326.425 635 308,199,083

Office Space 17.02 10,763,672 2,513,113
337189308 HMiL712.196

Current Portion Classifieation

Crue wikthin one year 99,436,094 82,334 782

D after ong year 246753213 227.377.414
337,189,308 310,712,196

i7.61 Lease Loan from Lankabangla

0613 71400000025 16,078,054 15,360,375

0013 711400000026 38,784,728 36,994,888

0011 71400000131 154.649,239 144,319,649

0011 72260000070 116,913,574 111,524,170
326.425,635 308,199,083

Nuture of Seeurity of Loans:

Partigulirs Details

Name of Bank & Financizl Institute  |T.anka Bangla Finance Limited

Tvpe ef Vacility Lemse Finane

Limit BT 316,200,725

Repayment Quarierly

Interest Rate 14.00%

Period of T.oan 60 months

Espiry Date Jung, 2026

Renewal Status Renewal

L. Subsequent ClarpesT Iypoihetication on all the Fixed Assets of
TFAIL
Securities i Chwnership of Leased Assets

iil. Personal Guarantee of Directors
i . Corporate Guarantee of Taufika Engineering Limited {TEL}
To procure Glass Top Deep Ireczer and Try Uycle, Refl Van & Cold

Purpnse Store

17.02 Leasc Liabitity (Office Space}
Crifice Space 2513,113 4.938.4v1
Add: Current vewr addition 10,897,101 -
Less: Adjustment for IFRS 16 for Current year {2.646,542} $2.443.378)

1;;,7@‘972 Z;‘IS;I 13

Current Portion Classification
Due wilhin ong vear 1,709,136 2,513,113
Dug after one year 9,054,337 -

763.672 2,513,113
1800  Short-term Loan
Short-term Loan Shimanto Dank 8.0 13,901,325

- 132901 é25
These loans are tuken to finance import materials value and LA related expenses. The average tenure of these fachinies are
normylly 56 months witl renewal option. The rate of interest/protit against Lhese facilities is 9%.
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KAZI ZAHIR KHAN & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Taufika Foods and Lovello Tee-Cream PLC
Explanatory MNotes to the Financial Staicinents
For the year erded Tune 30, 2024

Particulars | I

Amount in Taka

18.H

19.00

19.01

Short-term Loan Shimanto Bank
G90064 300003 ]
999964 3000077
9999643000068

1001641001393
1001641001339

Trade & Other Payahles

19.01
15.002

Teadz Pavahles
Others Payables

Trude Payables
Siam Chemical

ROTO PACK GLOBAL L1D.

TAMUTNA AUTO PLAN PRINTING & PACKAGING LTD.

Daraz Bangladesh Limiwed
Pacific Trading

Victor internationals

PremiaFlex Plastic L
International Television Channel LTD.
Massranga Communications Lid,
MMX advertising communication
RTR Traders

Opus Sigon

Rivers Sign

Al llalai Trade International

Bon Packaging

Danish Milk Banpladesh Limited
Isabah Plastic Industries 1 .1d.

M8 Habib Enterprise

e I[ F0fun2d || 30-Junid ]
. 5,278,353
- 3679018
: 3038,170
- 1,119,048
- 786,736
N 13201,325
15,116,226 13,176,933
25,011,632 44,870,361
40,127,858 58.047,293
. 206,994
411,280 184,480
- 689,542
1,032,094 2.532,094
203,809 805,309
. 958.700
740,890 $40,890
. 1 466,526
7.200 7,200
18051 548,054
3,468,736 3233117
1,253,928 1,262,182
1,068,367 441,246
358,181 :
2887.625 ;
1410.216 .
1,065,544 :
59.702 .
15,116,226 13,176,433

This rcpresents amounl payable o suppliers of raw matcrials, packing materials and finished poods. All suppliers were paid

12,652

on 4 regular basis,

Ageing of Trade Pavables
Due for 3 months

Due for 3 1o 6 inonths

Due for above & manths

Others Payables
Payvabie for Freezer Rent
VAT pavable

e

24

12,848,792 11,200,393
1,511,623 1,317,693
755811 658,847
15,116,126 13.176,933
6,181,927 6,868,808
18,829,108 38,001,552
25,011,632 44,870,361
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KAZI ZAHIR KHAN & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Taulka Fouds und Lovello [ce-C'ream PLC
Explangtory Notes to the Financial Statemenis
For the year ended June 30, 2024

Particul || Notes | Amount in Taka
arfiewars : [30Jun24 || 30-Jun-23 |
200¢  Liabilities for Expenses
Statutory Audit Feey 400,000 350,000
Uhilizaton and Corporate Governance Audit Fees 20,000 40,000
Electricity Bill Payable 7,146,59¢ 7,081,393
Sulary & Wagpes Payable 5,560,572 5,790,386
Payabic for PR 7,187,969 0,692,132
T138 Pavable - 30,000
Regulatory Tees Payahle 928.000 425800
Remuneration Payvable 150,000 150,000

L0310 3o

All these payables are (emporary in nature and repayable in demand. No interest/profit is charged for these payables. lts
derived from teking difteren types of service.

2100 Provision for WPPT ;

{ipening Balance 7,739,887 7.759.281
Add: Addition During the vear 7,610,709 6,580,484
15,350,596 14.339,765
Less: Paid During the year {7,139.065) {6.599.878)
Clusing Balance §El 1,531 7,739,887

The management of Taufika Foods and Lovello Lee-Cream PLC have already taken all neccesary skeps to maintain complia
decision o deposit all amounts within one vear.

2200 Frovision for Income Tax

Cpening Balance 91,018,062 TU3TEE73
Current Year Provision 37,752,395 11,639,189
Tetal Current Year Provision 37,752,308 11,639,189
128,770,457 91,018,062
Adjustment During the vear (325,148)
Closing Balance 128,245,309 91,018,062
Tax Computation
Business Income 137,326,625 118.019.151
Other Income 14,887,562 13,560,518
Total Income 152,214,186 131,609,669
Ace. Dep 37.223.029 135,182,107
Tax Lxep {100.675,238) {208,555 810}
Total Taxable Income 188,761,977 58,195,946
Applicable tax Rate 20.00% 20.00%
Current Year Tax 37,752,395 11,639,189
Minimum TAX 0.60% or: Gross receipt 6,042,119 5743547
6,042,119 5,743,547
Advance lncome Tax considered tor minimum TAX 4,066,152 10,366,052
4,066,152 10,366,052
2348t Undisbursed Dividend
Opening 70,763,928.21 350861800
Add: Dividend for the FY 2020-214 . -
Add: Dividend for the FY 2021-22 - 1020000086
Add: Dividend for the FY 2022.23 £5.000,000 .
Less: Disbursement during the period for the TY 2021-22 & 2022-23 {142.298,637) {36.744.600)
Closing Baiance 13,465,291 70,763,928
25

138 ‘ TAUFIKA FOODS AND LOVELLO ICE-CREAM PLC



KAZLI ZAHIR KAHN & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Amount in Tk,

Particulars 30Jun2d || 30-Jun23
24,03 Sales
Gross Sales 1,.243,101,657 1,139,478,247
Less: {(SD+VAT) 213,969,414 195,810,962
Net Sales 992,132,243 943,667,285
Quantity wise Sales [nformation:
Hem | | 3¢-Jun24 || 30-Jum-23 |
Loily €Al Kinds} 62 M| Tce Cream 9,893,596 9,505,416
Chocobar 72 Ml 84,202,124 80,088,910
Hidden Heart Single 50 Ml 131,497,691 125,074,122
Cruncy Bar Mega 82 M| 7,573,012 7.203.076
Cruncy Bar Mini 32 M1 34,706,802 33,011,399
Sheel & Core 62 Ml 4,514,155 4203 442
Malai Ice Cream 35 M1 12,434 235 11,826,831
Cup Reguiar 100 Ml {All Flav.) 144,895,820 137,817,761
Cup Regular 50 Ml {All Flav.) 5314.598 5,054 584
| Ltr. Container Ice Cream 44,756,547 42,570,222
750 Ml Container Ice Cream 2,471,489 2,350,759
500 Ml Container {ce Cream 53,761,128 51,134,935
250 il Container ice Cream 41,935,043 35,886,546
Hazel Beats 80 Ml lce Cream 4637673 4,411,126
Toffe Beats 83 MI lce Cream 3,814,526 3,628,192
Chocoblast 100ML 8,919,680 3,483,960
Cone Maxi 121 M) (A1l Fiav.} 136,224,579 128,570,105
Cone Mini 72 M) (All Fiav.) 139,690,796 132,866,599
Round Shape Cake | Lir. 1,481,444 1,409,077
Feart Shape Cake 1.5 Ltd. 298,172 283,606
Swirly Sundac 100 pMl 3,996,424 3,801,201
Kulfi 530 M ice Cream 83,393,847 79,320,116
Double Sundy 1 Lir. Ice Cream 10,204,696 0,706,213
Shahi Khajur Malai 3,270,114 3,110,372
Bulk Liter @ per 1 Ltr 2,453,798 2,331,078
Lovello Swing Bull 100 ML lee Cream 6,032,178 5,737,511
Lovello Ambrisia | Lar. lce Cream 258,002 245,399
Lovello Doi, Kheer Premium 1 Ltr [ce Cream 2958231 2,814,675
Lovello Shahi Shondesh, Black Forest Premium 1 L. 824,125 783,867
Lavello Double Sundy Premium 500 ML Ice Cream 3,198,941 3,042,675
Lovello Doi, Kheer Premium 300 ML lce Cream 2,420,772 2,302,519
Total 992,132,243 943,667,285
25,00 Cost of Goods Scld
Raw Materials Consumed: Note- 23.01 441,063,775 498,261,859
Add: Factory Overhead Charges Note- 25.02 154,606,534 154,910,424
Cost of Production 395,670,709 653,172,283
Add: Opening Work in Process 21,274 208 17,019,365
616,944 915 670,191,648
Less: Closing Work in Process {23,401,627) (21,274,206}
Cost of Goods Manufactured 593,543,289 648,917,442
Add: Opening Stock of Finished Gooeds 312,161,841 222,174,678
Cost of Goods availeble for Sale 905,705,130 §71,092,120
Less: Closing Stock of Finished Goods (327,769,933} (312,161,841}
Cost of Goods Sold 577,935,197 538,930,279

26
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KAZI ZAHIR KAHN & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Amount in Tk,
30-Jun-24 || 30-Jun-23

Particulars

1511 Raw Materials Consumed

The break-up of the amount is given bellow,

Opening Stock 148,961,318 125,733,318
Purchase During the year 4472 553,388 321,485,859
Raw Materials available for Use 591,514,706 647,223,177
Less: Clasing Stock (156,450,931) (148,961,318
Raw Materials Consumend 441.063.778 408,261,859

25.02 Maznufacturing Overhead

Electricity Bill 44 401,550 38,736,831
Fuel & Lubricants 12,101,954 11,864,700
Wages & Salary 47,572,909 49417871
Festival Bonus 2,306,987 4,797 861
Cvertime and Other Allowance 1,699,771 1,856,273
Tour and Travles 26,970 82,795
Pool Car Expenses 312,876 329343
Telecommunication Expenses 65,268 62160
Factory Supplies 914,888 943,184
Loading & Unloading Expenses 164,854 143,386
Postage & Courier 28,628 26,025
Printing & Stationary 418,433 464,524
Food and Entertainment 753,847 793,523
Repair & Maintenance 1,739,892 1,657,040
Spare Parts 3,381,959 3,450,978
Insurance Expenses 2,268,379 4,360,139
Licenses Renewal Fees 994,240 994,240
Dcepreciation 35,453,450 34,926,149
154,606,934 154,910,424
26.00 Administrative Expenses

Salary & Allowance 7,202,337 7.653.934
Festival Bonws 1,136,706 1,251,890
Meeting Allowance 136,000 125,000
Provident Fund Expenses 325450 1.231.051
Utility Charge 540,000 559,750
Director Remuneration 80,000 1,800,000
Office Vehicles expense 565,341 513,946
Entertainment Expense 92,128 81,216
Yehicle Insurance & (thers 177,240 175,384
Audit Fees 400,000 350,000
Utiization and Corporate Governuce Audil Fees 258,333 225,004
Listing Feey 1,006,000 1,006,000
Telephone, Mobile & [nternet Bill 225448 230,049
Postage & Couriers 113,751 133,823
Printing & Stationery 157,400 174,884
Legal & Stamtory Expenses 60,058 54,150
Repair Maintenance 267185 242,675
Consultacny Fees 60,000 20,230
Depreciation 861,328 R48.517
15,378,844 16,687,750
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KAZI ZAHIR KAHN & CO,
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Particulars

Amount in Tk,
J0-Jun-24 || 30-Jun-23

2700 Marketing & Selling Expenses

Salary & Aliowanee
Festival Bonus

Provident Fund Expenscs
Fuel & Toll for Vehicles

TA/DA and Other Allowances

Repair Maintenance & Others Vehicles Exp

Tour and Travles

Postage & Couners

Incentive and Commision
Event Management Expenses
Business Promotion Expenses
Adverlisement Expenses
Lepreciation

28.00 Finance Coslt
Bank Service Charges
Interest on Bank Loan
Interest on Lease Loan

Interest Expense on Office Space

11,951,612 12,415,117
1,843,801 2,071,660
533,881 1,196,385
3,928,374 3.637.383
1,305,078 1,359,456
1,196,868 1,221,294
768,945 784,638
285,096 300,101
234,024 292,530
149,445 166,050
25,000 50,000
2,525,302 3,694,780
100,608,252 99,407,440
125,655,678 126,596,834
1,405,500 1,243,559
87,089,680 81,103,133
39,496,553 34,096,474
233,458 434,622
128,225,191 116,377,787

Consistent with prior periods banks charges and others bank loan interest expenses are included as finance costs

29.00 Others Income
Scrap Sale
Rent Received against Freezer
{nterest income

28

3,094,928 4,126,571
16,220,319 8,516,932
1,572,315 947,015
14,887,562 13,590,518
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Taufika Foods and Lovello ice-Cream FLOC
Frplenatory Mores 1o the Financiz! Siutemenss
For the penod cnded A0 fuae 2624

Particulars | T

A0 Earming per Share (EPS)
The Cormpriatien of BPS is g@ven belew-

Earming aitnibutable w ihe Shareholécrs inet profit zfree tax) 121,771.34% 105,262,928
Tatal nuember ol Shaes E5.000,004 B, 000,000
AdjustedBasic Earaings per Sharc (EPSH Pervalue Th
143 .14
Li}
For Current Yeur
‘Tatal Share Mo of shares Mo. of Brays Used [TBtaf Mo W eighted
prvoe Davy Average |
35,000,000 £ 000.C00 365 365 [|_RS.000.000
S50, 0 0H) #5,000.000
Total Share Mo of share: No. of Days Lzed EoR Weighted
Days Average |
83,000,140 57000000 363 365 [} _85.000 040
5,000,000 H5.000,000 H5.000,0[H)

KAZ1 ZAHIR KELAN & 0
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Puring the FY 2023-24 Mot profit alier 1 AN bus morgased 1 compared e e las fmancial vein As 2 result, Canmngs pa $lare dEPS bzs slae morsaseal

bk wenmigsL s Lt the st Financial Year 2002-35,

I14H Net Asset Value {NAV) por Share

Tawe Competation of XAV s given hefow:

el Assels 1,136,424.360 1,092.653.011
Total numbar of Shares 55,000 0310 55 AHKILODD
Ner Asser Value [NAV per Share 13,37 1294
T'otal nuwibier of shares

I'md-npecapial BSL 00 W 5 80 KU
Tael 30 (M), 000 RN L O]
Number of shares (Per value Th L0) B5 WM B 5, 00,0010

Tuning the Y 2023-24 Eartings per shares Lave increased 16% wempared fo i lase femancial veer, As & resulr, Net Assets Velue (MAVY ) has alsg ine) gased

R campacison o the last Financal Yeas 2002-22,

I1N0 Ner Operating Cash Flows por Share {NOCFPS)
Tee Computation 3 SOCEPS i prven below:

el vaerated from Operating Acuvilics 179,593 188
Towal number of Shares 82 00L0D
Net Operating Cash Flows per Share (NCEFS) 211

Dunog the FY 232324 Net cash inflow: (outf.ow) fTom opesating aclvitues ias mureased 9% compared 1o the bt financial VEAr As o easult, Ned Operating

Uzzh Flows per Share {00 FPY) has also increased incomipranison ta the st Financial Year 202323,

3341 Resoncilistion of Net Operating Cash Fiow

Farticulars

Amound in BDT

-Jun-24

J0-Jun-23

Net Profit after Tux

121,771,349

Adpsiivenr i revoole newast provdsd by operaing 2otnies,

108 6362t

Depresiations

137234009

133182 107

F‘mvisinn for Lincone Tax

37,753,195 RN k]
Praviston far WEPEF 7 410,704 68793563
Dreferred Tax {1.309.358) 14,682,745
ioum Inierest 128 225191 116577 737
Incezase in Inventonies (192281263 (1174700043

Inerzase in Teade & Other Receivablies

133422764

4103781 )

Increase i Advarce, Deposits & Prepavineats

(1202 160

M5.818.175)

Encrease/Diecrease in Trade & Chher Paynhles

(172194351

23.439.te

Tugrzase w Liabililies for Expenses

(2145771}

2,021 464

Adjustments for WPTT

(7,139,065}

16,592 578)

Adjustments for TAN Labilitics

(5251484

Met cash infow/{outllow) From operating activitics

353,854,133

174,693,788
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Related Purty Transactions:

The compiny has related party transactions &5 per 1AS-24 "Related Parsy Disclasses
Relared party transacticns are as follows.

LOVELLO

cream

© KAZI ZAHIR KHAN £ CO.
CHAK I ERED ACUOUNTAN |8

Nat 4 Qpening Transgcrion Yayment! Closing
. 3 i . 5 Matare . 3 i
5. Meame of the Reluted Farey Relzaunship fransaction Bslunce ﬁ“’::::h‘ Recteved Bulance
¥ | Tavfika Engineening Limited L pany Advanca 7,950,000 u»??,éRR,ST‘} 122 ARR 57O R53)570
2 | Ms. Shamima Nargis Hagque Charman Meating Allowance - 25000 2 =
5 M4 Bhanul Hague Managng Director | | Remuncration and 150000 )| L825008 1,925,000 156,000
Mesting .-’tllnwance“
4 |Muhsinina Taoliha Ekrarm Dvaelor Seetng Allowuce - 25000 L .
5 | Muhsining Shinika Fraun Director Mestng Allowange = 235,000 = .
f | Heshual Antge 58 Conm, FCAM Independem Thrector Mecting Allowance - 25000 - =
T |Sajed Ahammad Sami Iulependent Thoector Meznng Al]owance“ - 5000 e -
3580 Attendance Status of Besrd Mesting af Directors
Thirtag Prc year ended 2G23-24 there were Tive Bumd Meetings were held. The anendanze staius of oll the meetings 1 3y follows:
Name of the Directors Designation Meeting Reld Attendance
ks, Shamima Xarps Haque Chairman 5 5
wid Ekianmd Haque hizneging Directa 5 3
“uhsoea Tawfine Eham Precior 3 3
Mubgming Shal ks Ekram Dhirsctar 3 3
Ruhul Ameen b.Com. FCAM | Indeoendem Dicsusy 5 3
Safed Ahanmac Sami ndepandem Direstar b |
3600 Genrezal;
A the lipures in the financial stilements represent Bangladeshi 1zka {BDT) Iedd off 1o tiee meeat Rgore The eomparative mformation has
baen disclosed of 2633-2024 for all numencal infurmation it Rnanes statements and also the namvat ve and descriplive wnformation as found relevant
understanding of he curment seaes finarcial statoments, To facilitate companson. certam relevance balances pantaiming o the previous year have been
Jzaranped or reclassifien winever ¢ dered NECessany IC COr TN [0 Current vear restnlalion,
3700 Disclosnre as per requirement of Schedute X1, Part U of the Conmpanies Act, 1994:
A, Diselosure as per requirenicnt of Schedute X1 Prel 11 Nole & of Peea 3

Employee position_of ibe company as at 30 June, 2024:

TAUFIKA FOODS AND LOVELLO ICE-CREAM PLC

] o Sales & Tatal
. Sakary (Monthly} Fugtory Head Office Market: : molovess
Relow BDT 6,000 - £ - =
Abave BDT 6 D00 203 M B 145
Toini 2113 20 15 218 |
o~ : = 1)
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B, Ddsclosure as per requirement of Schedule X1, Part 1l Pava 4

KAZL ZAHIR KHAN & CO,
CUARTCRID ACCOUNTANTS

mare of Dircctors Designation Mecting ltowance ‘I‘ﬂlu}l"l::r::::;a;i;;r;_f:; the

his. Shamima Nargis Hagque Chaimman 25,000 -
KAd. Ekrzeul] | taque Maneging Director 25 KH 1,800,000
winhsinmg Taufiba Ekium Drirector 25000 .
Muhzining Sharika Ekram Direetor 23000 -
Rulh Asneen b Ceomy., FUAM Lndeprndern Dirgotur 25 000

|Sujed Akammad Sami independent Direetor 5,000

IBAN As per IAS- 246

An entire shall dizelose ke K personne] comp v in lotal and Foe gack o the fpthoweng benelies:

ial Shon-tenn employee benedits N
it Post-cmplovee benatits -
ek Oiher loee tenr, benetits -
{dt termination benefits zrd -
(b Bhare- based pavinent -

320G Evenrs after Reparting Period;

In goum

nce witl the requirements of 1A% 13 Cvents Afler the Reponting Peried. post statemunt ©f financial poston events hal provice addiomal

imfprmation about the company’s position al the seporting date 2'e reflected m ihe Toimcizl staiements and events after the reporing pesod thers ane

adiusting eveats tise are disclised s ollows:

L The company has been declared 10% cash and 10% stock dividand (o thes fmanaial year (2023-23240

00 Disclosure a4 per requirements of Schedule X1, Part-14, Para-3 of the Companies Al 1994

Regniremnents uoder condition No.

Compiiance status of Disclosure
Schedute X1, Fart [1, Fara 3

| HaWa) e i er

Coamplied

ot Anphicable

Al Commussion paid [0 selimp agenis
e Boetoeage et i o e s o Tl

Not Apphcablz

iKdNi] 1The value 1]

iving ilcam-wise 45 3% i

Lamplizy

i} The npering and eloging stocks of goods produced

Complied

MifeHn the case of g eotapanies, ¢ie prrchase mads ana e gpening and $105ing siocks

Mot Apphoatle

KD Ln ihe case of Compantes rendening o supo)ying services. (he gress inconte derived from services rendened

Nol Applicahle

MUHg) O 2 and closing stocks, pursluses, sees aud con s
1or e Compaiy, which fall2 nder ore or more calzeones e m

o af raw materials
unfrctuneg acdéor tradi

value and quanety breakop

Complizd

AN T e ease of other compamzs, (i arass incoms denv 2 under Giterent ks

M AppFeatie

N} Work-in-progress, which have been compteled at e commencemen ard at the end of the 2ccounting periog

Compliad

m vabise of fixed assers

() Prowigson [ior deprecistion, renewals or d

Complied

Hiwk} laterest on e debentons patd or payable 1 the Managng Director, Managing Avent and (he Manuyper Mot Applicable
i 144 amd other taxation o prafits Compled
oy Reservedd for repayment of shane capital and repayment of loans Kot Applicalie

b L0 el ary
ol iy ngede up,

Nob Applicalile

SN Amosst wishdrawn from above menooned resen ¢

ol Applicabe

St kI Amgun sk side o proviswans mad 2 for meening spific labuwics, convngedeies 3f fo-nmitents,

ol dpplicatle

Maclunery (vl 13 Sulanics, wates and boruy 12) Contrivutien w provideid il ol Runds {33 Weorkmen and siaff
wlfapy exponses to the exten: nut ad dstec from any pret us KOvisien or reserve

Mo AR quined. Mot Applivabl
31 {p) Expends irred oa each of 1he T :
(5} Consumptioe of stores wsl spare pars (3) Power and Fuel v} Repairs of Buildings (v) Repais af Complicd

144 TAUFIKA FOODS AND LOVELLO ICE-CREAM PLC



it

GIOETTLED
LR U0
8T
NS ESPSE
FE0L B 0L PIEE
RUBLLD Y

[ LN

saswadat] Funjay o dunsympy
SAEUMING] BAVBISILILEY
peaygasacy Tuunisg aungy

UOELELIRI XD |0 WOl )Y

BICGLERGL | | TSULcr9I8 | LOTTRISEl | SPGPLCUGY | - | ORECERFPILT | LACERFGLI

[ su'e I

I

Aﬂaﬂg.ongu._-_hr._._

[FirGccie] | Ie0oRveos | GURLTLEL | CS0isFoad | - [L0STEaSRE T [ i man 191 PZAT H0°0E UO SE VD pREIT)
ETE [szaeeee | swise | T [ | EEvERLE [ ooo'esi [ exvB0s'E
€51 LoF TSEIP9C £S5 FRE EEESN TT9e01'F NG LT CEYRRLE FTOT HY 0L U0 3% (B0
L1 E0F 5P 1F9 £ £50 F0E WTH OLE b Catly  |SESLOIE s 1L EE
I~ FEO&-00-0% | PLDC9w0f |1 T FTLEE | FLOL-90r05 | J%o% o) auiang 0-Lo 0
UG SR SN|RA ugd S AINE| B[ —.vuw,._a._hu Ul SE JAURIHY @ un SR rxaEeg unnIppy’ ud SE IJUEIRY SAR(NIE)
0M0g URILIAL way) Eaadag . ()
BEGTETECTIT]
[OfsTiel__ | Fee9cinir_ | LGEGRGFT | LOOLEIS6l | [Freecr | - [rcrrmr | ETUT BUTE 0% 58 [E0)
Tl PR AL TR0 STF CFL | GFEBOL CC FE6 OLE 0T GEF N7 RIF THULAR( FELT PSE LUV FTOT H00L U0 SE [E)0],
AT T EIENN AT G 8 VADT  |EUC THL 1T 101 ¢68°01 (01268 DI e RO
SOL CEn £ | (98 GL8 TS 995 507 € 0L PSS P AN ] EEERYET Y
BB SFE 05| Z1GGRF PLI (TR 16T 0% L5 Tl |DDE SFEFCE DOS SPLPTE NI
FACYTH (35610¢C P 1901621 01 |BEE GLO ¥ GEF BLO P SOUIGTR] FUT 1E{
LAY | PROC S 08 |69 S0 FeARE | EL0L-Lir 10 (o} AT VIO 900 | JE9A J] unnp AT
iy S AN|EA o SE DIVE|RY paiaEy) ni S IDUE(RY) - 00 ¥R 3DUR|EQ uGHIppY U3 SR KT HY KIRNHME]
WA UL Ay .llun.ﬂ_.uﬂuﬁuﬂ 1o ued ﬂu_
SRSV 2] Jo
[ETw il | o6t e e | SOFUER 6Bl | ses 29l taF | [E1seso it | it LT M 0% 0 5 (R
DOFFG'SFLL BISCO9'LTL LTTMFLL 06T Ehe T RES LFS E90'T STUSRT LY e FLOUHIUE U0 SE B0,
TN FLOESIELL 1t FAT 5 | ALE RSL 601 307 |85 1EC 91 GLC1LE 981 SALE A D0
LTORSL S | BTN T98 1Y COLSEIE Wl 298 95 6 0CE ] i WSWNGT) S0
RS AT TiL LT Pic bl |L87 924 €86 gal eyl 73R
pL 1 BhirY P ItL F SOPSLYE %0l [BlE 6Lr 01 TR SaIXI] PUR g
YFa 135650 TITGLE TLL 192 16 E0T Sl |99% REE Lo L RLL COF RIBUTGIEN PUE JUELd
LYEDER RS AF i 163 P69 BE BT T G £EE PR LG FAI0A, [1A1) ¥ AUIpIng
et D0 FE " = - Yal) (5t [HIF £ LA KL (P | 9E T8 EdEno_v:un_ pUeT % pueq
FIT-90-0F FIOT-90-0F  |JEoA 34y FULD | ELOLLOT0 |\ vy FIOCI-OE | Je9A Q) QUL [ CE0T- LI T0
U SE ML Y, 04 3F JyuE|eq paiaeyy o S8 AUE|egf i T BN EY uanppy i S8 20| R SIEINMHLIE
UAO{] USTPLIAY [IRLERLET Faen [N]
¥ - aanxaay [ iy 2 Wwepg
FEOT 2UN[ OF W Sy
Justidinby] a yoep) Auadorg Jo 2npayorsg

BINY MDY CLIILEVH L
O3 ® NVHN WHVZ 12V

20d7)-23[ D[3AD°] PUE SPI0 FHIIE]

TAUFIKA FOODS AND LOVELLO ICE-CREAM PLC ' 145



Annual Report-2023-24

2

LO1TRLNEL

OrF LOT66
LIS'RbR
GF9T6PE
TIOTIOE PR,

0l Junniy

PG FLT 169

[ seo0rT Lst

ICICA R

sasiain] By R JUnay IRy
SaRUndNg 2alensIIupy
PEDLIAALY SR NUERY

upnirlazadap Jo usipedso| Y

| LT GE OE D0 8B )0 ],

SLMVLINO Y OF1LLAVEHD
O RNV HIRVE T2V

LS LSFIIR LOVTRISEL | SPoFL ey | - | LLEwSF 6Ll | ETOT HTE 180 5E [}, PUesD)
019609 £T0 56T [ o rier | f16'eRr'T 1 [ oo0'ssT Eisariad | TT07 I w0 SE o)
SO ISt RNy SOE'THE CLGLE T FEVRRLE IWHFIR] EEYEHIT LT HOE UD S€ [EI0)
FEHED 928 ek ¢ SDE 19¢E tesen Sh0s  [ESYENLE aaoow#. - mmv.wcﬁm - DIARY[0G 3]y
B R = 5 wanp o 5 0% | AE9A Fq1 SUMNp -
mﬁ_x TIrOE | TE9. .. ¥ ._ AL LTI N T FULp T0EL .
U0 SE AN|E L ¢ 58 2IVE|IH padJey } W SE JIUE{RE P Ui $ SDUEYRE uoNIppY ue 5 Jyuejeg AT
Umd(] URNIIM ueneaadagy 1507}
S1aEEE SqUiuEiE]
[LeTorTtir [ LE0LEls6) [ onenRoreg [ IZ19s0esl | [T wme i [ - | HTFRE L0 | TT0L W0 0F 10 58 R0 )
[ToELsT L8l EHNT T LENLET561 FECFRE LUF - FETTEE _c-. mgm.gdw xﬁm ._u_a___on“
708" B G0 i ol 2oz 101 L6801 T01°L68 0 Gl 3]
MMWM%W_ mwmwﬁmwﬂ “Nwhwm.ww T ST |FEI L9749 VEICOT LY SHBIGEA IOI0R
AT CEE 991 62 208 &5 | TR ] AT T (S S¥L BT 1AZB1]
BEFRET L [+0° 168" LT FST Sulil st el e BiE GLNE ALDULYIERY PUR TUEL{
0T H0F THES0F0T | J6o% 501 sULnp [T TZ00L0H [ g g, | ETOTHROT Teas S SulEnp | ZEUZZr o
UD K ANEA U 5K DUEEd padaEy) Qo SE 2DNREG ._\..c - up N7 AIUR[EYH unpppy [T R R T | 51 R DILIE |
DM 0301 WO R 150 TR
LITT GEIIRE HS | SEVSS6 FIFLLE] TEOL H0TH U0 56 [E)0],
Lo T [ DATE66T00 [ s0FUER ol S85 ZOLELP €5 GEYELL'T LLERLTHLL GETREFES'| CLUTYYRE Un 8K IR0 |,
DOT LeF 9L BLLBEL 601 OFE L6691 GEITS0L TE W07 [BLCTTETYSI I YhY 1ED 691 FXIIYDA J0L0Y
[ ] [N +1¢ 089 SFFEFE T Calil |zlc Rt @ DST 6E] 76 TFT 6 WRWGINEY 31310
FoT ALY LRS TEC LEC PSL PS5 L0058 |5¥CFE1 sel Ol LRSS I9EER VOO ENG DI 1 [8GTIL8L% (R
BELESE D SOF CLOE 090 thg NVNE6 T te01 [ealsteol Lor R0l 864 9286 SN pUR SIS
EEETETH L T6FEDE  [268' 980T §98 Fob 141 %01 [WCRECCAY OFYGZO'L STE 60t 16E HA PUi 10|
GRENI0ES 165 +69 8T DIEET 18L781F 6T %% [LL6EEX 1A 3 ZLoF69 16 SHIAY 11413 75 BUIDII]
D6F 195 T8 - ; ] Gal  [NGE 1GC FE = Oab 19¢ +8 WUIGAR ] PUE| 3 U]
(TR TT0Z-00-0C | JEoX S UDp |~ TTOLLiE [0y FTOL900F | 169k 301 SUMAP [~ ZZ02-L4-T0
UG seINiEL ue 5e 2I0T|RG padiey;y w0 BB JARIEY \H ._a.x_ uo SF JIURIEY HOHIPRY U0 S¥ 2JUE|R{ sepnnded
WAL DL AL [P 4 1500
RETLTEITY 1Emdinby ey K]
E20T dunp g e sy

wawdinky w el ‘Luaados o yopapay
CF L WIERE 333 Ofjas0’ | PUE Spad wgRE]

TAUFIKA FOODS AND LOVELLO ICE-CREAM PLC

146



EVENT HIGHLIGHTS

LOVELLO Cup Armed Forces Day Golf Tournament 2024

L

oveLLo @

MED FOR *
I -]
|I .
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LOVELLO Cup Armed Forces Day Golf Tournament 2024

LEVELLD Cuw
ARMIT) FORCES DAY SOLF TOUENAMEST 232

LOV/ELLO,

ic creom
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Agreement signing between Taufika Foods and Lovello Ice-cream PLC & Moon Environment Technology Co. LTD.

el
SIGNING CEREMONY

Taufiia Foody and Lo o L

Moon Ervitonment Toomao gy Lo Legt
s L T TR
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12TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (AGM)

TAUFIKA FOODS AND-= 0
e Letele . A _.; t

o -

L 0 ICE-CREAM PLE
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TAUFIKA FOODS AND LOVELLO ICE-CREAM PLC
Plot: 80, Road: 2, Banani (Chairman Bari), Dhaka-1213, Bangladesh

PROXY FORM

as my/our Proxy to attend
and vote on my/our behalf in the 13" Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company to be held on using Hybrid platform on
Monday, Dec 30, 2024 at 11.30 AM

As witness | put my/our hand(s) this .................. dayof ..ccceouveennnn. 2024
REVENUE
STAMP
TK. 20.00

L et Signature of the PROXY

e ettt Signature of the Shareholder

Signature of the Shareholder

roiosoone | | [ | [ [ | [ [ | [ [ [ [ [ ||

Note: This Proxy Form, duly completed, must be deposited at the Company’s Registered Office not later than 48 (forty-eight) hours before the E
commencement of meeting. Proxy shall be invalid if not signed and stamped as explained above. Signature of the Shareholders should agree with E
the Specimen Signature registered with the Company/Depository Participants. D

TAUFIKA FOODS AND LOVELLO ICE-CREAM PLC
Plot: 80, Road: 2, Banani (Chairman Bari), Dhaka-1213, Bangladesh

ATTENDANCE SLIP

|/We hereby record my/our attendance in the 13" Annual General Meeting (AGM) being held on using Hybrid platform on Monday,
Dec 30, 2024 at 11.30 AM or at any adjournment thereof.

Name of the Member/

Proxy (in Block Letter)

Folio/80 1D No PPl

Signature Verified by

Signature of the Shareholder/PROXY Authorized Signature of the Company

Note: Shareholders attending the meeting in person or by proxy are requested to complete the Attendance Slip and deposit the same at the
reception desk. Any friend or children accompanying with the honorable Member/ Shareholders/ Proxy will not be allowed to the meeting.

TAUFIKA FOODS AND LOVELLO ICE-CREAM PLC ' 151
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LOVELLO,

ceVcream

TAUFIKA FOODS AND LOVELLO ICE-CREAM PLC

Plot: 80, Road: 2, Banani (Chairman Bari), Dhaka-1213, Bangladesh
Tel: +8802-9841286-8, Fax: +8802-9841289
E-mail: info@taufikagroup.com
www.taufikagroup.com

lovellolceCream lovello Ice Cream www.lovello.club
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